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F. Notes to consolidated financial statements

Oil and

Metals and
Petroleumn Minerals ]

All other

Total

2016 UsD'M USD'M USD'M Usp'm
Segment assets

and liabilities

Equity-sccounted invesiees 2,345.6 1109.4 84 3,464.4
Gther non-current acsets 1.555.0 2,634.9 848.9 5038.8
Non current assets

classified as held for sale —= - - -
Total assets 22,5289 135270 5173.2 41,2301
e 23 135

Total liabitities 14,6780 10,444.0 10,261.0 35383.¢
Other segment information

Capital expenditure 3027 326.4 1251 754.2
Depreciation and

amortisation 3498 755 89.8 204.7
Impairment of

non-financial assets I X {168.3) ~ sg.5)
Impairment of
financial assets 8.0 25.5 6.3 398
Impairment of equity-

accounted investees ~ 250.0 - 250.0
— - Thvestees — =y - 2500

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical

location of the Group's revenue from external customers:

Oil& Metals and
Petroleum Minerals Total
2017 UsD'™m UsD'™M USD'M
Revenue from external customers
Europe = 208762 57638 266401
Asia_ —_ 347608 240137  sa77a0
North America - 20,5003 92183 297192
Lalin Amierica —— - _0:3570- : 9023
T _ 39745  3mig 6.
3296 30.2 3608
. 4,2075 20036 63T

Total revenue from external customers

94,0716.8 42,403.9 136,420.7

Oil & Metals and
Petroleum Minerals Total
2016 Usp'm USD'M Usp'm
Revenue from external customaers

Europa = B 16,5594  9,80548 263652
Asia o 177441 196738 __3ArT
North Ameriza - 127913 23488 161401

Latin America 6,516.6 13469 78635
Africa 47753 7458 55216

Australia . 573.0 225.3 788.2

Middle Fast o 38710 203 29974

Total revenue from external customers 63,831.3  34,266.5 98,097.8

5. Acquisitions of subsidiary
and non-controlling interests

There were no significant transactions during the year, nor in 201 5, to

acquire subsidiaries or non-control ling interests,

6. Deconsolidation of subsidiaries

a.2017

Trafigura Mexico Holding 8v

On 14 October 2015, the Group has entered into a Stock Purchase
Agreement with Tajin Transporte S.a.r.i for the sale of 100% of its
share in Trafigura Mexico Holding BV and pPM Energy S.APLdeCy,
including the owned Rights of Way hecessary for the Transportation
Service Agreement tender for the Tuxpan - Tula natural gas pipeline
and real estate properties in Mexico. The total consideration of the
sale was USD68.1 million of which USDE5.3 million was recejved in
cash before 30 September 2017, On 31 May 2077, being the closing
date of the transaction, the Group has recognised a gain of USD50.2
million which has been recognised under disposal of subsidiaries as
reported in note 8, Other income/{expense).

b. 2016

(()AEMR SA, Angola

During the second quarter of financial year 2016, the Croup has
reversed the impairment it had recorded in financial year 2015 of
USD243.6 million in respect of the iron-ore investment in AEMR 3A,
Angola (AEMRY). A presidential decree has been issued in February
2076 which will result in the liquidation of AEMR. The Group obtained
@ signed Instrument of Confession of Indebtedness {the “Debt
Instrument”) from the Angolan Ministry of Finance. Under the Debt
Instrument, the Angolan Ministry of Finance will assume g
consolidated debt valuye of UsSD409 mitlion to the DT Croup as
compensation for the investments that the DT Group has made in
AEMR. The debt js payable to the Group over a period of 48 months
commencing in January 2017 and has thus been recorded at a
discounted value of USD357.6 million under loans receivable.

As part of this arrangement, the assets held by AEMR have been
transferred to the non-controlling interest partner in AEMR
{Ferrangol). As aresult of the arrangement, it has been concluded that
the Group no longer has control over AEMR and therefore AEMR has
beendeconsolidated in the Group's consolidated financial statements
as per 31 March 2016, The divestment of AEMR and the recognition of
the receivable towards the Angolan Ministry of Finance resulted in a
gain of USD264.6 million recorded in Other income split between a
reversal of impairment of USD243.6 million and gain on divestment
of subsidiary of USD21 mitlion (refer to note 8). After taking into
account non-controlling interest, the net resylt of the impairment
reversal and the divestment of AEMR attributable to owners of the
company is USD72 million.

7. Revenue
2017 2016
USD'M Uso'M
sales of goods — 1363151  9g0z00
N2 of sarvices 105.6 778
Total 136,420,7 98,097.8




8. Other income/(expense)

2017 2016
UsD'™ usb'M
Release/lodditions) to provisions _ 5]
Gain/{loss) on disposal of
tangible and intangible fixed assets = 0.4 12.4
Gain/{loss) from disposal of other investments 0.6 01

Gain/{loss] on sale of @ Uity~accounted invesiees 3.0 {5.4)
—in/gioss) ¢ —-—_‘L.____——._‘—‘——-———_._.___
30.8 20.3

Gain on divestment of subsidiaries X 5
Gain/(loss} on fair value trough

profit a ent

L assets

counted investees ! . I

Gain/{loss} on foreipn exchange N ) .
O —————feXhange 00 000 A A I
Other 25.0 (193]
——_______________—-————_________________‘_
Total 163.2 (233.2)

2017

The gain on divestments of subsidiaries comprises of the gain of
USD50.2 million on the sale of Trafigura Mexico Holding BV and Ppi
Energy S.A P.l.de C.V. as described under note 6. This gain is offset by
the effect of the deconsolidation of the CGroup’s railway operations in
Colombiain Impala. Due to 3 consequent lack of sustainable profitand
safety and security concerns these operations have been sold to a
third party resulting in aloss on disposal of USD19.4 million, This loss
ismainly comprised of recycling of foreign currency translation losses
recognised In equity until the disposal date.

The gain on fair value instruments through profit and loss includes a
fair value movement of the debt securities related to the investment
in Porto Sudeste de Brasil SA of USD135.7 million {2016 loss of
USD125.9 million) offset by aUSD20.1 miltion impairment to nil value
inrelation to the investment in Indian refinery NOCL which filed for
bankruptcy in fuly 2077,

During the regular assessment to determine asset impairments, the
Group decided to record impairments of USD23.8 million on financial
assets mainly related to the Cedars Energy LLC of USD20.1 miltion.

for details on the impairments of non-financial assets, refer to notes
Tand12.

For the additions to provisions we refer to note 24.

2016

In 2076, other income and expenses included an impairment of
USD256 million recognised in relation to the equity investment in
Porte Sudeste do Brasit SA and the reversal of the impairment on
AEMR of USD243.6 million {seenote 6).Fora descriptior: of the Porto
Sudeste impairment please refer to note 13,

For details on the reversal of impairments in 2016 relating to non-
financial assets please refer to notes 6 and 13.

The Group entered into sale and leaseback transactions of 17 vessels
which have been leased back for periods ranging between eight and 10
years. These sale and leaseback transactions generated a total gainof

and intangible assets.

During the regular assessment in 2016 to determine asset impairment,
the Group decided to record animpairment of USD42 7 million on
ed to the Group's railway operation in

consequent lack of sustainable profit growth in the current context.
These activities have been soldin 2017.

9. General and administrative expenses

Depreciation and amoriisation

Staff costs e ) A - )
General and cther 218. 8.5
Total 945.0 9467

General and other cost mainly comprise travelling cost, office cost and
1T cost,

Refer to note 28, employee benefits, for a breakdown of the staff
costs.

10. Tax

a. Tax expense

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of income consists
of the following:

2017 2016
UsD'™M usp'™
Current incoma 1ax expense —— 135.0 102.0
Adjustments in relation to current - B
income tax of previous year W - 8.7 (4
Deferred BXPENSS, g ) e ]48.6! 14.0
Withhelding tax in the current year 3.7 3.6
T Tomyear —_— 36
Total 81.4 110.2

b. Tax recognised in other comprehensive income
The tax credit/(charge) relating to components of cther
comprehensive income is as folloys:

>,
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c. Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Trafigura’s operations are subject to income taxes in verious foreign
Jurisdictions. The statutory income tax rate varies between 10% and
37.5%, which results in a difference between the weighted average
statutory income tax rate and Singapore's statutory tax rate of 179
{2016:17%),

The weighted average statutory income tay rate increased in 2017
compared to 2016.by 4.7% as a consequence of a change in the mix
of profits and losses generated in the varigys countries in which

Trafigura operates.

The reconciliation between tax expense and the rasult of accounting
profit multiplied by the Company’s statutory income tax rate for the
years ended 30 September 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

2017 2016
Ush’M % USD'M %

Profit before tax 968.7 - 1.084.9
oy — —————hb8ds =

Income tex expense at statutory
blended tax rete — 2270 234% 2031 1574

Tax effect of adjustments to arrjve at the effective income tax rate:
Effect of unused fax losses, not
Lecognised as d

Non-taxable income or oy

bj_ . (e328)

to suecific tex holidays {1419 -
quiedur;aible expenses 53.6 = 136 =
Forsign exchange S | _~ (105 -
Adjustments in relation to 07

: o .
{ncohr;:e 12x of previous year
Withholds T

Effective tax rate 81.4

d. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Breakdown deferred tax assets and liabilities

Derivatives . 100 -
Losses

Equitv-accounted investeas

Other temporar diffarences
JNer e s —

Deferred tax liabitity, net

(35.4)

Deferredtax assets ang liabilities afternetting

sset/(li

Reflected in the conselidated balance sheet as follows:
L

S —— 1582 = qmg
———————— [1886) iso5)
Deferred tax liability, net (35.4) (85.7)

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities

Opening bzlance a3 at 1 Cctober [85.7] [332[
: period
1 )

Tax expense during the

Tecopnised in profit or loss

Other comp

Deferred taxes deconsolig

business combinations — - - -

Foreign currenicy differences and other 2.8 4.2

—‘—*————-—.____________——————-—__________
Closing balance as at 30 September {35.4) {85.7)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for temporary differences and
unused taxlosses to the extent that realisation is probable as sufficient
taxable profit is eXpected in the countries where the deferred tax
assets are originated.

future,

Unrecognised tax losses carried forward

Losses expiring within 1 year = 51
Losses expirin i between 1-5 years - 0.5 184
L_osgexniring after s years e = 2539 193.8
Total S N 2544 23

The unrecognised deferred tax assets for losses relate 1o entities for
which it is not probable that taxable profit will be available to offsat
against these losses.

e. Tax uncertainties

Trafigura operates Aumerous jurisdictions worldwide resultingin cross
border intercompany transactions whereby the transfer pricing rules
applied in one country have an impact on the results in another

Due to complexity of tax rules, interpretation by locat taxing
authorities can differ from Trafigura's interpretation based on opinions
provided by local tax counsel. Trafigura believes that it has sufficently
provided for financial consequences (if any).

In countries where Trafigura starts new operations or alters business
models, the issue of Permanent establishment and profit allocation
thereto may arise. The risk is that taxing authorities in multiple
Jurisdictions claim taxation rights over the same prefit.

Y A g




1. Property, plant and equipment

USD'M

Land and

Machinery and
buildi o nt

Barges and
pgvessel.s

Other fixed
assets

Total

Cost.

Effect of movemnents in exci ange rates
Disposals
Divestrnent of subsidiaries

968.9 SB7.0

(36.4} 27)

(61} (3.6)

654.4

944.4

166.0 (5780)

{134.1)
{9.6)

(s65) )

{20.2)

31547

2637

Balance at 1 October 2018 L 587 N 3
Additions 5.5 81 485 266.8 33_8i
Redlassifications 150.5 1978 @_71
{210} (.8 {03) 34 4 (%

— = ) (s

(39.5)

Batance at 30 September 2077 1,077.4 785.8 724.9 5131 3,101.2
Depreciation and impairment losses

Balanrr* at 1 October 2076 2180 270.9 82.8 2379 805.7
DeErecmtlon for the period - 464 34 362 21.8 1358
impairment losses 9.2 N 6.5 0.8 16.5
_H = _—_——‘_‘———_. _— e s e TR oy T
Reclassitications - 6.0 2.5 (3.8} 47
Effect of movemenis in exchanm_ =~ ce— - {95} — _ ln _“)___ig)_ (12 3
Disposals (4.7) {0.8} (3.5} (9 (¢}
Divestmentofsibedor— — o —_— &) )
Divestment of subsidiaries {3.8) (83) {4.0) (19.2) (351}
Balance at 30 September 2017 2616 295.2 121.5 232,0 910.3
Net book value at 30 September 2017 815.8 490.6 603.4 2811 2,190.8

Land and Machinery and Barges and Other fixed

UsD'M buildings quip vessels assets Total
Cost
Balance at 1 October 2015 8057 452.2 648.0 1,180.5 3,096, 4.
_Additions - - 61 364 gy 5061 7084
Reclassifications - o 178.4 1039 3923 (6817 (tA))
Effect of movemenis in exchanpe rotes o o 56.7] {03} 0.8 27 {53.5)
Disposals (276 (15.3) (483.5) (63.) (589.5)
Balance at 30 September 2016 968.9 587.0 654.4 944.4 3,154.7
Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at? Octobar 2015 171.9 2471 582
Depreciation for the period o 46.8 19.6 519

Impairment losses 76 51 3.3

Reclassifications 0.5 1.4 {9.4)

Eifect af movements in exchange rates eseea——— (1 ) 1 03

Disposals wn (12.8) {51.5)

Balance at 30 September 2016 218.0 270.9 82.9

750.9 316.0 571.5

Net book value at 30 September 2016

<X




j- Fair value

(i) Fairvalues versus carrying amounts

The fair values of inventories, financial assets and lizbilities, together
with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial
position, are as follows:

Carrying value Fair value
2017 UsSD’M usp'm
Assets
Listed equity securities
~ Fair value through OCI 19.3 19.3
Listed debt securities
- Fair value through profit or loss 4476 4476

Unlisted equity investments

- Fair valua through profit and loss e 45.5 £55

Unlisted equity investmients

= Fair value ihrough oa ———— 1226 1226
Loans receivable and advances — = 670.7 670.7
Inventories 13,926.7

Trade and other receivabios 17,506.3
_Components of tolling agreement 162.6
Derivatives 610.4

Deposits . 338.2

Cash and cash equivalents - 4,988.7 19887
Total financial assets and inventories e 38,838.4 38,838.7

Liabilities
Loans and borrowings

Floating rate borrov—.—-ings o __ 288737 28,873.7{*)_

Fixed rate borrowings 23603 2,4532

JIxed rate b ——— -

Finance lease and purchase contract 20.6 20.6(%)

Trads and other payables 38,7784 87718404

Derivatives T 7026 702.6

Total financial liabilities 41,735.6 41,828.5
Carrying  Fair value through

value profit and loss

2016 UsD'M USD'M

Assets

Listed equity securities

= Fairvalue through OC) . 976 976

Listed debt securities

~ Fair value throut_‘n_pgﬂ or loss N A 327.0

Unlisted equity investiments

~ Fair valus through profit and loss___ 594 - 58.4

Unlistad equity invesimerits

- Feir value through OCI N - 56.3

Loans racaivable and advances 8013 03¢

Inventories 11,8377 11,5377

Trade and oth 151899 15159.9(+)

_______ 5736 57

Depasits 78 7
Cash and cash equivalents == = _3M1e 3541809
Total financial assets and inventories 31,802.6 31,802.6
Liabilities

Loans and borrowings

Floating rate borrowings _ 23200 232410

Fixed rate borr _ 19874 20387
inanc - 8.8 388
€ and other payables 89524 83526
i oneats of tolling agreement 151.8 151.8
s S T N T
Total financial liabilities 35,030.5 35,082.3

{(*)Management has determined that the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, deposits and trade
and other payables reasonably approximate their fair values because
these are mostly short-term in nature and are re-priced regularly.

The fair value of the guarantee disclosed in note 26 was calculated
based on level 3 valuation inputs taking into account current illiguid
market conditions; which include sanctions enacted by the US and FU,

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

In accordance with 1AS 37 the Group reports financial assets and
liabilities on a net basis in the consolidated statement of financial
position only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or
torealise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The financial
assets and liabilities subject 1o offsetting, enforceable master netting
and similar agreements as at 30 September 2017 and 2016 were as
follows:

Amud:nts eligible for sett off Net amounts
under netting ented
kS Amounts not Pr!sinthe
subject to statement of
Gross Amounts netting financial
Amount offset  MNet amount g1 position
2017 UsD'M USD’M UsD’m USD'M Usb'™M
Related
parties 8222 [EX)) 8131 - 813.i
Derivative
assets 674.2 {458.0) 216.2 3942 6104
Related
parties ) {751} 9] {66.0) - (66.0)
Derivative

liabilities (735.6) 458.0 (277.6) {425.0} {702.6)
— =] %00 [2778) PR

Amounts eligible for sett off Net amounts
under rietting agreements presented
Amtounts not inthe
subject ta statement of
Gross Amounts netting financial
____Amount offset Netamount Agreements position
2076 uso’m UsD'M UsD’m UsD'M UsD'M
Related
parties 914.2 23.6 890.6 - 890.6
P21k 1£3.6) 8906 — e 808
Derivative
assets $16.6 [678.6) 238.0 23586 5736
Related ) )
parties (EA)] 236 B = s &3
Derivative

lisbilities (943.6) 678.6 {265.0) {334.0) (659.0)

For the financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master
netting or similar arrangerments above, each agreement between the
Group and the counterparty allows for net settlement of the relevant
financial assets and liabilities when both elect to settle on a net basis.
In the absence of such an election, financial assets and liablities may
be settled on a gross basis, however, each party to the master netting
or simitar agreement will have the eption to settle ali such amounts
on anet basis in het event of default of the other party.

(i) Fair vaiue hierarchy

The table balow analyses the assets and liabilities carried at fair value,

by valuation method. The different levels have baen defined as follows;

* Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

* Level2:inputs other than quated prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or lizbility, either directly (ie as prices)
orindirectly (ie derived from prices).

* Level 3:inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market dats {unobservahla inputs).



F. Notes to consolidated financial statements

Level 1 classifications primarily include futures with a maturity of less
than one year. Level 2 classifications primarily include swaps and
physical forward transactions which derive their fair value primarily
from exchange quotes and readily observable broker quotes. Level 3
classifications primarily include physical forward transactions which
derive their fair value predominately from calculations that use broker
quotes and applicable market based estimates surrounding location,
quality and credit differentials. In circumstances where Trafigura
cannot verify fair value with observable market inputs (level 3 fair
values}, it is passible that a different valuation model could produce a
materially different estimate of fair value. It is Trafigura’s policy to
hedge significant market risk, therefore sensitivity to fair value
movements is limited. Trafigura manages its market risk using the

Corporate governance Financial statements

Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3 Total
Other financial liabilities Usb'm ust'm UsSD'M USD’'M
30 September 2016
Futures 15.6 - -~ 15.6
OTC derivatives - 148.9 - 148.9
Physical forwards - 1.0 2278 228.9
€ross-currency swaps - 144.2 - 144.2
Interest rate swaps - 30.9 - 30.9
Gther financial derivatives - 0.5 - 90.6
Components of tolling agreement - 151.8 . 151.8
Fixed rate borrowings - 20382 - 2,039.2

Total

156 2,454.8 2279 2,850

The overview of the fair value hierarchy and applied valuation
methods can be specified as follows:

Value at Risk (VaR) as disclosed in note 27b. 2017 2016
Listed squity securities ~ Fair value through profit or loss USD’'M usp'™m
Llevel) ievel2 Level3 Total ~level 1 Assets 19.3 976
Other finandial assets and inventories usp'™ UsD'M usi'M UsD'M Liabilities
30 September 2017 Valuation techriques  Quoted prices in an active market
Listed equity securities and key inputs:
- Fair value through OCI 193 - - 19.3 Significant None
Listed debt securities unobservable inputs:
- Fair value through profit or loss - - 4476 4476 -
Unlisted equity investments
= Fair value through profit and loss - ~ 455 45.5 2017 2016
Unlisted equity investments Listed debt securities— Fair value through profit or loss UsD'M USD’M
Cfeirvaluethroughocl - - 1226 1226 ~level 1 Assets - 151
Futures 24.4 - -~ 24.4 Liabilities N -
OTC derivatives — I 647 418 1066 Vamation techniques  Quoted prices in an active market T
Physical forwards - 2314  233.2 and key inputs: - -
Cross-currency swaps o - - 68.8 Significant . None
Interest rate swaps i - - 5.7 unobservable inputs:
Components of tolling sgreement - - 162.6
lOther‘ f-r?e)snmal derivatives - L - o 9127;; 2007 2016
owEmienes — oL - 13,926, Futures USD'M USD'M
Total 43.7 14,402.0 889.0 15,334.7 —levell Assels 24.4 241
Liabilities 21.8 15.6
levell  (evel?  Level3  Total  Valuation techniques . A
Other financial liabiliies USD'M__ UsbM _ UsOM __ usoM ;f'd Ky lnputy Quotedpricesinanactivemarket .
ignivicant
30 September 2077 unobservable inputs:  None
Futures 21.8 - . 21.8
OTC derivatives - 27.8 0.2 28.0
Pliysical forwards . i - 38 326.9 3307 2017 2016
Cross~currency swaps - 151.0 - 151.0 OTC derlvatives USD'M USD'M
Interest rate swaps = 2.5 - 2.5 —level 2 Assets 64.7 1913
Other financial de rivatives - 168.6 - 168.6 Liabilities 27.8 148.9
Fixed rate borrowings - 24832 - 2,453.2 Valuatio_n techniques Reference
Total 2.8 28069 3271 31558  andkeyinputs: prices
Significant Inputs include observable quoted prices sourced from
observable inputs: Iraded reference prices or recent traded piires indices in un
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total active market for identical assets or liabiliti
Other financial assets and inventories USD’M USD'M usD'™ UsSD'M
Een PR -
Li - ’
- Fair value Through: 976 o7.6  -Physical forwards T SO UsD't
Listed debi securities —  clevel2 A.ssaft.s. 18 65
- Fairvalue through orofit or loss 151 - 3ne 327.0 Liabllities 3.8 1.0
Untisted equity investments Valuatica_n techniques Reference
- Faii value threugh srofit and ioss - N 594 59.4  andkeyinputs: e
ted equity investments Significant Inputs include observable quoted prices sourced from
- Fair value through OC) - - 56.3 56.3 abservable inputs: traded reference prices or recent traded pri indices in an
= e —————— 1 e 241 active market for identical assets or liabilj _
- 1915 213 2131 ]
- 65 1756 1824 2017 2076
- 285 e 28.5 Cross-currency swaps usp'™M usb’™M
- 2038 S 20.8 ] —level 2 Assets 68.8 28.5
e 104.9 = 1048 ____ Liabilities 151.0 144.2
- 115377 ~  M,5377 Valuation techniques  Reference prices

1368 11,8897 6250 12,6515

and key inputs:

Significant
observable inputs:

uoted prices sourced from
es Indices in an active
iabilities,

SUed A

~



active market for identical assets or lizbilities,

e
2017 2016 inisted equity investments 2017 2016
Interest rate swaps usp'™ USD'™M ~— Fair value through OCI USD’'M usD'M
—level 2 Assets 57 20.8 ~level3 Assets 122.6 563
Liabilities 2.5 309 Liabilities - -
Valuation techniques Discounted cash flow model Valuation techniques Quoted prices obtained from the asset rmanagers of the
and key inputs: and key inputs: funds.
Significant Inputs include observable quoted prices sourced from Significant ~market illiquidity
observable inputs: exchanges or traded reference indices in an active market unobservable inputs: - price of commodities
for identical assets or liabilities. Prices are adjusted by a
discount rate which captures the tire value of money and
counterparty credit considerations. 2017 20%6
OTC derivatives UsSD'™M Usp'Mm
2017 2016 _ —level3 LA.s;Je‘r.s. 41.: 21.8
Other financial derivatives USD'M Tsp'M i ; i jailities ™ = 0 =
“level2 Assets Ty 1049 Valuation techniques Discounted valuation of cashfiows generated
— T - 8.6 98.6 and key inputs: by mean-reverting price simulations.
. - _ I'": llities LLE : Significant Mean reversion
Valuatlo_n techniques Discounted cash flow model unobservable inputs: Volatility
-and key inputs:
, Significant Inputs include observable quoted prices sourcad irom
i observable inputs: exchanges or traded reference indices in an jctive market 2017 20%
for identical assets or liabilities. Prices zre a ljusted by a
discount rate which captures the time value of maoney and Bhysical forwards UseM VST
counterparty ¢redit considerations. —level 3 Assets 231.4 1756
Liabilities 326.9 2278
Valuaticn techniques Discounted cash flow madel
2017 2016 and key inputs: }
Inventories UsSD'™M USD’M Significant ) Prices are adjusted by differentials including:
—levei 2 Assets 13,926.7 11,5377 unobservable inputs: - E?uelt{ty
e - Location
- - - _L'ab'lme_s — = An increase/decrease in one input resulting in an opposiie
Valuatlo_n techniques Quoted prices in an active mavhet premium discount on movement in another input, rasulting in ne material
and key inputs: quality and location o change in the underlying value
Significant
unobservable inputs:
Physical
forwards/  Equity/Debt
2017 2016 Uso'™ Derivatives securities Total
fixed rate borrowings UsD'™M usD'™ 1October 2016 30.5} 4275 3970
—level 2 Assets N — Total gain/{loss) recognised
B Liabilities 2.453.2 20392 inincome statement (51.3) nis 66.3
Valuation techniques Discounted cash flow model cash flows discountad at Total gain/{loss) recognised in OCI - ~6.9 5.9
and key inputs: current borrowing rates for similar instruments Invested - 728 728
Significant Disposals - {10.79} (10.7}
observable inputs: Total reatised 28.0 - 280
30 September 2017 (53.8) 614.1 560.3
2017 2016
Components of to tolling agr usp'M Usp'™M Physical
= ~ forwards/  Equity/Debt
level 2 t\ssbeltst 162.6 T USD'M Derivatives qsggurhles Total
. Ve = L] — : 1October 2015 (157.7) ©64.0 5063
v a: duf:loi?\ flzs_"'ques RS ETERCElpices Total gain/(loss) recognised
o _y pHLs: - - n in income statement 1832 (1351) 583
Significant inputs include observable quoted prices sourced frorn Total eain/(lose] erised in OCI - 123} (121
abservable inputs: traded reference prices or recent traded prices indices inan 10tk gain/(loss! recosnised in — - £t

invested - 5.5 5.5

= Dizposals - (94.8} {94.8)
Total iealised e {86.0) ey (66.0)
Listed debt securities 2017 2016 30 September 2016 (30.5) 427.5 397.0
= Fair value through profit or loss UsSb'™M UsD'M
- level A 447. 319 . . :
ovel3 Li:sbe;;ies f - There have been no transfers between fair value hierarchy Levels in

Valuation techniques
and key inputs:

Dizcounted cash flow moded

Significant
unobservable inputs:

- Forecast throughprz

~Discount rates using weighted average cost of capital
—~markel {iguidity

ting cost and capital expenditures

The resultant asset is a discounted cash flow of the
underlying throughpui. increase/decreas of the
forecasted throughput will result in an increase/decrease
ofthevalve of the s

Unlisted equity investments 2017 2036
~ Fair value through profit and loss UsD'M USD'M
~level 3 _Assets 45.5 59.4
Liabilities - -~
Valiation techniques Quoted prices cblainad [rom the ascet managers of the
ard key inputs: funds. .
Significant

unobservable inputs:

~market Iliquidity

- price of commoditias

2017. Materially all level 3 physical forwards are settled in the
next year. See note 16 for equity/debt securities,

28. Employee benefits

a. Equity participation plan

The immediate parent of the Company, Trafigura Behieer 8.V, has an
equity participation plan (EPP) which is open to empiovees of the
Group. Shares issued to employees are preference shares of Trafigura
Beheer B.Y which give rights to sconomic benefits with limited voting
rights. The founders and contrelling shareholders of the Group
represented by the Board of Directors of Trafigura Control Holdings
Pte. Lid., a parent company of Trafigura Beheer BV, in consultation
with the Beard of Directors of the Company, decide on the share
awards to be issued to employees. Annual remuneration {which
includes the equity participation awards) is subject to review by the
remuneration cemmittee of the Group.

&
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The value of the shares is based on the net asset value of an ordinary
share as set out in Articles of Association of Trafigura Beheer BV,
which the Group believes is a fair approximation of the fair value,
Shares awarded under the EPP may vest immediately or over a period
of several years.

Employees do not have the right to freely sell shares that have vested
unless Trafigura Control Holdings Pte. Ltd. has granted approval and
has refrained from its right to nominate a prospective purchaser and
make a purchase offer. Upon termination of employment, employees
must transfer all of their shares at the direction of Trafigura Control
Holdings Pte. Ltd. or hald the shares subject to further directions of
Trafigura Control Holdings Pte. Ltd.

Neither Trafigura Beheer BV. nor the Group have a legal or
constructive obligation to settle the shares held by employeesin cash.
If employment is ceased prior to the end of the vesting period the
shares will be forfeited unless otherwise determined by Trafigura
Control Holdings Pte. Ltd.

The Group’s EPP is classified as an equity-settled planin the Group's
financial statements; the fair value of the shares granted, determined
atthe grant date, is recorded in the statement of incame rateably over
the vesting period of the shares.

During 2017, 12,135 immediately vesting shares were granted to
employees representing a value of USD15.5 million (2016: 5,613
shares representing a value of USD24.0 million) and 46,555 shares
were granted with a vesting period of one to five years representing a
value of USD59.5 million (2016 28,251 shares representing a value of
USD120.8 million).

Compensation inrespect of share based payments recognised in staff
costs amounted to USD82.2 miltion in 2017 (2016: USD77.7 million).

Unrecognised staff costs in respect of rateably vesting shares expected
to be recognised from 2018 to 2021 amount to USD97.9 million at
30 September 2017 (2016:U5D107.0 million).

b. Personnel expenses

Oil& Non-Ferrous Corporate

Petroleum & Bulk and Other Total
2016 FTE FTE FTE FTE
North, Central and
South America 201 1,922 148 2,278
Europe and Africa 248 470 245 963
Asia, Middle East
and Australia 205 301 360 866
Total 654 2,700 753 4,107
29, Related parties

In the normat course of business, the Company enters into various
transactions with related parties including fixed price commitments
to sell and to purchase commodities, forward sale and purchase
contracts, agency agreements and management service agreements.
Qutstanding balances at period end are unsecured and settlement
occursincash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for
any related-party receivables or payables.

All transactions between the Cempany and its subsidiaries are
eliminated on consolidation along with any unrealised profits and
losses between its subsidiaries, associates and Joint ventures.

a. Transactions with key management personnel

{i) Key management personnel compensation

Inaddition to their salaries, the Group also provides non-cash benefits
to directors and executive officars. Executive officers also participate
inthe Group’s equity participation plan {see note 28). Compensation
of key management personnel, including all members of the Board of
Directors and Management Board, comprised of the following:

2017 2016

UsSD’'™M USD'M

Shuit-term emploves benefits 12.8 183
Post-employment bensiits 0.5 0.5
Share-based payments 29.5 22.0
Total 42.8 40.6

(ii) Key management personnel and director transactions
As at 30 September 2017 loans receivable from the members of the

2017 2016 Board of Directors and Management Board total USD10.6 million
e ';ss';: ‘;59[;"? (2016: USD11.6 million). Interest is charged on the lozns at
alargs 2nd sonuses . 2 T a 2 b ais .
[ pa—— ——— 247 250  approximately LIBOR + 1.0% and the loans are repayable within the
Pension costs - 331 154 oneto three year bracket.
Share-based paymants 82.2 777 R
= b. Other related-party transactions
Total 527.9 5135 2097 2016
Related-party receivables/(payables) UsD'M USD'M
. . : : : : Trafipura Behear BY, (47.4) 352.6
° f 5 1 shi SFCI
The average number of employees split geographically is depicted Putha ol S e
below: PT Serve Mada Sejahters - 122.5
Fartingford NV 29.6 i7.2
Oil& Non-Ferrous Carporate e, £ i
Petroleum & Bulk andPOther Total Beheer Malta Ltd (8.1} (7.2}
2017 FTE FTE FTE FTE Ecore B.V. a3 16 4
North, Central and Emeresa Minera del Caribe S.A, - 263.3 150.0_
South America 248 705 169 2,123 JINCHUAN Group Co. Ltd. 16.5 - 314
Europe and Africa : 185 406 278 869 Minas de Asuas Tefiidas, S.A.U {"MATSA") 72.6 2622
Asia, Middie East Essar Gil Lir ] 374.4 -
and Ausiraliz 257 281 395 243 Other = [ 103.0 100.9
Total 691 2,402 842 3935 oo 1,450.4 14202




2017 2016

usD'M UsD'™

Salas (mainly Puma Energy) 76271 6,697.4
Purchases 1,986.5 1,456
Terminaling & dockage fees 167.6 1481
Interest income 58.2 49.2

Transactions between related parties are made on cormmercial terms.

The below table summarises the nature of relationship and nature of

transactions entered with the related party:

Party Nature of relati ip Nature of transaction
Beheer Malta Ltd Parent company Buy back of treasury shares

Buckeye Partners LLC

Equity-accounted investee

Lease agreements

Eeore BV,

Cousin group

Cost recharges,
trading and hedging

Empresa Minera
del Caribe SA

Equity~-accounted investee

Financing and
trading agreement

Essar Oil Limited

Eqguity-accounted investee

Financing and
trading agreement

Farringford NV

Ultimate parent

Loans and cost recharzes i

IINCHUAN Group Co. Ltd,

Equity-accounted investee

Trading agreement

Minas de Aguas Tefidas,
S.A U (“MATSA")

Equity-accounted investee

Financing and
trading agreement

Porta Sudeste dc Brasil S.A.

Eauity-accounted investes

Loans and cost recharpes

Puma Energy Holding

Equity-accounted investee

fimancing and
trading agreement

Trafigura Beheer BY.

Parent company

Loans and cost recharges

Alist of consolidated subsidiaries and associates is included in note 32.

30. New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, which
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

* IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers including

arnendments to IFRS 15, effective 1 January 2018

- IFRS 16 Leases, effective 1 January 2019

= AnnualImprovements toIFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle (Issuad December
2016), effective 1 January 2017

+ Amendments to 1AS 12 Income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses, effective 1 January 2017

* Amendments to 1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows — Disclosure
Initiative, effective 1 January 2017

* Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions, effective
TJanuary 2018

« Amendments to IFRS4 Insurance contracts — regarding the
implementation of IFRS 9 Financial instruments, effective 1 January
2018

+ AmendmentstoAS 43 Investment property — relating to transfers
of investment property, effective 1 lanuary 2018

* IFRS 17 Insurance contracts - standard replaces IFRS 4, effective
1January 2021

- IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance considerations
- foreign currency transactions or parts of transactions, effective
1January 2018

+ IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments— recognition and
measurement of uncertain income tax treatments, effective
1 January 2019

In 2015 the Group early adopted IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments,

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. Trafigura is
investigating the impact on IFRS 15.IFRS 16 Leases is expected to have
a significant impact on the balance sheet of the Group and the
presentation of lease cost in the statement of income.

The following [FRSs have been applied for the first time in 2017 which
did not have a significant impact on the financial statements.

+ IFRS14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts, effective 1January 2016. Will
not be endorsed for use in the EU

« Annualimprovements 2074: amendments to IFRS 5 Non-current
assets hield for sale and discontinued operations regarding methods
of disposal ~ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments regarding service
contracts—{AS 19 Employee benefits regarding discount rates - IAS
34 Interim financial reporting regarding disclosure of information,
effective 1 January 2016

+ Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements - Accounting
for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations, effective
1January 2016

+ Amendments to JAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and 1AS 41
Agriculture — Bearer Plants, effective 1 January 2016

» Amendments to I1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and 1AS 38
Intangible Assets ~ Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation, effective 1 lanuary 2016

* Amendments to |AS 27 Separate Financial Statements - Equity
Method in Separate Financial Statements, effective 1 January 2016

* Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in other entities and 1AS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Applying the
Consolidation Exception, effective 1 january 2016

< Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Disclosure Initiative, effective 1 January 2016

31. Subsequent events

On 14 November 2017, the Company launched a tap of its recent
USD600 miilion perpetual bond issued on 21 March 2017, and raised
USD200 millionat a 103.625% price. Yield of the bond at issuance was
at5.912%. The bond will be consolidated and form a single series with
the USDE00 million perpetual securities issued on 21 March 2077
which is listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange.

On 2 October 2017, the Company closed a new syndicated revolving
credit facility of USD1.99 billion replacing the maturing RCF facilities
in 2017. The new Facilities comprise a 365-day USD-denorminated
revolving credit facility {USD1,175 million}, a three-year USD term loan
facility (USD435 million), as well as 2 Renrinbi {CNH)-denominated
ane-year tranche {USD380 million). The Facilities will be used for
general corporate purposes.
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32. Consolidated subsidiaries and associates Princpal consoldated i =% Owned 5% Owned . Wﬂ '*0';3"’
sen ) N a operating subsidiaries Lotation 20° 16

For entities where legal 5hareh9l§;pg is less than 50%, the Group h‘?'s Traligura Corpus Christi Huldings LLC __ United States 100.0%  1000%

consolidated based on the definition of control under IFRS. Certain Trafigura Derivatives Limited United Kingdom __ 100.0%  100.0%

entities with a percentage of effective economic interest below Trafigura DMCC United Arab 100.0%  1000%

7 ) . s : : Emirates .
SO % are held through intermediate holding companies controlied by Trafigun Evoeey oo SR e e s
the Group. Trafigura Eurasia LLC Russian 100.0%  100.0%
Federation

Principal consolidated % Owned % Owned Traligura Funding S.A. Luxembourg 100.0%  100.0%

operating subsidiaries Location 2017 2016 Trafigura Holding GmbH Switzerland 100.0%  100.0%

AngoRecycling Industry, Lda. Angola 250%  250%  Traiigura Holdings Limited Malta 160.6%  Wi0.0%

Boyaca Navigation Inc. Panama 100.0%  100.0% Trafigura Holdings Pre. Ltd. Singapore 100.0%  100.0%

C.1 Trafigura Petroleum Colombia S.A.S  Colombia 100.0%  100.0% Trajigura india Private Limited India 100.0%  100.0%

Catalina Huaneca Sociedad Minera 5.A.C.  Peru 100.0%  100.0% Trafigura Investment (China) Co,, Ltd. China 100.0%

DT Trading Lid. Bahamas 50.0%  30.0%  Trafigura Limited United Kingdom __100.0%

DTS Commertial Pte. Ltd. Singapore 200%  50.0% Trafigurz Maritime Logistics Pte. 1.td. Singapore 100.0%

DTS Refining Pte. Ltd. Singapore 500%  500%  Trafipura Maritime Ventures Limited Malta 100.0%

DTS Shipping Venturss Pte. Ltd Singapoie 50.0% 50.0% Trafigura Marketing Inc. United States 100.0%,

Edenfield Procurement DMCC United Arab 100.0%  100.0% Trafipura Marketing Ltd. Canada 100.0%

. i Crnirates — = Trafigura Metates Basicos S.A.C. Peru 100.0%  100.0%

Empresa de Recotha de Residuos de Angola 25.0% 25.0% Trafigurs Mexico, S.A. de CV. Mexico 100.0%  100.0%

Angola, Lde. (Errzngal) = : _ - L :
Fangchenggang Guo Tong Import and China 100.0%  100.0% Trafigira Mongolia LLC Mengolia 100.0%  100.0%

Export Co. Ltd. Trafigura Nat Cas Limited Malts 100.0%  100.0%
Galena Asset Mznagement BV, Netherlands 100.0%  100.0% Traligurz Overseas Projects Ple. Lid, Singapore 100.0%
Galens Asset Management Limited United Kingdom  100.0%  100.0% Trafigura Peru S.A.C. Peru 100.0%
Galena Asset Management SA Switzerland 100.0%  100.0%  Trafigura Pte. Ltd. Sinzapore 100.0%
Galena Investments 2 Limited Malca 100.0%  100.0% Trafigura Services Pte. Ltd. Singapore
‘Genghis Holding Company Limited Malta 100.0%  100.0%  Irafigura Services South Africa (Pty) Ltd. _ South Africa
Iberian Minerals Corp. Switzerland 100.0%  100.0% Trafipura Trade Holdings B.V. Netherlands
tmpala Holdings Limited Malta 100.0%  100.0%  Trafigura Trade Investments B.v. Netherlands
Impala Logistics (Shanghal) Company Chinz 1000%  1000%  Jrafigura Trading (Furope) Sarl Switzerland
Lirnited Trafigura Trading LLC United States
Impala Middle East General Warchousing  United Areb 100.0% Trafigura Trading Yangshan Co.. Ltd China
LiLc. Emirates Trafigura Ukraine LLC Ukraine
[Impala Terniinals Barrancabermeja S.A.  Colombia 100.0% Trafigura Veniures Trading Ltd, Mauritios
Impala Terminals Burnside LLC United States 100.0% ﬁaﬁgum Ventures V BV, Netherlands
Impala Terminals Colombia SAS Colombia 100.0% Urion Holdings {Maita) Limited Maita .
hmipala Terminals DRC SARL ﬁg'rlng:érg;i 100.0% Urion Mining Initernztional BV, Netherlands 1001.0%
Republic of the
tmpala Terminals Group B V. Netherlands 100.0%
Impala Terminls Mexico, S.A. de CY. _ Mexio " 300.0% g;%ﬁ‘f;f,:“d Joint ventures carried at net = ud °‘;‘(‘)“7' 26 °“;:f:
AP - - - g 1

\ptE TemnR gl EastTIF HEHEde o KTALAYA MINING PLC (previously knovn
Impala Terminals Pern S ALC Per 100.07, a5 EMED MINING PUBLIC LIMITED) Cyprus 22.0% 22.0%

pala Terminals u = — —— ‘ - - —=
tmpala Terminals UK Limited United Kingdom  100.0% Buckeye Te‘xas Bariness ,L—L»"' United States 200 Z0.0%
FWL (Luxemboarg) S 31, " Luxemboure 100.0% el e TUSECHHIBEISTA: . . .
LY : & 2 {Jotnt venture) Caribbean 49.0% 48.0%
IWL Capital LLC Marshalt [slands ~ 100.0% Guangyi |inchuan Non-ferrous
IWL Holding B.v. Netherlands 100.0% Metals Co., Ltd China 20.0%
1L Holdings {Luxembourg) S.arl. lLuxembourg 100.0% Mineracio Morro do Ipé S.A. Brazit =
WL Investments {Luxembourg) S.arl Luzembourg 160.0% Napoil Limited Bermuda 5
WL River Inc. Panama - MNyrstar NV, Beleium
LYKOS India Private Limited Indiz . Purto Sudeste do Brasit S.4A. (Joint venture) Brazil -
Manatee Halding Company Limited alta PT Servo Meds Sejahterz Indsnesia B
NG Equipments, S.A. de CV. = Mexico Puma Energy Holdings Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Ningbe Trans-Cozl Trading Co., Ltd. China Tendril Yentures Pre. Ltd. {joint venture)  Singapore -
Petromining S.A. Argentina TM Mining Yertures, S.L. {Joint venlure)  Spain 50.0% 50.0%
Purna Energy Holdings Malts Limited Mal Transporiadora Callao S.A. Pery - 30.0% 30.0%
Seal Sands Gas Transportation Limited United Kingdom
?:aadf:ﬁgn(l‘(;fxd’:féLﬁ Energy and Resource Ching 33. Board of Directors
TAG ECO Recycling {UK] Limited United Kingdom  100.0% The Board of Directors

24 Inc. United States 100.0% Christopher Cox Mark frwin

side Gaspol t Linvited United Kingdom 100.0% N ozt Lerecca _Piegre Lorinet
Asgenting 100.0% ; Sipho Schar i Andrew Vickerman

§
Netherlands Mike Wainwriglit leremy Weir

pura Canada General Partnarship
afigura Chile Linitada
figurs Coal Colombia S.A.S.

Singapore, 7 December 2017,
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F. Notes to consolidated financial statements

2017
Machinery and equipment mainly consists of specialised industrial
equipment.

In 2017 the Group finalised the sale and leaseback transactions of 17
vessels entered in 2016 by delivering the last three vessels. The vessels
have been leased back from periods ranging between eight and 10
years. The sale and leaseback transaction generated a total
consideration in 2017 of USD134.2 million and a netnilresult. The sale
and leaseback transaction can be classified as an operational lease,
The lease agreements are in line with market rent for longer-term
charters. The future charter commitments of these leases are included
in the outstanding commitments under note 26.

Main investments during 2017 relate to the Colombian port project
UsD71.7 million, vessels USD103.4 million and the construction of a
splitter unit in Mexico USD54.4 million. The Colombian project relates
to the development of multimodal transport activities in Colombia,
thatincludes an inland portat Barrancabermeja and fluvial equipment
providing multimedal logistics services linking the industrial heartland
tothe Caribbean ports Cartagena and Barranquilla via the Magdalena
River. During the ramp-up of the project, the Colombian market
environment for oil products has been challenging and combined with
insufficient draft on the Magdalena River, For the assessment of the
regular impairment determination, the Colombia project represents
one CGU as the specific assets do not have independent associated
cash flows. The value in use is calculated based upon the discounted
cash flows associated with the assets, This calculation incorporates all
aspects of the Colombia Multimodal project including expected
revenues and relevant costs. Based on the projections until 2044,
which corresponds to the end of the concession, and using a discount
rate of 9.77%, the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount
of USDT,065 million of the assets by USD251 million and therefore no
impairment was required. The sensitivity analyses on the valuations
show that an increase/decrease in the discount rate of +/-0.5% points
has an impact on the recoverable amount of minus USD68 million/
plus USD73 million. A change in the EBITDA of 10% causes a change
of USD138 million to the recavarable amount.

During 2017, assets with a value of USD66.3 million {mainly land and
buildings) from three DT subsidiaries were transterred to assets held
for sale,

Included in the Other fixed assets category is assets under
construction, which relates to assets not yetin use, Total balance at
30 September 2017 amounted to USD194. 2 million (2016: USD618.7
miltion). Once the assets under construction come into operation they
are reclassified to the appropriate asset category and it is from that
point that they are depreciated. Decrease is mainly driven by a change
Intransaction type of vessels {see note 26). Further other fixed assets
mainly consist of small equipment, computer hardware, software
licences, office equipment and refurbishment,

<o
IS

The net book value of property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases at 30 Septermnber 2017 was USD20.6 million (2016:
USD38.8 million),

Certain items of property, plant and equipment are pledged as
collateral for an amount of USD496.2 million (2016: USD545.9
mitlion).

Depreciation expenses are included in generat and administrative
expenses. impairment charges are included in other income and
expense,

During the financial year ended 30 September 2017, the Company has
capitalised borrowing cost of a total amount of USD12.3 million under
other fixed assets (2016: USD35.8 million} which mainly relates to the
multimodal logistics and infrastructure project along the Magdelena
tiver in Colombia. These borrowing costs are based upon a
capitalisation rate of 5.50% - 8.00% of the eligible assets.

2016

In 2016 the Group entered into sale and leaseback transactions of 17
vessels which have been leased back from periods ranging between
eight and 10 years. The sale and leaseback transactions generated a
total consideration in FY2016 of USD449.0 million and a gain of
USD16.1 million. The sale and leaseback transactions qualify as an
operational lease. The gain is accounted for under other operating
income. The lease agreements are in line with market rent for longer-
term charters. The future charter commitments of these leases are
included in the outstanding commitments under note 26,

During the regular assessment to determine asset impairment, the
Group decided to record an impairment of USD42.7 million on non-
financial assets related to the Group's railway operation in Colombia..
The operations have been negatively impacted by a number of safety
and security concerns, a complex economic environment and a
consequent lack of sustainable profit growth in the current context.
The investment has been impaired up until the value we expect fo
receive on the remaining asset. In 2017 these assets have beensold to
athird party.

f§70\



12. Intangible assets

Other
USD'M Goodwill Licences  intangible assets Total
Cost

Balance at 1 October 2016 81 36.4 343.2 2577
Additiong - 20 502 522
Reclassifications - 0.7 15.5 16.2
Effect of movernents in exchanse rates - (04) 0.4 -
Disposat: - - {1.3) (1.3)
Divestment of subsidiaries - {0.2) {14.6} (14.8)
Balance at 30 September 2017 8.1 38.5 393.4 440.0
Amortisation and impairment losses

Balance at 1 October 2016 o 2.2 21 1529 1572
Amortisation for the period - - 03 630 633
Impairment = = 0.2 0.2
Effect of movements in exchange rates —y = - -~ - He
Rerlassifications - {01) 16.5 T 164
Disposals . - {0.5) (0.5
Divestment of subsiciarias - N 0.3} {0.3)
Balance at 30 September 2017 22 2.3 231.8 236.3
Net book vaiue at 30 September 2017 5.9 36.2 161.6 203.7

Other

UsD'M Goodwill Licences _intangible assets Total
Cost

Balance at 1 October 2015 81 40.5 3061 354.7
Additions R o i SN - 5.8 45.8
Reclassificaticns o . - &7 6.7
Effect of movernenis in exchanfmes == T — - 13 (3.0} 07
Disposals - (5.4) (12.7) (17.8]
Balance at 30 September 2016 81 36.4 343.2 3877
Amortisation and impairment losses

Batance at 1 October 2015 2.2 1.9 104.8 1089
Arnortisation for the period - 0.2 561 56.3:
Impairment - 54 20 74
Effect of movements in exchange rates - - (0.9 (0.9)
Reclassifications . = N 23 2.3
Disposals . —— - (5.4) 1.4) {16.8)
Balance at 30 September 2016 2.2 21 152.9 157.2
Net book value at 30 September 2016 5.9 34.3 190.3 230.5

Goodwill is the only intangible asset with an indefinite life. All other
intangible assets are amortised as follows:

» Licence fees paid are amortisad evenly over their respective periods,
for which the licences have been granted, generally not exceeding
10 years.

» Other intangible assets are amoriised evenly over their estimated
useful economic life, Other intangibles mainly consist of software
of USD146.8 millior (2016:USD155.4 million) and payments made
under exclusivity contracts with clients for petroleum fuels and
lubricants.

Amortisation expenses are included in general and administrative
expenses. Impairment charges are included in other income and
expense Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment
when impairment indicators exist. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit (CGU} level.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is alfocated to the
CGUs, or groups of CGUSs.
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13. Equity-accounted investees

2007 2016

UsSD’M USD'™M

Opening Balance - 1 October 2016 3,464.4 31675
Effect of movements in exchange rates 5.9 (42.5)

Additions 375.1 5539
Disposals {60.4 {447)
impairments (4.2 {250.0)

Share of net income/(loss) (232.2) 24.3
Dividends received (35.8) 13.7}
Other (24.9) (1.0
Closing Balance - 30 September 2017 3,487.9 3,464.4

2017

The Group’s share of profit in its equity-accounted investees for the
year was aloss of USD232.2 mitlion (2016: USD94.3 million gain). The
positive share of income in our investments of Puma and MATSA of
USD81.6 million was offset against losses in Porto Sudeste and
Nyrstar of USD317.6 million,

tn 2017, the Group received dividends of USD35.8 miltion from its
investments in equity-accounted investees {2016: USD13.7 million).

On 37 july 2017 the Group sold its 46.5% stake in PT Serve Meda
Sejahtera (Servo), an Indonesia-based business with strategic
logistical assets which enable efficient transportation of unprocessed
Coal from local mines to the river port. The total consideration was
U5D226 million and included a USD158 million repayment of
outstanding loans to Servo. The result on this transaction amounts
USD3.0 million which is offset by the share of net loss during the year
until the date of the transaction, As part of the sale agreement, the
Group granted a vendor loan of USD68.9 million which bears interest
at10%. Theloanisintotal, including accrued interest, repayable on 31
Juty 2024 (see also note 15).

On18 August 2017, an investment consortium comprised of Trafigura,
private investment group United Capital Partners (UCP) and Oil
Holdings completed the acquisition of a 49% stake in Mumbai-hased
Essar Oil Limited (EQL) for a total consideration of USD3,880 million
including acquisition costs. The acquiring entity, Kesani Enterprises
Company Limited (Kesani), has financed the acquisition through a
non-recourse loan facility and capital contributions by the consortium.
The acquisition includes the Vadinar oil refinery and storage and
impert/export facilities, as well as a domestic retail netwark business
consisting of over 3,500 retail service stations. The 20Mtpa super-
refinery, with a Nelson complexity index of 11.8, islocated on strategic
shipping routes to demand centres in the Far East and close to Middle
East sources of production. India is one of the world’s most important
sources of growth in energy demand and the deregulation of pricing
of the Indian retail market is expected to bring potential growth
opportunities for EOL's retail network. As of the balance sheet date,
the acquisition accounting, including the determination of the
acquisition-date fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities and
calculation of goodwill to be recognised inthe carrying amount of the
investment in accordance with the provisions of |AS 28, is provisional.
Trafigura’s 49% investment in Tendrii Ventures Pte Ltd, the joint
venture of the investment consortium that owns Kesani amoeunted to
USD270.3 million as at 30 September 2077 (original consideration
paid in cash USD291.7 million). Terdril Ventures Pte Ltd is a jointly
controlled entity which qualifies as a joint venture.

During the regular assessment to determine asset impairment or
whethera previously recorded impairment may no longer be required,
the Group concluded that in relation to Trafigura’s investmentin Porto
Sudeste do Brasil SA no impairment was required in addition to the
impairment recorded in prior year. Impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
which the company has defined as the higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal. As the majority of the specific assets
related to Porto Sudeste do not have independent associated cash
flows, Porto Sudeste represents one CGU. The recoverable amount of
the investment in Porto Sudeste was measured based on value-in-use
which is determined using a discounted cash flow model for the port
{level 3). The discount rate used in determining the value in use was
7.73% (2016: 8.2%). The recoverable amount of the investment in
Porto Sudeste was determined to be USD102 million. Thevalue-in-use
methodology inherently includes elements of judgement and
estimations in relation to projected future throughput volumes and
associated port fees. Management has made these judgements based
on their best estimates and the information available. The sensitivity
analyses on the valuations show that an increase/decrease in the
discount rate of +/-0.5% points has an impact on the recoverable
amount of minus USD126 million/plus USD141 million. A changeinthe
throughput volume of the port of 5% causes a change of USD61
million to the recoverable amount and a change in the average port
fees of 5% has an impact of USD99 million,

Furthermore during 2017 Trafigura made additional investments of
USD56.1 million in Porto Sudeste, USD9.0 million in Buckeye Texas
Partners LLC and a new investment in an Iron ore mine in Brazil of
USDT1.0 million.

2016

In October 2015, Trafigura made an additional capital contribution of
UsD275 million in Puma Energy Holdings Pte. Ltd. to enable further
growth. During 20186, the company invested USD141.6 million in a
copper smelting company in China. In February 2016, Trafigura
subscribed to the rights offering by Nyrstar N.V. allowing it to increase
its investment in Nyrstar N.V. by USD70 million. Also during 2016
Trafigura made an additional investment of USD36.9 million in PT
Servo Meda Sejahtera, a coal trading partner located in Indonesia,

The reduction in equity-accounted investees in 2016 wasas aresult of
the sale of aminor stake in Puma Energy Holding Pte. Ltd. of USD41.8
rillion. Besides that an impairment of USD250 million was made on
Trafigura's equity investment in Porto Sudeste, as described below,

Due tc the continued low iron ore price environment, strong
competition or: logistics fees and low international freight rates, the
Group decided that an impairment of USD256.0 million inrelation to
Trafigura’s investment in Porto Sudeste do Brasil SA was required.
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Percentage  Percentage  Onlythe individually significant associates Puma Energy Holdings Pte.

Placeof attrbobly sttbunbis Ltd. and TM Mining Ventures 5.1 (MATSA} are shown separate from
Name A Actiies SR 2RI 4 other associates,
Atalaya Mining PLC Cyprus Mining 22.0% 22.0%
(Prev"aug[y known Puma Energy Holdings Pte. Ltd. TM Mining Ventures, S.L.
as EMED Mining 2017 2016 2017 2016
Public Limited) UsD'M USD'M USD'M USD'M
Bucheye Texas United States Terminalling 20.0% 20.0% Non current assets 5,192.8 50191 1,514.1 15816
Partners LLC : e . Cutror sssels 2,415.0 2.070.9 207.7 722
Cirre e tdjénmel Caribbean  Mining 490%  980% oo curent isbTiier 27640 — 20m8 579.5 7981
W China Srelter 30.0% 30.0% Curren liabilities 2,797.0 2,57%.0 441.2 h';O.s
Non-ferrous Metals Reventie 14,178.3 12,7256 593.5 3105
Co, Lid Profit/{ioss)
Mineracéo Morro Brazil Mining 25.5% ~  fortheyear 127.5 120.4 49.8 {33.0)
do Ipé S.A. Dividends paid 29.9 = - -
Napoil Limited Bermuda Oil trading 49.0% 49.0% Other comprehensive
Nyrstar NV, Eelgium Mining, Metal  24.6%  246%  income o 30.9 {109.7) (73.3) 3.2
processing Total comprehensive
Portn Sudeste do Brasil  Brazii Port services 49.2% 47.4%  income 158.4 W7 (235) (2
S.A. (Juint venture}
PT Serva Meda Sejahtera  Indonesia Coal trading - 46.5% Net assets 2,047.4 19003 791.2 8148
Puma Energy Singapore Mid- and 49.6% 49.6% Trafigura's ownarship
Holdings e, Ltd. downstream interest 49.6% 49.6% 50.0% 50.0%
oil activities Acquisition fair
Tendril Ventires Pte. Ltd. Singapore Oil refinery, 49.0% - value and other
{Joint venture} terminal and adjusiments 1,100.3 11173 - ~
retailingof fuel Carrying value 2,13.5 2,059.8 395.6 4073
T Mining Ventures, Spain Mining 50.0% 50.04%
S.L (Jeint venture| o .
Transportadora Pery Transportation 30.0% 30.0% 2017 2016
Callag 5.A. Other assaciates Usp'™M USD'M
Assets o 5,700.8 3,806.5
Liabilities - 4,718.8 28660
5 ) 5 52:,‘; U:;‘: Reverue - S 2,009.9 13289
Oai{n:n I Petroleum Segmen Profit/[loss) for the year (300.6) (1659}
Puma Energy . . -
Holdings Pte. Ltd, Qil and Petroleum 2113.5 2,059.8 The amount OFCOI’POI'atE guarantees in favour of associates and jOin’t
Tendrii Ventures Pte. Ltd. ventures as at 30 September 207 was USD101 million {2016: nil).
{Essar Oii Limited) - QOit and Petrolaum 2703 -
tel <7} 3¢
Egrt';ex'es E.éas Oii and Petroleum 270.9 276.0 14. Prep ayments
Napoil Limited CiandPetroleus 87 gy  Underthe prepayments category we account for the prepayments of
Others Qif and Petroleurn )2 11 commodity deliveries. The contractually outstanding prepayments
Total 2.664.6 23456 amount decreases in size with each cargo that is delivered, until

maturity. Once the contractually agreed total cargo has been fully

Metals and Minerals: . . e
delivered, the prepayment agreement falls away leaving no remaining

TM Mining Ventuies,

S.L. (MATSA) Metals end Minerals 3956 473 contractual obligations on Trafigura or the supplier. The Company
Porto Sudeste da Brasil p . 5 : . .
SA _ Metals and Minerals 65.4 2567 'moniters the commodity prx'ce.s in relation 'to ‘the‘ prePayment
Nyrstar NV, Metals and Minerals 9.7 1813 contractsand manages the credit risk together with its financial assets
CGuangxi finchuan as described in note 27, The Prepayments are split in non-current
Non-farrous Metals Co., . e .
Lid Metals sind Minerals g ___ iz prepayments {due > 1 year} and current prepayments {due < 1year). A
ATALAYA MINING PLC portion of the long-term prepayments, as well as short-term
g’;"f,‘:,’:gs,lz,m%{’ prepayments, is on a limited recourse basis. Interest on the
PUELIC LIMITED} * Metals and Minerals 63.7 §3.8 prepayments is added to the prepayments balance.
PT Servo Mada Sejahtera Metals and Minerals - 562

- Metals and Minerals 168 8.8

portadera
Callao 5.4, ___ Metals snd Minerals 8.4 8.7
Mineragzo Morro
dolps S.A, Metals 2nd Minerals 9.2 =
Others Metals and Minerals _ 128 69
Total 810.3 1109.4

All other segments:
Others Lorporate and Others 3.0 84
Total 3,487.9 3,464.4
* Usted investments. Fair valuz as 6n 30 Seprembzr 2017:
Nyrstar NY. 182.9 166.7

ATALAYA MINING FLC {previously known
a3 EMED MINING PUBLIC LIMITED)

21

39 28.8
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F. Notes to consolidated financial statements

15. Loans receivable

2007 2016

UsSD'™M USD’'M

Loans to associates and related partizs 326.4 4339
Other non-current loans receivable 344.3 367.4
Total 670.7 801.3

Loans to associates and related parties include a shareholder loan
receivable from Minas de Aguas Tefidas {MATSA) of USDB2.6 million
{2016: USD251.8 million). This loanis held to collect contractual cash
flows and generates a fixed income for the Group. During 2017,
USD168.1 million repayment has been received on this loan. Also
included under this line is a loan receivable from Empresa Minera del
Caribe 5.A. of USD230.0 million {2016: USD140.0 million}.

In determining the impairment provision on loans granted to
associates, these loans form part of the net investment inthe associate
and the impairment test has been based upon the total consideration
on these associates. Based on these assessments no impairment
needs to be recorded at 30 September 2017.

Other non-current loans receivables include various loans which are
granted to counterparties which the Company trades with. During
2077 Trafigura granted avendor [oan with a balance of USD70.1 million
as per 30 September 2017 to the buyer of our share in PT Servo Meda
Sejahtera {Servo) as described in note 13. This line also includes the
long-term part, amounting to USD274.8 million, of the debt
agreement with the Angolan Ministry of Finance as described in note
6. Considering the diversity of these loans, Trafigura decided to assess
the Expected Credit Loss (‘ECV) of these loans individually based on
different scenarios of probability of default (‘PD’) and loss given
default ('LGD'). Based upon the individual analysis of these loans, the
recorded expected losses on these loans amount to USD3.3 million
{2016: USDZ.5 million).

16. Other investments

2017 2016
USD’'M UsSD'M
Listed equity securities
= Fair value through 00 —— 19.3 976
Listed debt securities
~ Fair value through profit or loss 447.6 3270
Unlisted equity invesiments
= Fair value through profit and loss 45.5 59.4
Unlisted equity invastiments
~ Fair vatue through GC 122.6 56.3
Total 635.0 5403

The Group's long-term investments consist of listed equity securities,
listed debt securities and unlisted equity securities. The listed equity
securities have no fixed maturity or coupon rate. The fair values of
listed equity investments are based on quoted market prices while the
fair value of the unlisted equity securities is determined basad on a
Level 3 valuation as prepared by management, '

The increase in other investments is mainly due tc the upward
valuation of the debt instrument related to Porto Sudeste (USD135.7
millien), additional investment in Galena Funds {(USD68.6 million)
offset by the sales of the listed Chinalco Mining shares (USD75.9
millien) and USD15 1 million of listed Nyrstar bonds.

The listed debt securities consist of a financial instrument related to
the investment in Porto Sudeste do Brasil SA which is accounted for
under equity accounted investees in note 13. These instruments are
held to collect cash flows. Since the payments on these debt
instruments are dependent on the port’s throughput, they are
classified as fair value through profit or loss. Since the free float of
these listed debt instruments is extremely thin and in the absence of
normal market activity, it has been concluded that no active market
exists and therefore the fair value is determined using a level 3
valuation. The holders of the instrument are entitled to a fixed royalty
payment per metric tonne processed by the port and therefore have
direct exposure to the business risks of Porto Sudeste. As aresult, the
fair value of this instrument is based on a discounted cash flow model
of the port in which the business plan of Porto Sudeste is reflected.
Revenues are calculated over a period endingin 2064 and throughput
volumes are held constant from 2021 enwards. In this calculation,
nanagement used a discount rate of 12.5% (2016: 12.58%). Dueto the
limited liquidity of the port asset, a discount factor of 10% is applied
(2016: 26%) relating to the lack of marketability. This inputis based en
a put aption model and volatilities of comparable cornpanies. The
level 3 valuation of the debt securities increased as aresult ofimproved
projections of the throughput of the port and a decrease in the
discount factor relating to lack of marketability leading to a value of
the debt securities value of USD447.6 million. The sensitivity analysis
on this valuation shows that an increase/decrease of the throughpus
of the port of 5% has an impact on the value of USD2? million, an
increase/decrease of the discount rate by 0.5% points has an impact
on the valuation of USD27 million. A change in the discount rate due
to lack of marketability by 5% points has an effect of USD25 million
on the valuation,

Throughout the financial year, no dividend has been recognised
related to the equity securities held at 30 September 2017. The net
change in fair value in equity securities measured at fairvalue through
other comprehensive income {'0Cr) was positive USD8.6 miltion
(2016: negative USD31.7 million). A cumulative gain of USD18.2
million (2016: USD66.0 million loss} was transferred within equity
from OC to retained earnings due te disposals of items valued at fair
value through OCI.

17. Inventories

2017 2016
Carrying amount USD'M UsD'M
Storage inventories = 8,508.1 _ Fbsed
Floating inveritories ilnT et S 54037 23557
Supplies o 49 129
Total 13,926.7 11,5377

Asat 30 September 2017 (and 30 September 2016) allof the inventory
has either been pre-sold or hedged. The Group is committed to
financing its day-to-day trading activity through self-liquidating
transactional lines, whereby the financing banks retain security onthe
goods purchased. The percentage of total inventories financed in this
way is carefully monitored.
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18. Trade and other receivables

2017 2016
usp'M UsD'™
Trade debtors 7,148.3 6,725.7
Provision for bad and doubtful debts {55.1) (56.6)
Accrued turnover [l 7,406.1 5403.7
Broker balances - 1,011.0 12121
Other debtors 340.9 333.2
Laans to third parties 293.3 2173
Loans to related parties —— 1.9 104.2
Other taxes 4076 2225
Prepaid expenses 139.2 147.2
Related parties 8131 880.6
Total 17,506.3 15,199.9

All financial instruments included in trade and other receivables are
held to collect the contractual cash flows, Furthermore, the cash flows
that the Group receives on these instruments are solely payments of
principal and interest.

Of the USD7,148.3 million trade debtors, USD2,142.7 million (2016;
USD1,516.0 million) had been sold on a non-recourse basis under the
securitisation programime. Of the USD812.1 million receivables on
related parties USD124.2 million (2016: nil) had been sold on a non-
recourse basis under the securitisation programme Refer to note 19.
As at 30 September 2017, 14.6% (2016: 17.7%) of receivables were
between 1-60 days overdue, and 12.6% (2016: 17.8%) were greater
than 60 days overdue. Such receivables, although contractually past
their due dates, arz not considered impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality of the relevant counterparty, and
the amounts are still considered recoverable taking into account
customary payment patterns and in many cases, offsetting accounts
payable balances. Trafigura applied the simplified methad in assessing
expected credit losses. The accounts receivables have been divided in
aging buckets and based on 3 historical analysis on defaults and
recovery rates a percentage for expected credit losses has been
determined. Trafigura manages to limit credit losses by renegotiating
contractsin the case of a default. From the above analysis, an expected
creditloss as at 30 September 2017 of USD4.7 million has been taken
into account (30 September 2016: USD5.9 million). The loss allowance
provision at 30 Septerber 2017 amounts to LISD55.1 million (2016:
USD56.6 million). The primary character of this provision is that it is
inline to resolve demurrage claims and commercial disputes with our
clients. Accrued turnover represent receivable balances for sales
which have not yet been invoiced. They have similar risks and
characteristic as trade debtors. Trade debtors and accrued turnover
have similar cashflow characteristics and are therefore considered to
be a homogeneous group of financial assets.

19. Securitisation programme

The Group operates a Securitisation Programme which enables the
Gioup to sell eligible receivables. The securitisation vehicle, Trafigura
Securitisation Finance plc,, is consolidated as part of the Group and
consequently the receivables sold to the programme are included
within the consolidated trade debtor balances.

Overtime the external funding has increased significantly in size while
incorporating a longer term committed funding element, principally
through the issuance of Medium Term Notes {MTN}, as well as
retaining a significant proportian of variable funding purchased by
bank sponsored conduits.

As at 30 September 2017, the maximum available amount of external
funding of the programme was USD2,535.9 million (2016:USD1,888.0
million). The utilised external funding of the programme as at
30 September 2017 was USD2,517.4 million (2016: USD1,485.0
million).

The available external funding of the securitisation prograrnme
consists of:

2017 2016

Interest rate Maturity usD'’m USD'M
AAAMTN  Libor+0.95% 2017 - Qctaber _279.0 279.0
BBBMTN  Libor+2.25% 2017 - October 21.0 21.0
AAAMTN  Libor+0.85% 2020~ june 235.0 -
AAAMIN  249% 2020 - Juna 230.0 -
BBE MTiN Libor+ 1.70% 2020 = June 35.0 -
AAAVEN  Seenote Various throughout the year 1,525.4 1.425.4
BBB VEN See note Various throughout the year 14.7 1072
Seniar
subordinated
debi LIBOR + 4.25% 2020 - March 95.8 55.4
Total 2,535.9  1,888.0

a. Interest rate note

The rate of interest applied to the AAA Variable Funding Notes is
defined in the securitisation facility documentation and is principally
determined by the demand for Commercial paper issued by six bank-
sponsored conduits. The Group benchmarked the rata provided
against overnight Libor. In the case of the rate of interest applicable to
the BBB Variable Funding Notes, the rate of interest is principally
determined by the liquidity of the interbank market.

b. Maturity note

The maturity of the AAA Variable Funding Notes has been staggered
s0as to diversify the maturity profile of the AAA funding. This aims to
mitigate the ‘liquidity wall’ risk associated with a single maturity date
for a significant funding amount.
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20. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group and earn interest at the respective short-
term deposit rates. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents
approximates the carrying value. An amount of USD103.6 million
{2016: USD43.1 miltion) of cash at bank is restricted including
Festrictions that require the funds to be used for a specified purpose
andrestrictions that limit the purpose for which the funds can be used
unless fixed asset construction invoices are presented to the banks.

2077 2016

USD’M USD'M

Cashi at bank and in hand 4,753.2 2,786.4
Shori-term deposits 235.5 355.5
Total 4,988.7 3419

Asat 30 September 2017, the Grouphad USDS8.7 billion (2016: USD8.5
billion) of committed unsecured syndicated loans of which USD2.2
billion (2016: USD3.2 billion) remained unutilised. The Group had
USD2.8 billion (2016: USD2.0 billion) of immediately (same day)
available cash in liquidity funds. The Group had immediate access to
available liquidity balances from liquidity funds and corporate
facilities in excess of USD5.0 billion (2016: USD5.2 billion). Short-tarm
deposits made for periods longer than three months are separately
shown in the statement of financial position and earn interest at the
respective short-term depasit rates,

21. Capital and reserves

a. Share capital

As at 30 September 2017 the company has 25,000,000 crdinary
shares outstanding and a capital of USDT,504 million. During 2017, no
changes took place in the outstanding share capital.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and
when declared by the Company. Allordinary shares carry onavote per
share without restriction. The ordinary shares have no par value

b. Capital securities

As part of the financing of the Company and its subsidiaries, the
Company has three capital securities instruments at the carrying
value of USD1,247.3 million with a par value of SGD200 million,
USD500 miltion and USDE00 million,

The USD600 million capital security is originally issued on 14 March
2017. The distribution on the capital security is 6.875% per annum and
the securities are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange. The capital
security may be redeemed at the Company’s aption in whole, but not
in part, in the period stariing 80 calendar days before, and ending of,
the distribution payment date in March 2027 or any distribution date
thereafter on not less than 30 and not more than 6C days’ notice to

the holders.

The SGD200 million capital security was originally issued in February
2014. The distribution on the security is 7.5% and is listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange. The capital security may be redeemed at
the Company’s option in whole, but not in part, on the distribution
payment date in February 2019 orany distribution date thereafter, on
not less than 30 and not more than 60 days’ notice to the holders,

The USD500 million capital security was originally issued on 19 April
2013, The distribution on the capital security is 7.625% per annum and
itis listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange. The capital security may
beredeemed at the Company's optionin whole, but nat in part,onthe
distribution payment date in April 2018 or any distribution date
thereafier on not less than 30 and not more than 60 days’ notice to
the holders,

The securities are perpetual in respect of which there is no fixed
redemption date. The distribution on the capital securities is per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears every six-month from the
date of issue. The company may elect to defer (in whole but not in
part} any distribution in respect of these capital securities.

Inthe event of a winding-up, the rights and claims of the holders in
respect of the capital securities shall rank ahead of claims in respect
of the Company’s shareholders, but shall be subordinated in right of
payment to the claims of all present and future unsuboerdinated
abligations, except for obligations of the Company that are expressed
torank pari passu with, or junior to, its obligations under the capital
securities.

According to the trust deed obligations of the Securities and the
Coupons shall be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by
Trafigura Beheer B.v.

¢. Currency translation reserve

The currency translation reserve comprises all foreign currency
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations, as well as from the translation of liabilities that
hedge the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation.

d. Cash flow hedge reserve

Included in the cash flow hedge reserve is a loss of USD47.7 million
(2016: USD14.7 million gain) which related to the effective portion of
the changes in fair value of cash flow hedges, net of tax. These cash
flow hedges relate to hedging of interest and currency exposure on
carporate loans and hedging of price exposure on future sales of zinc
productien from Mining group companies.

e. Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve comprises the fair value measurements
rmovements of the equity investments which are accounted for at fair
value through other comprehensive income. On realisation of these
gains or losses, for example the sale of an equity instrument, the
cumulative amounts of this reserve are transferred to retained
earnings. Inctuded in the revaluation reserve is a loss of USD32.6
million {2016: USD23.0 million) related to the mark-to-market
valuation of equity investments,

$\€



f. Retained earnings
Retained earnings comprise the share-based payment reserves and
revaluation reserves,

g. Dividends

The value of the dividends declared on the ordinary shares amounts
to USD933.9 million {2016: USD719.1 million) representing USD37.4
per share (2016: USD28.8) of which USD365 million has been settled
in the receivable with Trafigura Beheer V..

22. Material partly owned subsidiaries

Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interest is provided below. The information is based on
amounts before intercompany eliminations.

The Cormnpany has control over DTS Holdings Pte. Ltd. with a 50%
equity interest (2016: 50%). DTS Holdings Pte. Ltd. is a business
venture between Trafigura and Cochan Singapore Pte. Lid. and is the
main holding company of the DT Group. The DT Group’s activities
span trading, shipping, infrastructure, asset management and
logistics. Summarised statement of income:

2017 2016

USD'M USD'M

Revenue : 1,188.4 16177
Cort of sales ) (1116.4) _ (1.533.4)
General and administrative expenses o 12.1) {18.2)

Other income/expense ) (5.2) 263.3

Met financing Income S 24.2 39

Profit before tax 78.9 3384

Income tax expense : (2.7) 21

Profit for the period 76.2 336.3

Attributable to non-controlling interest 38.3 2264

The 2016 profit attributable to non-controlling interest includes the
70% non controlling interest in tha reversal of the AEMR impairment
within DTS Holdings Pte. Ltd. as mentioned in note 6.

During 2017, DTS Holdings Pte. Ltd. paid no dividend (2016: nil).

Summarised statement of financial position as at 30 September:

2017 2016

USD’'M USD'M

Jotalnon-current assets 336.4 428.7
Total current assets 1,276.8 1,659.6
Totai non-current liabilities (1.8) (5.5)
Totsl currentliabilities (250.0) (1,494.5)
Total equity 661.4 588.3

Attributable to
Non-controliing interests 330.6 292.3
Owners of the Company 330.8 295.0

23, Loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the
Group’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings, which are measured
at amortised cost. For more information about the Group’s exposure
to interest rate, foreign currency and liquidity risk, see note 27,

2077 2016
Carrying vatue of loans and borrowings USD'M USD'M
Non-current
Revolving credit Tacilities 3,905.0 3,960.0
Private placements 207.0 331.0
Eurobond 1,368.3 12317
Other loans - 1,907.4 1,685.0
Finance leases 134 26.5
Total non-current 7,401.1 7.234.2
Current
Revolving credit facilities 1,915.0 685.0
_Frivate placements 124.0 -
Other ivans 6371 364.6
Finance leases 7.2 123
Short-term bank borrowings 21,170.2 16,9711
Total current 23,8535 18,033.0
Total 31,254.6 25,2672
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F. Notes to consolidated financial statements

a. Terms and debt repayment schedule

Terms and conditions of outstanding loans were as follows:

Corporate governance

Financial statements

< 1year 1-5 years > 5 years Total
Principat Interest rate Maturity Floating/fixed rate debt usp'™ USD'M usp'm usD'M
Revolving credit facilities
usp 2,860.0 Libor + 0 85% 2020 ~ March Tosting - 26374 ) 2,637.4
usb 22700 Libor + 0.65% 2018 - March Floating 730.0 - - 730.0
usp 290.0 Libor +0.85% 2019 - March Floating_ - 262.6 - 2626
UsD 1,185.0 Libor + 0.65% 2017 - October Floating TS00 - - 7500
Usp 435.0 Libor +1.30% 2017 - October Floating 435.0 . . - _ 435.0
usb 6250  libor+1.10% 2018 - October Floating - 625.0 B 625.0
ush 250.0 Libor +1.30% 2018 ~ October Floating o = 290.0 . 290.0
UsD 90.0 Libor +2.35% 2018 ~ October Floating - 90.0 ~ 90.0
1,915.0 3,905.0 = 5,820.0
Private placement
UsD 88.0 6.50%, 2018 ~ April Fixed 88.0 - - 88.0
usD 98.0 7N% 2021 - April Fixed - 98.0 - 98.0
usp 35.0 4.38% 2018 — March Fixed 36.0 - - 36.0
LISD 51.5 4.89% 2020 ~ March Fixed - - 515 - 51.5
usD 575 5.53% ) 2023 —March Fixed N - 575 57.5
124.0 149.5 575 331.0
Eurobonds
EUR 6067 5.25% 2018 - November Fixed - 7185 - 718.5
EUR 550.0 5.00% 2020~ April Fixed - 649.8 -~ 6458
- 1,368.3 - 1,368.3
Otherloans
usp 278.0 Libor + 0.95% 2017 - Ociober Floating 279.0 - - 279.0
Usp 21.0 Libor +2.25% 2017 ~ Geiober Floating 21.0 - - 21.0
usD 2350 Libor +0.85% 2020 ~ June Fioating = 235.0 - 235.0
usp 230.0 2.A49% 2020 - june Fired - 230.0 - 230.0
usD i 35.0 Libor +1.70% 2020 - june Floating - - - 350 - 35.0
UsD 1294 Libor +2.65% 2020 ~ September Floating - 330 749 - 1079
UsD 1725 Libor +3.15%, 2022 - March _ Floating ] 257 1345 -~  160.2
Usb 965  Lbor+d.25% 2020 ~ March Floating - - 9538 - 958
JPY 58,860.0 Libor +1.0% 2019 — March Floating = 523.2 - 523.2
ust 200.0 6.33% 2036 - Julv Fixad 5.6 261 1831 194.8
EUR 1286 Euribor + 1. 2018 - July Floating 151.6 - - 151.6
EUR 200.0 5.50% 2020 ~ July Flxed - 23%3 0 - 236.3
ush 30.0 Libor +3.25%, 2018~ Mar ~ Floating 30.0 - - 30.0
Uso 300 Libar +0.65%, 2018 ~ September Floating 300 N - 300
Usp 120.0 tibor + 4.00% 2021 -~ August Fleating 20.0 65.0 N 85.0
XN 4157 Libor +5.70% 2023 ~ June Floating 3 11.5 5.4 20.1
usp 30.0 Libor +2,43% 2022~ March Floating 30 2.0 - 30.0
usp 39.6 Libor + 2.95% 2019~ October floating 35 7.8 = 21.3
Various loans with balances outstanding < USD'M15 S - 315 25.7 12 58.4
6371 17377 169.7 2,544.5
Finance leases . 72 13.4 - 206
Total 2,683.3 71733 227.2 10,084.4

For long-term assets pledged under loans and borrowings agreements,

referto note 11 {Property, plant and equipment)

Finance lease commitments are principally for machinery and
equipment. Original terms range from two years to five years, some

containing renewal options.

At the time of entering into finance lease agreements, the
cemmitments are recorded at their present value using the interest
rate then applicable for long-term funding. At 30 September 2017,
existing finance lease commitrnents are recorded at the remaining
present value using the interest rate applied at commencement of the

lease,




24, Provisions
The carrying amount of provisions made is as follows:

2017 2016
Usp'M Usp'm
Opening balence 1 Ociober 69.3 839
Additions 20.0 71
Amounts charped against provisions {0.6) {10.5)
Unwind of discount — 0.3 0.4
Remeasurements and other movements 5.8 {11.6}
Divestments of subsidiaries (3.9) -
Closing balance 30 September 90.9 693
Non-current portion 211 13.3
Current portion : 69.8 56,0
Closing balance 30 September 90.9 69.3

Pravisions consist of Decommissioning, rehabiiitation and restoration
USD13.2 million (2016: USD10.9 million), Litigation, disputes
UsD44.9 million (2016: USD45 5 million), Onerous contracts usbo.g
million (2016: USDS million), Pensions USD16.9 miltion (2016:nil} and
others USD14.9million (2016: USD7.9 million).

Provisions for decommissioning, rehabilitation and restoration costs
arerecognised due to the environmental commitment the Group has
made with local authorities and for its obligations to undertake site
reclamation and remediation in connection with its mining activities.
Previsions for litigation and disputes at 30 Septeraber 2017, relate to
two situations connected with the Company's trading and storage
activities in China. Further information is presented in note 26, Under
the Onerous contracts the wind up of some long-term lease contracts
are accounted for as well as onerous capital expenditure
commitments. The expected outflow of resources is mainly expected
to happen within one year.

25.Trade and other payables

207 2016

uUsp'M UsSD'M

Trade creditors 2,463.7 21003
Accrited costs of sales and expenses 7,233.1 6,325.4
Broker balances 15.6 18.3
Related parties 65.0 B3
Total 9,778.4 89525

The Group’s exposure to currency and liquicity risk related to trade
and cther payables is disclosed in note 27,

26. Contingencies and commitments
The following contingent liabilities exist in respect of trade financing:

2017 2016

UsD'M UsD'M

Lettess of credit ___ 65043 47023
Letters of idemrity L - -
Guaranizes 202.7 E)Farg

Total 6,707.0 5,015.0

The Company and its subsidiaries are parties to a number of legal
claims and proceedings arising out of their business operations. The
Company believes that the ultimate resolution of these claims and
proceedings will not, in the aggregate, have a material adverse effeci
on The Company’s financial position, consolidated income or cash
flows. Such legal claims and proceedings, however, are subject to
inherent uncertainties and the outcome of individual matters is
unpredictable. It is possible that the Company could be required to
make expenditures, in excess of established provisions, in amounts
that cannot reasonably be estimated.

As reported in the press, at certain warehouses in China, notably for
the Company at Qingdao, Pinglai and Yingkou, there have been
rumours that fraudulent warehouse certificates are in circulation, The
Company'’s subsidiary Impala has issued warehouse certificates, and
also has a limited number of collateral management agreements in
place, regarding metal stored at these locations. The position remains
that it has not been possible to independently verify the quantity and
ownership of the metal stored at these locations and consequently
legal proceadings have been commenced in England and China
relating to ownership of the metal and potential liabilities regarding
the storage arrangements. In view of the unicertainties surrounding (a)
the volume of material in the warehouses; (b) its correct ownership;
and {c) the approach the majority of the customers will ultimately
take, it remains premature to specutate on Impala’s likely net total
exposure in relation to this matter. Looking at hypothetical yet
realistic scenarios, it is considered unlikely that a potential liability for
impala would be material for the Group.

The Company has a potential financial exposure resulting from certain
oil trading and risk management activities of its counterparty’s
representative. These activities are the subject of ongoing actions,
claims and disputes against the Company. The underlying
circumstances regarding these actions, claims and disputes are
complex and opaque and consequently how these disputes and
actions will be resolved is uncertain.

Guarantees include guarantees to trading partners in the normal
course of the business. In addition the Company has given a financial
guarantee on the full recourse tranches of the syndicated bank facility
held by Trafigura Investment Sarl. This company holds a USDO.5 billion
prepayment facility in favour of Rosneft which was syndicated with a
pool of international banks. The shares of Trafigura Investment Sarl
are held by an independent Foundation incorporated in the
Netherlands in which Trafigura has no contro! and thus has been
deconsolidated since 30 Septerber 2074. The maximum exposure
under this guaraniee as of 30 September 2017 amounted to uspDi42
mitlion {2016: USD285 million). The expiry of this guarantee is
September 2018.
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The Company had outstanding commitments at the end of
30 September 2017, and 30 September 2016 as follows:

2017 2016

usp'™M UsD'™M

Storage rental 2,572.2 27315
Time charters 2,735.9 11333
Office rent 111.8 122.8
5,419.9 39876

Assets under copstruction 41.0 378.4
Total 5,460.9 4,366.0

In 2077 Trafigura entered into a lease transaction with an Asian
financial counterparty for up to 30 new build crude oil and product
tankers. As at 30 September 2017 30 leases have been entered into.
The leases with a total lease consideration over the non-cancellable
lease period of 10 years amounts to USD1.5 billion. Vessels will be
delivered from the end of 2018 through 2019 calendar year, with the
majority of vessels being delivered in the first quarter of calendar
year 2019,

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

2017 2016

USD’M USD'M

Less than one year 1,199.4 1.222.3
Later than one year and lass than five yesrs 2,880.2 2,340.6
Later than five years 1,340.3 4247
Totat 5,419.9 3,9876

Amount under Assets under construction includes an amount of
USDnil {2016: USD236.5 million) as commitments for vessels under
censtruction.

27. Financial instruments

a. Financial risk management

The Group Is exposed to a number of different financial risks arising

from normal business exposures as well as its use of financial

instruments including: market risks relating to commuodity prices,

foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates; credit risk; and

liquidity risk.

Prudently managing these risks is an integral element of Trafigura's

business and has been institutionalised since the Group's foundation.

Risk management guidelines are established at senior management

level. The various risks the Group is exposed to are managed through

a combination of internal procedures, such as strict control

mechanisms and policies, as well as external third parties such as the

derivative, insurance and bank markets. As a rule, Trafigura actively

manages and lays off where possible a large majority of the risks

inherent to its activity. Trafigura’s conservative risk management

process is designed to:

* Provide afull and accurate awareness of risks throughout the Group.

* Professionally evaluate and monitor these risks through a range of
risk metrics.

» Limit risks via a dynarnic imit setting framework.

+ Manage risks using a wide range of hedging instruments and
strategies,

* Ensure a constant dialogue between trading desks, risk managers
and senior managernent.

The three main, reinforcing, components of Trafigura's risk
management process are the Chief Risk Officer (CRO), the Derivatives
Trading Committee, and the trading teams,

The Chief Risk Officer is independent of the revenue-producing units
and reports to the Chief Operating Officer and the Management
Board. The CRO has primary responsibility for assessing and
monitoring Trafigura's market risks. The CRO's team liaise directly
with the trading teams to analyse new opportunities and ensure that
risk assessments adapt to changing market conditions. The CRO's
team also ensures Trafigura's risk management capabilities
incorporate engoing advances in technology and risk management
modelling capabilities.

The Derivatives Trading Committee, which is comprised of members
of the Management Board and the Chief Risk Officer is responsible for
applying Trafigura’s risk management capabilities towards improving
the overall performance of the Group. In 2017, the Derivatives Trading
Committee met weekly to discuss and set risk and concentration
limits, review changing market conditions, and anialyse new market
risks and opportunities.

Trafigura's trading teams provide deep expertise in hedging and risk
managementin the specific markets each team operates in. White the
trading teams have front-line responsibility for managing the risks
arising from their activities, our process ensures a strong culture of
escalation and accountability, with well-defined limits, automatic
notifications of limit overages and regular dialogue with the CRO and
Derivatives Trading Committee.

b. Market risk
Market riskis the risk of loss in the value of Trafigura’s positions due to
changes in market prices. Trafigura holds positions primarily to ensure
our ability to meet physical supply commitments to our customers, to
hedge exposures arising from these commitments, and to supportour
investment activities. Our positions change due to changing customer
requirements and investment opportunities. The value of our
positions is accounted for at fair value and therefore fluctuates on a
daily basis due to changes in market prices. Categories of market risk
we are exposed to include:
» Commedity price risk results from exposures to changes in spot
prices, forward prices and volatilities of commodities, such as crude
oil, petroleum products, natural gas, base metals, coal and iron ore.

+ Currency rate risk resuits from exposures to changes in spot prices,
forward prices and volatilities of currency rates.

+ Interest rate risk results from exposures to changes in the level,
slope and curvature of yield curves, the volatilities of interest rates,
and credit spreads.

+ FEquity price risk results from exposures to changes in prices and
volatilities of individual equities and equity indices.

Trafigura hedges a large majority of price risks arising frem its
activities. When there is a difference in the characteristics of available
hedging instruments and the corresponding commadity price
exposures, Trafigura remains exposed to a residual price risk referred
to as basis risk. Dynamically managing the basis risk that arises from
Trafigura's activities requires speciatist skills and is a core focus of our
trading and risk management teams.

d‘}*\’\



Value at Risk

Value at Risk (VaR}) is a statistical estimate of the potential loss in value
of eur positions and unsold in-transit material due to adverse market
movements. Trafigura calculates VaR over a one-day time horizon
with a 95% confidence level. We use an integrated VaR model which
captures risks including commodity prices, interest rates, equity prices
and currency rates. Trafigura’s integrated VaR model facilitates
comparison of VaR across portfolios comprised of arange of different
risk exposures.

As of 30 September 2077, Trafigura's one-day market risk VaR was
USD&.1 million (2016: USD4.5 million). Average market risk VaR (1 day
95%) during the fiscal year was USD6.8 million compared to USD&.3
million in the previous fiscal year. Trafigura’s Management Board has
setatarget of maintaining VaR {1day 95%) below 1% of Group equity.

Trafigurais aware of the inherent limitations to VaR and therefore uses
avariety of risk measures and risk management techniques to create
a robust risk management process. Limitations of VaR include:

* VaR does not estimate potential losses over longer time harizons

where the aggregate moves may be extreme.

+ VaR does not take account of the liquidity of different risk positions
and therefore does not estimate the losses that might arise if
Trafigura liquidated large positions over a short period of time.
VaR is based on statistical analysis of historical market data, if this
historical datais not reflective of futures market prices movements,
VaR may not provide accurate predictions of future possible losses.

.

Trafigura’s VaR calculation covers its trading businesses in the crude
oil, refined oil products, petrochemical, natural gas, metals,
concentrates, coal, iron ore and freight markets, and assesses the
open-priced positions which are those subject to price risk, including
inventories of these commodities. Trafigura’s VaR model is based on
historical simulations, with full valuation of more than 5,000 market
risk factors.

VaR is calculated based on simultaneously shocking these risk factors.
More recent historical price data is more heavily weighted in these
simulations, which enables the YaR model to adapt to more recent
market conditions and improves the accuracy of our estimates of
potential losses.

Trafigura’s VaR model utilises advanced statistical techniques that
incorporate the non-normal price dynamics that are an important
feature of commodity markets. Our VaR model is continuously and
automatically calibrated and back-tested to ensure that its out-of-
sample performance adheres to well defined targets. In addition, our
VaR model is regularly updated to ensure it reflects the current
observed dynamics of the markets Trafigura is active in.

Trafigura has made a significant, ongoing investment in risk
management systems, including a reporting system which
automatically distributes customised risk reports throughout the
Group on a daily basis. These reports provide up-to-date information
on each team’s risk using industry standard measures such as 95% and
95% Value at Risk and performance indicators such as Sharpe ratios.

All trading books have well defined VaR risk limits and management
and the trading teams are automatically notified whenever a book
nears its risk limit, as well as whenever a VaR overage occurs. In
addition, Trafigura’s deals desk management team is automatically
notified whenever statistically anomalous changes occur in the profit
and loss of any deal.

For senior management, the daily reports provide a comprehensive
vievs of Trafigura’s risk, classified according te various risk factors.
These reports emphasise the risk diversification created by the Group's
varied activities and highlight any excessive risk concentrations.

c. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument or physical contract fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Group's receivables from customers and investment securities.

The Company has a formalised credit process with credit officers in
the key locations around the world. Strict credit limits are set up for
each counterparty on the basis of detailed financial and business
analysis. These limits are constantly monitored and revised in light of
counterparty or market developments and the amount of exposure
relative to the size of the Group’s balance sheet. The Company makes
extensive use of the banking and insurance markets to cover any
counterparty or country risks that are in excess of its credit lirmits.

The risk management monitoring and decision-making functions are

centralised and make extensive use of the Company’s integrated

bespoke IT system. The Company conducts transactions with the
following major types of counterparties:

+ Physical commedity counterparties spread across the vertical
chains for both oil and bulk, eg producers, refinersfsmelters and
end-users. Sales to investment grade and non-investment grade
counterparties are made on open terms up to internally approved
credit limits. Exposures above such limits are subject to payment
guarantees.

» Payment guarantee counterparties, ie prime financial institutions
from which the Company obtains payment guarantees.

* Hedge counterparties comprising a number of prime financial
institutions and physical participants in the relevant markets. There
is no significant concentration of risk with any single counterparty
or group of counterparties. Collateral is obtained from
counterparties when the Company’s exposure to them exceeds
approved credit limits. It is the Company’s policy to have ISDA
Master Agreements or {SDA-based Long-Form Confirmation
Agreemants in place with all hedging counterparties.

The Company trades in all major geographic regions. Where
appropriate, guarantees, insurance and letters of credit are used to
reduce payment or performance risk. The Company has gross credit
exposure in locations across the world with a concentration in
emerging markets. Most of this exposure is laid off with third parties
while the Company retains between 10% to 20% on average of the
individual exposures.
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The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk, without considering
netting agreements or without taking into account of any collateral
held or other credit enhancements, is equal to the carrying amount of
Trafigura’s financial assets as indicated in the balance sheet plus the
guarantees to third parties and associates. The Company’s objective
is to seek continued revenue growth while minimising losses incurred
due to increased credit risk exposure.

The Group has amounts and guarantees ouistanding related to
countries that are impacted by sanctions currently imposed by the US
and EU. The Group analysed the sanctions and exposures and
concluded that these do not materially impact the Group's positions.

(i) Concentration of credit risk

Concentrations of credit risk exist when changes in economic, industry
or geographical factors similarly affect the Company's counterparties
whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the
Company’s total credit exposure. The carrying amount of financial
assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The Company
determines concentrations of credit risk by monitoring the country
profile of its third-party trade receivables on an ongoing basis.

Trafigura has a diverse customer base, with no customer representing
more than 4.6% (2016: 5.3%) of its revenues over the year ended
30 September 2017,

Refer to note 18 for the aging of trade and other receivables at the
reporting date that were not impaired.

(ii} Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade and other receivables that are neither past due norimpaired ara
creditworthy debtors with gocd payment record with the Company.
Cash and cash equivalents and derivatives that are neither past due
nor impaired are placed with or entered into with reputable financial
institutions or companies with high credit ratings and no history of
default. The credit quality of trade and other receivables is assessed
based on a strict credit policy. The Group has monitored customer
credit risk, by grouping trade and other receivables based on their
characteristics,

Based on the Group's monitoring of customer credit risk, the Group
believes that, except as indicated above, no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of trade receivables not past due.

(iii) Financial assets that are either past due orimpaired
Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or
impaired is disclosed in note 18 (Trade and other receivables).

(iv) Guarantees

The Group’s policy is to provide financial guarantees only to wholly
owned subsidiaries and trading partners in the normal course of
business. Aspart of the Group's ordinary physical commodity trading
activities, Trafigura Group Pte. Ltd. may act as guarantor by way of
issuing guarantees accepting responsibility for subsidiaries’
contractual obligations.

d. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to meet its
payment obligations when due, or that it is unable, on an ongoing
basis, to borrow funds in the market on an unsecured or secured basis
atan acceptable price to fund actual or proposed commitments.

The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ready sources of committed funding available to meet anticipated
and unanticipated funding needs. Sound financial management with
afocus on liquidity has been instrumental to the Group’s success. The
Company has demonstrated the ability to raise the appropriate types
of financing to match the needs of the business and to tap various
investor bases {eg syndicated loan markets, trade finance markets,
bond markets, USPP, securitisation etc.), maturities and geographies,

The Company manages its treasury and liquidity risks maintaining a

strong fiquidity position through the following:

+ Targeting immediately available cash on hand of minimum USD500
million under normal conditions (higher in the case of extreme
volatility);

+ Maintaining bilateral lines which atlow the Group to mark-to-
market financings to the value of the underlying physical assets.
Mark to market financing is performed weekly {or intra-weekly in
the case of extreme volatility) and provides an additional source of
liquidity which is not available to competitors which are financad
purely from revolving credit facilities;

+ Committed unsecured credit facilities;

Maintaining headroom under bilateral trade finance lines and

committed revolving credit facilities; and

+ Limited distribution of profit (significant retained earnings} and
subordination of repurchased equity.

The Group provided a financial guarantee for an amount of USD142
million as of 30 September 2017 (2016: USD285 million) that will
expire in 2018. The amount of corporate guarantees in favour of
associates and joint ventures as at 30 September 2017 was USD101
million {2016: nil).The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial
liabilities based on the contractual terms is as follows:

Total  0-1years 1-5 years > 5 years
USD'M UspD'M usD'™M USD'M
30 September 2017
Financial liabilities
Current and non-current
loans and borrowings 31,254.6 23,8535 7738 2272
Trade and other payables 9,778.4 9,778.4 - -
Expected future interest payments 683.2 2244 2792 1788
Derivative financial labilities 702.6 434.9 266.8 09
Total financial liabilities 42,418.8 34,291.2 7,719.9 4077
Total  0-1years 1-5 years > 5 years
usp’'M UsSD'M UsD'M USD'M
30 September 2016
Financial liabilities
Lurrent and non-current
toans and borrowings 25,267.2 18,032.0  5%B53 248.9
Trade and other bies 8,952.5 89525 - o =
Expected future interest payments 835.7 2145 4206 2006
Derivative financial babulities 658.9 4212 2367 7.0
Total financial liabilities 357143 27621.2 7,636.6 456.5

o



e. Interest rate risk

Trafigura is not exposed ta significant interest rate risk due to hedging.
Interest rate risk of the Group is mainly applicable on the long-term
funding of the Group, although a majority of debt, whether long-term
or short-term, is floating rate.

At 30 September 2017, assuming the amount of floating rate liabilities
{excluding working capital financing) were outstanding for the whole
year, interest rates were 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit, other comprehensive
incomne and group equity for the year ended 30 September 2017 would
decreasefincrease by USD24.2 million (2016: USD24.2 miillion).

From time to time the Group enters into interest rate derivatives
transactions to lock-in current interest rate levels, for instance,
interest rate swaps provide a method of reducing the Group's exposure
to floating interest rates arising from its corporate funding
programmes. To realise the desired matching of derivative results with
the hedged interest rate payments, cash flow hedge accounting is
applied and the derivatives are designated as hedging instruments.
The derivatives are carried on balance and their effectivenessis tested
on a quarterly basis.

f. Currency risk

Trafigura has few exposures to foreign currency risk on its trading
activities and those that do exist are hedged out. The Group does not
use financial instruments to hedge the translationrisk related to equity
and earnings of foreign subsidiaries and non-consolidated companies.

The Group uses cross-currency swaps to hedge currency risk on the
principal and related payments of foreign currency denominated loans
and bonds for which cash-flow hedge accounting is applied. The hedge
relationship is expected to be highly effective due to the matching of
critical terms between the underlying hedged item and the associated
hedging instrument.

The periods when the cash flows are expected to occur are similar to
the periods when the cash flows oni the foreign currency denominated
loans and bonds occur as indicated in note 23 and 27d. Ineffectiveness
may arise if the underlying interest reference rate is divergent to the
underlying reference rate in Company’s debt agreements, to the
extent that the hedging instrument s already in the money or out of
the money at the point of designation {compared to the hypothetical
derivative that must be created on market}, when the timing of the
hedging instrument goes beyond the hedged item and it is not
considered highly probable that the hedged item will be refinanced
beyond its current maturity date or if the hedging instrument is for an
amount greater than the hedged item.

g. Price risk

During the year, the Group elected to apply cash flow hedge accounting
to hedge certain non-financial hedged items. These are the future
sales of Zinc production from Mining group companies and equity
accounted investees with which the Trafigura Group has entered into
contracts to sell 100% of the offtake from. The Group has entered into
Zinc fixed-floating swaps to hedge the price risk of these future sales.

The designated hedge derivatives are accounted for at fair value, with
the fair value movements being deferred through other comprehensive
income where they are deemed to be entered in an effective hedge
relationship with cash flows from future sales that are yet to be
reflected in the statement of income. Any fair value movements that
are not considered to be an effective hedge are recognised directly
through the statement of income.

Ineffectiveness will occur due to differences in maturity of the hedged
item and the hedging instrument as well as due to the non-price
elements of the cash flows arising from the hedged item. Future sales
of zinc concentrate. The effectiveness of the economic relationship
between the hedging instruments and the hedged item has been
assessed at the inception of the hedge accounting designation andis
reassessed prospectively and retrospectively at least quarterly. The
hedge ratio is determined by the ratio which provides a strong
relationship between rmovements in the fair value of the hedged item
and hedging instruments at the inception of the hedge accounting
relationship. Given that the hedged items are future sales of Zinc
concentrate this is typically close to the expected ratio of metal
content payable after deductions per tonne of concentrate for non-
price elements of the non-financial hedged items. The overview of the
cash flow hedgesis:

2077 2016 2017 2076
Maturity  Equivalent Notignals Fair values
Cross-currency
SWap Usb 1,670.2 1&670.2 (21.8) (1157}
Cross-currency
interest rate swap usD 581.3 5062 (60.7) s}
future sales Zinc
production <lyear  DmMT 128.7 - 23.5 -
future sales Zine
production 1-2-years DMT 60.6 ~ 98 @ -
Total 2,176.4 (49.0) (127.2)
Hedge |
i PORe.os
recognised through other
through comprehensive
profit & loss jncome
Cross-currency swap (2.2) 14.4
Cross-currency interest rate swap 17 01
Future sales zinc production o (0.8) 313]

Other comprehensive movements in the equity movement schedule
includes USD 45 million movement of cash flow hedge reserves from
equity accounted investees.
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h. Fair value hedge accounting

In some instances, The Group elects to apply fair value hedge
accounting to hedge certain risk components of non-financial hedged
items. These non-financial hedged items are the tolling agreements
which Trafigura has entered into for the processing of crude oil into
petroleum by-products. Ultimately, the derivative hedging
instruments (splitter hedges consisting of futures and swaps) are
aimed to hedge the spread between purchasing crude oil and selling
refined product. When applicable, The Group designates derivative
hedging instruments as fair value hedges in relationship to the hedged
item. The maturity profile of the hedging instruments varies from one
to five years. The hedged item may be individual risk components
which are separately identifiable and reliably measurable. The
designated hedge derivatives are accounted for at fair value through
profit and loss and reflected on the balance sheet as either arecognised
asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment. Each of the
identified risk compenents of the hedged item will be revalued at each
period with its corresponding benchmark accounted for at fair value
and recognised through profit and loss and reflectad on the balance
sheet as either a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm
commitment. ineffectiveness will occur as a result of basis differences
between the valuation of designated hadge instruments used and
valuation of the designated risk component benchmarks considered
to best represent the risk component. The following table summarises
the movements in the related derivatives and hedge item, and hedge
ineffectiveness recognised in the statement of incorne.

Management seeks to maintain hedge ratio targets of 80% prior to
physical production. The Group’s overail hedge position has moved
from a derivative asset to a derivative liability position as previously
entered into ‘in the money’ derivative hedges have realised and more
recent derivative hedge transactions entered into have moved ‘out of
the money’. Overall hedge positions will fluctuate relative to the time
period the hedges were entered into, coupled with the movement of
physical crack spreads, which represent the risk component of the
underlying hedged item.

2017 2016
Fair value hedge accounting USD’'M UsD'™M
Opening balance of the derivatives
marked as hedges for splitter business 12711 153.9
FV rmovement included in the hedge relationship (226.3) 78.3
Hedgec for which hedge relationship matured (99.4) {1013)
_i1adges not designated in hedge relationship_ .2 . {40}
Closing balance of the derivatives
market as hedges for splitter business (179.4) 127
Opening balance of the hedged item (151.8) (1683}
F¥ movement included in the hedge relationshin 218.1 {75.4)
Adjustm ersed as hadge
relationship mutured 26.3 815
Closing balance of the hedged item 162.6 (151.8)
(16.9)
- 79
(8.3)

i. Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain
investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business.

The Company’s immediate parent, Trafigura Beheer B.V., is exclusively
owned by its employees. This shareholding arrangement leads to an
alignment of the long-term interests of the Company and its
management team. By virtue of having its own capital at risk, senior
management is incentivised to take a long-term view of the Company’s
overall performance and to protect its capital.

The Company'’s capital management aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and
borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in
meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately
call toans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial
covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrewing in the
current period.

The Company monitors capital using an adjusted debt to equity ratio,
which is adjusted total debt divided by the Company’s equity. For this
purpose, the adjusted debt metric represents the Company's total
long- and short-term debt less cash, deposits, readily marketable
inventories, debt related to the Company’s securitisation programme
&nd the non-recourse portion of loans to third parties.

The Company's long-term average target adjusted debt to equity ratio
is 1.0x. The Company’s adjusted net debt to equity ratio at the end of
the reporting period was as follows:

2017 2016
UsD'’™M usD’™M
Non-Current loans and borrowings 74010 72342
Current Loans and borrowings 23,853.5 18,033.0
Total debt 31,254.6 25,2672
Adjustments
Cash and cash equivalents 4,988.7 31419
Deposits 338.3 75
Stock 13,926.7 11,5377
Securitisation debi 2,517.4 1.516.0
Non-recourse debt 840.3 434.8
Adjusted total debt 8,643.2 8,628.9
Group equity 6,384.8 S,8471
Adjusted debt to Group
equity ratio at 30 September 1.35 148

As at 30 September 2017, the ratio of adjusted net debt to Group
equity stood at 1.35x% . The decrease of the ratio at year-end compared
6 20 September 2016 is mainly due to the increase in Group equity.

The nature of the ratio means it fluctuates between quarters, but
Trafigura's long-term commitment is to maintain a disciplined
approach to leverage with the aim of ensuring it does not remain
significantly above its target of 1.0x on a long-term basis. We expect
this ratio to revert to our stated target in the medium term.
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WGBISHA L) oI & gas REGULATORY AUTHORITY
“SAY NO TO CORRUPTION” 3 Lﬁ

OGRA-6(1)-NG/2018 April 27, 2018

Mr. Elias Chibani,

Chief Executive Officer,

Trafigura Pakistan (Private) Limited,
Behria Complex 3,

8" Floor M.T Khan Road,
KARACHI

Subject: APPLICATION UNDER OGRA ORDINANCE, 2002 READ WITH NGRA LICENCING
RULES, 2002 FOR GRANT OF LICENCE FOR SALE OF LNG/RLNG
. T e S
Dear Sir,
om0

Please refer to your letter No. nil dated March 07, 2018 on the subject noted above.

2. It.is to inform that the information/dats provided vide subject application has been thoroughly
examined by the concerned deptts. of OGRA under statutory requirements of relevant Rules. It is, therefore
advised to file a fresh covering letter of the application for grant of Licence for Sale of Naturaj Gas /RLNG.

3. Furthermore, the titled application has been examined under the statutory requirement of Ruje 4(3)
& (5) of NGRA (Licencing) Rules, 2002 (pertaining to Sale Licence) wherein the following deficiencies have
been found therefore, the applicant is required to furnish the following deficient information / documents in
order to proceed further, please:

a) Agreements between Trafigura Pakistan Ltd [the applicant] and

) SSsGcLa SNGPL,

il LNG Suppliers,

i) Licenced Terminal Operator,

ii}  Prospective Consumers alongwith details stipulated under Rule 16 of Natural Gas (Licencing)
Rules, 2002,

b) Information with respect to Financial prospects,

i) Estimated cost and feasibility report,

i) Audited financial statements of the applicant (Trafigura Pakistan Ltd),

iii)  Bank Statement of the applicant ( Trafigura Pakistan Ltd),

i) Details of financial expertise and resources,

V) Details of the resources and expertise availaple to handle emergency situations arising out of naturaj

¢h such resources are available

calamities, accidental or criminal acts or omission, specifying whi
and which are to be procured.

4, As mentioned in your application w.r.t strategic partnership with PGPC (which is a licensee of
OGRA fo carry out regulated activity in LNG Supply Chain / Terminal Operation), it is advised to elaborate
Trafigura and PGPC role in 2™ LNG Terminal for which the license has been issued to PGPC keeping in
view the scheme of Trafigura (the applicant).

o

(Abdulgjﬁure hi)

Registrar

sle.

Best Regards,

C.cC

=,

Mr. Igbal Z Ahmed, : I ;
Chairman, ‘%Q-%Jna A M- B

PGP Consortium Limited, Clarificationis required wir.t to
Associated House, £ Para-4 of the instant letter, please

Seven Egerton Road, LAHORE

54-B, Faza/—e‘-Haq Road, Blue Areq, I.élamabad, Pakistan.
Tel: +92-51 -9244090-98, Fox: +92-51-9244206
Website: www, ogra.org.pk
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TRAFIGURA 72,

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Dated: May 17, 2018

The Registrar A

Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority — OGRA
54-B, Fazal-e-Haq Road, Blue Area,
Islamabad, Pakistan

Tel: +92-51-9244090-98

*
Subject: APPLICATION UNDER OGRA ORDINANCE 2002 READ WITH NG

RULES, 2002 FOR GRANT OF LICENSE FOR SALE OF LNG / RLNG

Dear Sir,

This is with reference to your letter no. OGRA-6(1)-NG/2018 dated April 27, 2018 regarding
the subject.

Our para wise comments are as under:

2. As advised, revised covering letter mentioning the grant of license for Natural Gas /
RLNG is attached as an Annexure - A.

3. a) Agreement between Trafigura Pakistan Pvt Ltd (the Applicant) and

S. No | The Counterparty The Applicant

i. SSGCL & SNGPL The Applicant has been approached by various
customers from different parts of the country
for the supply of RLNG and negotiations are
still in progress. Nevertheless, there are
potential customers, who already have
arrangements with SSGC & SNGPL for
Transmission & Distribution (T&D) of Gas.

Besides this, we also believe that the TPA
RULES, 2018 and proposed TARIFF REGIME for
natural gas sector in Pakistan are at the final
stages and accordingly, we will pursue SUIs for
the T&D services.

Meanwhile, we have also initiated the process
to discuss with the SUls regarding the
provision of T&D services.

In view of the above, it is submitted that we
request the Authority to issue license for the

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LiMITED

WWW.TRAFIGURA.COM
UNIVERSAL ID NUMBER: 01 10562
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TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

sale and marketing of RLNG. However, the
effectiveness of the same may be considered
subject to the provision of final arrangements
with the SUIs.

LNG Suppliers

The executed Heads of Agreement for the
supply of LNG is attached as an Annexure - B

Licensed Terminal Operator

Trafigura’s role, contribution and access to
terminal capacities are reflected in the
attached letters as an Annexure C.

Further details can also be obtained from the
following web link of AG group.

http://www_.gg.com.pk/pakistan-gasmrt/

Consumer

The executed Heads of Agreement for sale of
RLNG is attached as an Annexure - D

b) Information with respect to financial prospects:

S. No | The Counterparty The Applicant
i Estimated Cost and Details are given in Annexure -E
Feasibility Report
il Audit financial statement As the Applicant is newly-incorporated
of the applicant company, audited financial statements are not
available and not due until later as per
statutory requirements.
However, the Applicant has already appointed
the auditor and will furnish audited financial
statements once it is due under the statutory
requirements.
In view of the above, it is submitted to the
Authority to consider the details of the parent
company (as provided earlier) and issue
license based on this.
iii. Bank Statement of the Bank Statement is attached as an Annexure F
applicant
iv. Detailed of financial Trafigura draws on best-in class internal and

expertise and resources

external experience to develop, construct and
operate its worldwide gas business. A high
level organogram is given in Annexure — G.
Certain leading human resources with
necessary financial and technical expertise in
the worldwide group has already been taken
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TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LiMiTED

on board while others will be taken on shortly.—’

Besides above, Trafigura Pakistan has acquired
a number of professional services by executing
a Service Agreement with Trafigura Pte Ltd
and the copy of the same is attached in
Annexure H. These resources are working on
the operational readiness of Trafigura
Pakistan. We believe Trafigura Pakistan will be
the first company to implement world leading
£3as account system in Pakistan.

V. Details of resources and
~ expertise available to
handie emergency
situations arising out of
natural calamities,
accidental or criminal acts
or omission, specifying
which resources are
available and which are to
be procured.

See above.

|

4. Asregards the role of Trafigura in the second terminal, please refer to the detailed

mentioned in an Annexure - C

Kindly let us know in case clarification is required on above.,

in view of above, and in the spirit of enablin
it is requested that the grant of license to ¢

a priority basis.

For and on behalf of
Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

Fadi Mitri
Chief Executive Officer

g Trafigura to serve Pakistan as soon as possible,
arry out sale and marketing of RLNG be issued on

B4t
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Dated:  16™ May, 2018

To

The Registrar

Oil & Gas Regulator Authority
54-B, Fazal-e-Haq Road,

Blue Area, Islamabad

PABX - 051-9244090-98

Subject: Application to the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) under the Oil and
Gas Regulatory Authority Ordinance, 2002 (“Ordinance”) read with the Natural
Gas Regulatory Authority (Licensing) Rule 2002 (“Rules”) for grant of license to
carry out Sale of RLNG.

Dear Sir,

Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd is a private sector entity incorporated under the Pakistan Companies

Ordinance 2017, with the objective to carry on the business of import, export, transport, market, and
distribute LNG, LNG, LPG and NGL in Pakistan. In this capacity, Trafigura Pakistan will procure
LNG from International market and enter into onward arrangement for the supply of gas to the end
user, thereby managing the whole supply chain of LNG from procurement to end consumer gas sale

agreements.

Further to the above, we also would like to apprise you that Trafigura being a shareholder of the
PGPL consartium has played a pivotal role in developing the project of the Pakistan’s Second FSRU

As a part of investment in the PGPL terminal, we have exclusive access to the available capacity of
the terminal and which will be between 90 — 120 mmscfd. In this regard, we have been continuously
approached by various customers specifically from Karachi region.

To further strengthen our presence in Pakistan, we have already established local branch of Trafigura
named Trafigura Pakistan (Private) Limited and now requests for a grant of license to carry out sale of
RLNG. I have attached herewith schedule — I and schedule — II along with all the necessary
documents for your review and considerations.

A rapid grant of licenses to carry out sale RLNG would be highly appreciated, and would be
beneficial to Trafigura Pakistan’s gas customers,

Fadi Mitri
Chief Executive Officer

-1

= o
D

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LimiTED

WWW.TRAFIGURA.COM
UNIVERSAL ID NUMBER: 0110562
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TRAFIGURA PTE L1D, SINGAPORE, BRANCH OFFicE GEMNEVA
Heads of Agreement for a LNG Sales Agreement

This Is a binding Heads of Agreement (“HOA”) for the fully termed Sale Purchase Agreement
(“SPA”) between the Selier and the Buyer.

Item Provisions T
Seller Trafigura Pte Ltd, ("Pte”) or any of its Affiliates.

Buyer Trafigura Pakistan Pvt Ltd {“PAK").

Term The term of the sale and purchase of LNG hereunder shall be for a period of fifteen

(15) Contract Years from 2018 until 2032 ( “Term”), with an option to extend the Term
for an additional period of five (5) years subject to mutually agreement between the
Parties,

Buyer shall notify Seller of its request for an extension of the Term at least two (2)
vears prior to expiry of the original Term, and following such notice, Seller and Buyer
shall discuss in good faith to an extension of the original Term.

Contract Year Each Contract Year shall commence on 1st January and end on 31st December.

The commencement date of this Agreement (signifying the delivery date of the first
LNG Cargo under this Agreement) shall be discussed between Buyer and Seller.

Term of Delivery Delivered Ex-Ship (DES).

The LNG Ship size shall be between 130,000 - 160,000 m? in accordance with standard
LNG Ship industry practices and will be subject to ship shore compatibility,

Source of Supply | The source of supply shall be from PTE global LNG supply portfolio, including but not
limited to its 15 years supply agreements with producers in Australia, the USA and the

Seller shall be entitled to include new sources of supply in the list of PTE global LNG
supply portfolio, subject to the LNG supplied from such source would meet the ’
required specifications,

Receiving The Receiving Terminal shalf be the FRSU-based LNG receiving terminals located in !
Terminal Port Qasim, Karachi, Islamic Republic of Pakistan.

Alternative Receiving Facilities in Pakistan shali be included in the SPA, subject to
compatibility with LNG Vessels and Seller’s consent.

Port Charges Port charges payable at Receiving Terminal shall be paid by the Seller

TRAFIGURA PTE Lo, SINGAPORE, Bramcr OFrFice GENEYA
REGITIEREY TFce, § RUHM-GOM!. 1207 GENEYA, SWTZE.IMO
YWY, TRAMOURA.COM
REGITYERED NUMpn: CH-660-152901 (-7
HEay OFerze: TRARGURA PTEL 10, SINGARORE - REG NoO: 1995015950
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Seller’s Facilities,
LNG Vessels

Seller shall be responsible for transporting LNG from the Loading Port for delivery of
such LNG to Buyer at the Delivery Point.

The SPA shall specify a pre-agreed list of LNG Vessels compatible with the Receiving
Terminal.

The SPA shall also set out the applicable specification for additional LNG vessels, which
shall include a gross tank capacity of between one hundred thirty thousand (130,000)
and one hundred sixty thousand (160,000) cubic metres of LNG.

Annual Contract
Quantity ("ACQ")

/

The "ACQ" shall be approximately 0.5 million metric tons of LNG per Contract Year {or
a pro-rata proportion thereof in respect of the first Contract Year)

The buyer shall have option to increase ACP to approximately 05 million metric tons of
LNG for each Contract Year from the commencement of 2020 until the end of the
Supply Period; subject to the COD of new Terminal sponsored by any of Group
Company .

In each Contract Year the adjusted ACQ (“AACQ"} shall be scheduled and delivered on
a reasonably rateable basis in cargoes falling within the range of one hundred and
thirty thousand (130,000) cubic metres to one hundred and sixty thousand {160,000)
cubic metres per cargo (with each such cargo having a quantity tolerance of up to five
{5) percent).

Seller Summer
ING

With respect to any Contract Year, at the time when the relevant ADP is developed,
Seller shall have the right to increase the ACQ by up to 0.5 million metric tons of LNG
{being the equivalent of one 1) cargo per month), to be scheduled for delivery during
the summer months on a reasonably rateable basis.

Buyer's
Obligation to
Take or Pay

In each Contract Year, Seller shall sell and deliver in accordance with the SPA, and
Buyer shall purchase, receive and pay for, or pay for if not taken, the AACQ,

If Buyer fails to take all or part of a Cargo as required under the SPA, Buyer shall pay
Seller the Contract Price applicable to the Cargo (or any portion thereof) not taken.
Seller shall then use reasonable endeavours to sell the Cargo to another buyer and
upon doing so shall reimburse to Buyer the proceeds of that sale, less incremental
shipping and other associated costs incurred by Seller, up to a maximum amount,
being equal to the Contract Price multiplied by the applicable quantity, expressed in
MMBtu.

Seller’s
Obligation to
Deliver or Pay

The SPA shall provide for the mechanism whereby Seller reimburses Buyer for actual,
incremental, direct and documented cover 83s/LNG/downstream losses as a result of
non-delivery, up to the thermal quantity of Seller’s Shortfall, but in any case subject to
a cap of 20% of the Contract Price of the applicable cargo.

Contract Price,
Price Review

The LNG Price in USD/MMBtu for LNG sold and delivered as ACQ under the LNG SPA,
as applicable, shall be determined according to the following formula:

Pn = X.)000(% x Brentm
where:

X.XXXX% will be discounted to current OGRA Price.

Pn is the Contract Price applicable to the relevant LNG cargo, rounded to 4 decimal
places; Brentm for a given month is the arithmetic mean of the 3 values of BRICE
(US$/bbl) for the 3 months immediately preceding (and not including) the month in
which the commencement of unioading of the LNG cargo falls. Brentm shall be

TRAFIGURA PTE LTD, SINGAPORE, BRANCH OFFICE GENEVA
REGETERED OFICE: § RUE JARGONMANT, | 207 GENEVA, SWITZERLAND
YWW. TRARGURA.CON
WN‘”M-CHMISMI 1.7
HEAL OFICE: TIARGURA PTTLTD SMGARORS — REG NO 1996015950
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rounded to 4 decimal places {with 0.0005 and above bring rounded up);

BRICE for a given month is the un-weighted arithmetic average of all the settiement
price {inSUS/bbl) for each quoted day of the month as published by the _
intercontinental Exchange of the first line ICE Brent future’s contract. The first line

date, the applicable Pricing quotation will be rolled to the second nearby maturity,
BRICE shall be rounded to 4 decimal places (with 0.005 and above bring rounded up).

Commencement of the discharge shall be deemed to occur at the point at which the
relevant LNG ship is shown to be ali fast in the port log at the Receiving Terminal as
defined in the SPA.

Price Review The Contract Price shall be reviewed and revised with a new Contract Price (if any)
being effective on and from:
i. For the first time, the fifth (5'™) Contract Year
ii.  Forthe second time, the tenth (10th) Contract Year
The Price Review shall constitute the Contract Price structure, which includes slope
percentage but shall exclude any deletion or replacement of the Brent reference
index.
LNG The LNG delivered into the Receiving Terminal shall, when regasified and measured at
Specification Reference Conditions, conform to the further specification set out in the table below:
Reference | Characteristic Unit of Measure Limit
1 Higher Heating Value Btu/scf min 940 max 1140
2 Wobbe Index Btu/scf min 1222 max 1534
3 Inert Gases, Total % {v/v) 4 max
4 Hydrocarbon Dew Point | °C -4 max at 5,500 Kpa abs
5 Carbon Dioxide (CO,) % (v/iv) 2.0 max
6 Oxygen (0;) % (v/v) 0.2 max
3
7 Hydrogen Sulphide (H:S) | mg/m 5.49 max
3
8 Total Sulphur mg/m 35 max
3
9 Total Mercury ng/m 50 max
For the purposes of this Schedule A, “Reference Conditions” shall mean a temperature
of 15°C and an absolute pressure of 1.01325 bar.
NG Outsi.de Provisions for Off-spec LNG shall be included in the SPA;
Specification

® Known receipt of Off-spec LNG - Seller covers Buyer’s actual reasonable,
documented, direct, incremental costs, subject to cap of 20% of the applicable

TRAFIGURA PTE LD, SINGAPORE, BRANCH OFFICE GENEVA
mm:smm»um Im?GMA SMM
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cargo value; and

® Unknown receipt of Off-spec LNG - Seiler covers Buyer’s actual reasonabie,
documented, direct, incremental costs, subject to cap of 100% of the
applicable cargo value.

Payment Terms

Invoices shall be payable in full in USD in fifteen (15) Banking Days from unfoading of
Cargo or receipt of final invoice whichever is later. Interest shall be payable on any
unpaid amounts,

Credit Support

Buyer shall provide Seller with 3 Standby Letter of Credit from an international first-
class bank (or confirmed by such bank), valid for not less than one (1) year, as may be
renewed annually at least thirty (30) days prior to each Contract Year.

Buyer’s Letter of Credit shall at all times cover not less than one hundred and five
percent (105%) of the value of the MMBtu equivalent of two (2) cargoes.

Force Majeure

The SPA shall contain standard Force Majeure provisions to be developed by the
Parties.

Suspension,
Termination

Standard default and termination provisions shall be developed by the Parties and
included in the SPA. Events of default shall include material breach of contract which
prevents that party from effectively performing, failure to pay amounts due,
insolvency and credit related events.

in the event of non-payment by Buyer, Seller shall be entitled to suspend Its delivery
obligations until full payment is made.

Governing Law

The SPA shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the English

Title and Risk

Title to LNG and Natural Gas aboard a LNG Ship shall pass from Seller to Buyer in
international waters at the Title Transfer Point, being the point that is two (2) nautical
miles outside of Pakistan’s territorial waters.

Risk of LNG and Natural Gas on the LNG Ship shall pass from Seller to Buyer at the
flange of receiving Terminal.

Other Terms

The 5PA shall contain such other provisions as are usually included in the sale and
purchase agreements in the LNG industry, including but not limited to Title and Risk,
Transportation and Unloading, Insurance, Safety, Taxes, ADP and NDS,
Representations and Warranties, Assignment, Audit Rights, Measurement and Testing,
Notices, Confidentiality, Compliance with Law, Anti-bribery and Corruption and
Dispute Resolution.

iLtd

Signed for and on behalf of Tra

Name Fibi
Title

Wi
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Pakisian GasPort Limited
Associated House, Seven Egarton Road, Lahore 54000
T.+02 42 IBJ8.8844 7 F: +52 47 20308742 ) meam.pk

Aug 31,2017

To Whom It May Concern

Dear Sir/Madam,

Pakistan GasPort Limited (“PGPL™), an Associated Group (“AG”) company, is the developer
and owner of the country’s second LNG import terminal. This FSRU-based facility is Jocated at
Port Qasim, Karachi. AG is in advanced stages of implementing its second LNG intport terminal,
also with a regas capacity of 750mmscfd, which will operate entirely in the private sector.

PGPL is partnered with Trafigura Pte. Ltd. (Trafigura™) on both tenminals. Trafigura is
providing vital commercial, operational and technical perspectives to the projects. Trafigura has
consistently delivered above expectations and has all the required capabilities and experience to
operate small- and large-scale terminals.

We are pleased to inform you that in our dealings with them, Trafigura has been a solid partner
having a wealth of kmowledge, capabilities, and in-depth experience of the global LNG sector,
among others. We are proud of our association with Trafigura and their dynamic team.

We remain available to provide any additional information that you may require.

Thanking you,
Sincerely yours,

02 M
p L . .;—'-—-‘_H-\“- ¥
Igbal Z. Alnned,

Chairman

35%
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8TH FLoOR, BAHRIA, CoMPLEX ~ 11, M.T. Knan ROAD ICARACH)

Dated on May 2018

Heads of Agreement for a Gas Sales Agreement

This is a non-bindi
Agreement (“GSA’

ng Heads of Agreement (“HOA™) for the fully termed Gas Sales
) between the Seller and the Buyer (defined in Clause 1 below).

The Seller is desirous to sel] RLNG and has extended its support to the Buyer.

Clause

Term

( 1. | Parties

1. TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED {or any of
its group company), a company duly incorporated and existing
under the laws of Pakistan under company number 010562,
having its registered office at " Floor, Bahria Complex - Ii,
M.T Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan, represented herein by two
duly-authorized directors (referred to as "Seller" which

2. PUMA ENERGY PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED, a
company incorporated under the Companies Ordinance 1984
having its registered / head Office a1 9 Floor, Bahria Complex
I, M.T. Khan Road, Karachi (referred to as "Buyer" which
expression shall, unless repugnant to the context or meaning
hereof, include its successors and permitted assigns).

The Buyer and the Seller, each is hereinafter referred to as a “Party”
and together as the “Parties”.

The Buyer intents to enter into gas sales agreements with compressed
natural gas stations operated under the brand name of Puma Encrgy
Pakistan with other Bas users across Pakistan,(“Buyer’s Customers®

Facility”),

The Seller has already applied 10 obtaip License for sale and
distribution of Gas from OGRA.

REGISTEIED Oacs | Maminia, BOWEvARG, #2000, Ome Magssa BOW vanD, Seacaron; (016909
REGETMD M aogn: 19%015950

TRAFIGURA PTE, Lvp.

VOO TRANGUNA g5

4
=




Chssiisu az PHIVALE AND { UGN IDENTIAL

35Y

The Seller is willing to provide to the Buyer LNG supply along with
Regasification Services from Pakistan Gas Port Consortium ( PGPC)
for delivery of Regasified LNG through national gas pipeline grid at
the delivery point of the buyers’ designated CNG Stations.

AND WHEREAS, the parties have now come on board to form their
alliance and/or business combination specific to LNG services and
intend to lay out the principal terms and conditions of their alliance;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and
Covenants contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows
(always subject to applicable laws and regulations):

1) The Seller will make RLNG available to Buyer, Subject to
final price discussion and agreement of suitable terms.

2) The Seller will use its own exclusive access to the
regasification capacity at the PGPC FSRU terminal to
provide regasification services for the LNG it will provide to
The Buyer.

3) Consequently, the Seller has agreed to allocate RLNG
supplies upto 340 MMSCF in a month to the Buyer on
intermittent supply chain to be consumed on a monthly basis
, with a potential ramp up to 600 MMSCF per month in the
future subject to the Market dynamics and circumstances.

4) The deliveries of RLNG will have to be on delivered basis at
the facilities of the Buyer, unless mutually agreed between
parties.

2. | Start Date

1) The start date of Gas sales (“Start Date”) shall be the date when
Seller shall deliver the first quantities of Gas and the Buyer shall
take delivery and pay for the Gas so delivered.

2) The Parties expect the Start Date to fall after the Seller acquiring
necessaty approvals and licenses from the government and
regulating authorities.

3) The Parties shall agree a windowing mechanism and conditions
precedent in the GSA. Upon the fulfilment or waiver of all the
conditions precedent therein, the Seller will provide notices to the
Buyer within set time windows providing an estimate of the
periods when the Seller expects the Start Date to occur as
provided by the following;

a) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 3 month period falling within the above 6 month
period;

b) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 1 month period falling within the above 3 month
period; and

c) finally, a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by

I Z
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the Seller for the actual Start Date falling within the
above one month period,
which will allow the Parties to progressively narrow down the Start
Date.

Term

The term of the GSA is currently envisaged to be | year from the
Start Date (“Term”)and the Parties, by mutual agreement in writing,
may agree extend the Term by an additional 1 year. The process by
which mutual agreement can be reached between the Parties will be
outlined in the GSA.

General
Undertakings

l. The Buyer shall inform the Seller immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance, which has or
is reasonably likely to have a materiaj adverse effect on the
Buyer’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

2. The Buyer shall not contravene any laws or legal
requirements which could reasonably be expected to have
material adverse effect on its ability to perform its
obligations under the GSA and or cause it to be in breach, in
any material respect(s), of its obligations under the GSA.

3. The Seller shall inform the Buyer immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance which has or
is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Seller’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

4. The Seller shall not enter into any agreement and not
contravene any laws or legal requirements which could
reasonably be expected to have material adverse effect on its
ability to perform its obligations under the GSA or cause it to
be in breach, in any material respect(s), of its obligations
under the GSA.

Quantity of Gas

The total annual contract quantity (“ACQ") of Gas to be soid by the
Seller and to be purchased, taken and paid for by the Buyer at the
Delivery Point in a Contract Fiscal Year shall be approximately 6000
MMSCF per annum.

Quality
Gas

specifications of

The terms and conditions in relation to quality specifications of Gas
shall be set out in the GSA.

Principles
Pricing of Gas

of

In the GSA, the following principles will apply for determining the
price at which an Affiliate of the Seller will sell and the Buyer will
buy Gas respectively (“Contract Price”):

1. The Contract Price for Gas delivered or tendered for delivery
by the Seller to the Buyer shall be expressed in US Dollars
per MMBtu (US$/MMBtu);

2. The final price will have to be converted from USD into
PKR

3. For avoidance of doubt, the price will be brent-related and
not a fixed price for the full term of the contract.

4. All references to MMBtu shall mean MMBi on_ Gross |

¥ o
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Heating Value basis;

Delivery
obligations of the
r

If, during a certain period, the Seller fails to deliver or tender for
delivery certain quantities of Gas (the duration of such period and
such quantities to be specified in the GSA) to the Buyer (except for
reasons to be specified in the GSA), the Seller shall pay the Buyer an
amount to be negotiated and specified in the GSA.

Measurement

1. The unit of measurement to quantify amounts of Gas in the
GSA or in any document produced in accordance with the
terms of the GSA.

2. The Parties shall agree provisions in the GSA for the location,
standards and verification of Mmeasurement  equipment,
ownership of measurement cquipment, the dispute resolution
mechanism in case of variations in measurement and alternate
provisions in case of a metering failure,

I1.

Transportation
of Gas

It is agreed that seller will have to make the RLNG/ Natural Gas
available to the buyer at the entry point of the buyers’ designated
CNG stations. The seller will use his allocation of pipeline access and
his GTAs with SSGC & SNGPL to transport the RLNG into the
buyer’s designated CNG stations.

12.

Title to Gas

Title to Gas delivered pursuant to the GSA shall pass from the Seller
to the Buyer at the Delivery Point of respective designated CNG
stations,

13.

Price

The final price of the LNG will be advised by Trafigura at the time of
contract negotiation but will include, also, terminal Re-gasification,
transportation charges as well as all other applicable local taxes. Price
will be expressed and paid in PKR, For the avoidance of doubt, the
final price will be subject to the agreement of the Buyer.

14.

Compliance with
Laws

The Buyer and the Seller shall comply with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations,

15.

Invoicing and
Payments

1. The Buyer shall pay for the Gas delivered or tendered for
delivery at the Delivery Point in the manner set out in the GSA.

2. Terms and conditions in relation to invoicing and payment,
including billing cycles shall be set out in the GSA.

16.

Taxes and
Charges

1. The Buyer shall pay, or cause to be paid, all applicable Taxes
related to the sale of Gas and other sums in respect of Gas
delivered or tendered for delivery under the GSA at the Delivery
Point.

2. Each Party shall bear Taxes on its own income.

17.

Force Majeure

The GSA shall contain industry standard provisions for force majeure
(including a definition of force majeure which shall include severe
weather conditions) which would suspend _obligations of the |

S e
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respective Party impacted by the force majeure, notice and reporting
Tequirements, mitigation responsibility, consequences, termination
and notice of cessation.

18. | Conditions The sale and purchase of Gas under the GSA shall be subject to
Precedent certain conditions precedent, which shall include amongst others the
following:

1. The Seller and its Affiliates satisfactorily assuring themselves
of clearance and acceptability of the Facilities as well as the
use of Port Qasim for the delivery of LNG;

2. The Seller obtaining all relevant Consents to sell Gas in
Pakistan;

3. The seller executing third party gas pipeline access and
transportation agreements with SSGC & SNGPL, including
Necessary provisions covering balancing of Gas volumes with
the Transporter using the Transporter’s Facilities and
provisions addressing unaccounted for gas (also known as
UFG);

4. The Buyer obtaining all relevant Consents to buy Gas in
Pakistan.

Detailed terms and conditions including relevant deadlines jn relation
to the conditions precedent shall be set out in the GSA subject to the
agreement of the parties.

19. | Miscellaneous

provisions Subject to agreement on all terms of the GSA by the Parties, the

Parties agree to reflect in the GSA in greater detail the key

commercial terms and principles recorded in this HOA. For the

avoidance of doubt, (a)nothing contained in this HOA is intended to
give rise to any binding contractual relationship nor shall this HOA
give rise to any right, obligation or liability on the part of cither the

Buyer or the Seller to enter into the GSA;

(b)any such legally binding rights and obligations and consequent

liabilities would arise only in the event of, and as a result of, the

execution of a mutually acceptable GSA; and

(c) Each party shall bear its own costs in connection with this HOA,

the GSA and all matters contemplated by this HOA.

20. | Confidentiality 1) Each Party acknowledges that the Confidential Information is

confidential and undertakes:

a) to use the Confidential Information solely for the purpose set
out in this HOA;

b) to keep the Confidential Information in strict confidence;

c) not, without the prior written consent of the other Party, to
disclose any Confidential Information furnished to it to any
third party other than its Representatives or to its Affiliates
who have a legitimate need to know such Confidential
Information;

d) before disclosing Confidential Information to any Affiliate or

ﬂ’ﬁ(bm
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to its Representatives, to ensure that such person is aware of |
the discloser’s obligations in this HOA, ensure compliance by
such person and be liable for any breach of such obligations
by such person; and

€) as far as possible to keep separate all Confidential
Information from all documents and other records of a Party.

2) The undertakings in Clause 25.] shall not apply to any

Confidential Information which:

a) at the time of disclosure to the recipient Party or thereafter
has become part of public knowledge or literature without
breach of any of the said undertakings by such Party;

b) the recipient Party can show was in its possession at the time
of disclosure hereunder and was not acquired by such Party
under an obligation of confidence; or

c) the recipient Party can show was received by it after the time
of disclosure hereunder from a third party (other than one
disclosing on behalf of the other Party or its Affiliates) who
could lawfully do so and who did not derive the Confidential
Information from the other Party or any of its Affiliates.

The foregoing exceptions shall not, however, apply to:
(i)specific information merely because it is embraced by or
included with other information which falls within any one or
more of such exceptions; or
(i)any combination of information merely because specific
information (but not the combination itself) falls within any one
or more of such exceptions,

3) In the event that the recipient Party, its Affiliates, Representatives
or other permitted recipients is required by an order of any
government, state government agency or requested by any court
or legislative or administrative body including 8ny recognised
stock exchange to disclose any Confidential Information, such
Party shall, to the extent it is lawful to do so, promptly and prior
to disclosure notify the disclosing Party so that an appropriate
protective order and/or other action can be sought and/or other
action can be taken if possible (and if it is not lawful to inform the
disclosing party prior to disclosure, the recipient Party shall
inform the disclosing Party as soon as it becomes lawful 0 do
so). In the event that such protective order is not, or cannot be,
obtained, then:

a) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request may
disclose to the appropriate body that portion of the
Confidential Information which such Party is legally required
to disclose and shall use reasonable efforts to obtain
assurances that confidential treatment will be accorded to
such Confidential Information; and

b) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request shall
not be liable for such disclosure unless such disclosure was
caused by or resulted from a previous disclosure by such
Party or its Affiliates or any of their Representatives that was

7o
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not permitted under this HOA.
4) The Parties agree that, upon request by one Party, the other Party
shall promptly:

a) retum or, at the option of the requesting Party, destroy all
Confidential Information that is in tangible form (including,
without limitation, Confidential Information contained on
computer disks or other electronic media) furnished to the
other Party, together with any copies or extracts thereof: and

b) destroy all analyses, compilations, studies or other documents
which have been prepared by the other Party or permitted
recipients and which reflect or are based upon any
Confidential Information, except to the extent that the
recipient Party is required to retain any Confidential
Information by any applicable law, rule or regulation or by
any judicial, govenmental, supervisory or regulatory body or
to the extent that such Confidential Information is
incorporated into organisational records which such Party is
required to retain by law or in accordance with internal
policies regarding the keeping of records generally, in which
case such Party will take appropriate measures to preserve its

continuing confidentiality.

21. | Governing Law | This HOA shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
and Dispute | Pakistani Law. Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this
Resolution HOA, including any question regarding its existence, validity or

termination, shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration

22. | Duration This HOA shall terminate cither upon (a) the execution of the GSA
HOA by the Buyer and the Seller; or (b) the Parties discontinuing the

discussions on the terms of the GSA, whichever comes earlier. ()
either party serving one Month Notice for terminating this Heads of
Agreement,

23. | Conduct Both Parties will strictly adhere to the Codes, Practices and Conducts

Business of Business Ethics (which shall be more specifically referenced in the
GSA) including, but not limited to Anti-Bribery and Corruption and

Sanctions policies.
24. | Notices 1) All notices and other communications to be sent by either Party to

the other shall be delivered by hand or sent by personal delivery or
facsimile to the relevant Party’s address or facsimile number noted
below (or to such other address or facsimile number as a Party
may substitute by notice to the other in accordance with this
provision after the date of this HOA):

To Buyer: Puma Energy Pakistan
Address:  8th Floor, Bahria Complex — I1f, M.T. Khan Road

Attention: [insert]
Fax number: Email: [insert}

To Seller: Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

= DU




YEL S

367

LT PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL

Address: 8th Floor, Bahria Complex — III, M.T. Khan Road
Attention:  Fadi Mitri
Fax number:

2) All notices or other communications under this HOA shall be
deemed to be duly given or made on the next business day in the
jurisdiction of receipt following the date of delivery or (in the case
of personal delivery) or receipt by the sender of a valid
transmission confirmation (in the case of facsimile).

25. | Counterparts

This HOA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which will be deemed an original and all of which together will
constitute one and the same instrument.

The Parties hereto have executed this Heads of Agreement on the day and year first
above written:

For and on behalf of

Signature:

Name:

Trafigura Pakistani (Pvt) Ltd,

Title: CEO

Witnesses:

1. Signature:
Name:;
Title;

2. Signature:
Name:
Title:

Mr. Fadi Mitri

Puma Energy Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd

C
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1. N

Name
Title: c,:,m )_ N é,

2. Signature;

Name:
Title:
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Deutsche Bank

Deutsche Bank AG
Karachi Branch

242 & 243 Avari Plaza
Fatima Jinnah Road
Karachi 75530
Pakistan

P.O. Box 4925

PABX 92 21 3520 5072
UAN 9221 111555 777

Date: February 22, 2018 Fax 92 21 3565 8320

Trafigura Pakistan Private Limited
13" Floor, AG Silver Tower,

Cluster I, Jumeirah Lakes Tower,
Dubai - UAE

Dear SirfMadam,
Account Maintenance Certificate

We hereby confirm that M/s Trafiqura Pakistan Private Limited has opened a PKR Current account
(N0.0524744-00-0) with us and has maintained such account with us since December 15, 2017 respectively.

Yours faithfully, ¢
\
\ /M\]L :
S =,
‘_._____,_——"y
Shah Zeeshan Rafiq Fawad Qasim
A% Deutsche Bank AG Deutsche Bank AG
Karachi Branch Karachi Branch
Chiirman of the Supervisory Board: Paul Achleitner, D he Bank Akti lischaft domiciled in Frank!urt am Main;

Management Board: John Cryan {Chairman}, Marcus Schenck, Christian Sewing, Locat Court of Frankiurt am Main, HRB No 30 000; VAT ID No DE 114103379;
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SERVICES AGREEMENT

between

~ TRAFIGURA PTE LTD

as the Supplier
and

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

as the Customer



SERVICES AGREEMENT
This Services Agreement (the “Agreement™) is made on 1% day of October 2017
By and between:

0)) TRAFIGURA PTE LTD, a company incorporated and registered in Singapore under
registration number 199601595D and having its registered office at 10 Collyer Quay, #29-00
Ocean Financial Centre Singapore 049315, Singapore, represented herein by two duly-
authorised directors and hereinafter referred to as “Supplier”; and

@) TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED a company duly incorporated and
existing under the laws of Pakistan under company number 010562, having its registered
office at 4th Floor, State Life Building 1C, I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi, Pakistan,
represented herein by two duly-authorised directors and hereinafter referred to as
“Customer™,

(each herein also referred to as a “Party” and jointly as the “Partjes™),

The Parties agree as follows:

1. Services Provided
1.1 Supplier will provide to Customer:

1.1.1  one or more of the services that form part of the category of services in respect
of which the box has been ticked on Annex A hereto (the “Services™) which
Services will be provided with reasonable care, skill and diligence; and

L.1.2 10 employees, who shall spend 100% of their contracted time with Supplier
providing the Services to Customer.

1.2 Either Party may subcontract provision or receipt of any of the Services only in
accordance with clause 6 of this agreement.

2. Consideration
Supplier will charge Customer for the Services on the basis of the cost to Supplier of
providing these Services (including time Spent, expenses incurred, and financial and
depreciation costs) plus a profit margin of 10% (the “Consideration™).

3. Settlement
The charges will be agreed between the Parties on an equitable basis, relative to the extent of
the Services provided and in light of the costs and expenses incurred by Supplier in doing so.
These charges shall be payable quarterly upon presentation of an invoice to Customer.

344



Duration and Termination
This Agreement takes effect on | October 2017 (the “Effective Date™).

This Agreement shall remain in force until it is terminated by either Party with three (3)
months’ prior written notice at any time.

Taxes

The Consideration is net of any withholding or value-added taxes.

Subcontracting and Nominee Appointment

6.1

6.2

Supplier may, at its own discretion, subcontract provision of any of the Services to
other entities, and Supplier will include such costs in the amount it charges Customer,
provided that Supplier shall remain liable to Customer for proper performance of the
Services.

Customer may, at its own discretion, appoint one or more of its affiliated companies

as nominee recipients of any of the Services, provided that Customer shall remain
liable to Supplier for prompt payment of the Consideration when due and payable.

Limitation of Liability

7.1

7.2

7.3

Nothing in this Agreement limits or excludes either Party’s liability for:

(2) death or personal injury caused by its negligence;
(b) its fraud or fraudulent misrepresentation; or
(©) any liability which cannot be limited or excluded by applicable law.

Subject to clause 7.1, neither Party shall be liable to the other Party, whether in
contract, tort (including negligence), for breach of statutory duty or otherwise, arising
under or in connection with this Agreement for:

7.2.1 loss of profits;

7.2.2 loss of sales or business;

7.2.3 loss of agreements or contracts;

7.2.4 loss of anticipated savings;

7.2.5 loss of or damage to goodwill;

7.2.6 loss of use or corruption of software, data or information; or

7.2.7 any indirect or consequential loss.

Subject to clause 7.1 and clause 7.2, the total liability of either Party to the other
Party, whether in contract, tort (including negligence), for breach of statutory duty or
otherwise, arising under or in connection with this Agreement shall be limited in
respect of all claims (connected or unconnected) in any consecutive |2 (twelve)

2
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month period, to the equivalent of the total charges due under this Agreement in
respect of that 12 month period.

Force Majeure

Should a Party be prevented from carrying out its obligations arising out of this Agreement as
a result of Force Majeure (as defined herein), such Party shall, upon giving prompt written
notice to the other Party, be excused from the performance of its obligations during the
pendency of such Force Majeure. The affected Party that is excused from performance by
Force Majeure shall take all reasonable measures to resume performance or mitigate the
effect of the Force Majeure at the earliest possible time.

“Force Majeure” shall mean any event beyond a Party’s reasonable control which, despite
that Party’s exercise of reasonable efforts, it cannot overcome, including but not limited to,
acts of God, public enemy, insurrections, riots, labor disputes, strikes, labor or material
shortage, fire, explosions, floods, storms, embargoes, breakdown or damage to equipment or
facilities (provided such equipment or facilities have been properly maintained), or acts of
military or civil authority. The failure to settle any labor disputes or strike shall not be
considered within the reasonable control of the Party suffering the dispute or strike.

Waiver

No failure or delay by either Party in exercising any right, power or privilege under this
Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial exercise thereof
preclude any other or further exercise of any right, power or privilege hereunder, unless the
waiving Party makes or confirms the waiver in writing.

Independent Entities

The Parties hereto are independent entities and nothing contained in this Agreement shall be
deemed or construed as creating a relationship of partnership, association, principal and agent
or joint venture by or between the Parties. The Parties shall have no right or authority to
assume or create any obligation or responsibility on behalf of the other Party or to bind the
other Party in any manner whatsoever even if such actions are taken for the benefit of the
other Party.

Entire Agreement

This Agreement sets forth all understandings between the Parties in respect of the
subject matter hereof, and any prior contracts, understandings and representations,
whether oral or written, relating to such arrangements are merged into and superseded
by this Agreement.

Amendments
No amendments, changes or modifications to this Agreement shall be valid unless made in
writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of each of the Parties hereto.

Severability

All clauses, subclauses and provisions of this Agreement shall be severable. If any one
or more of such subsections or provisions is void or voidable, it shall be struck out and all
other provisions shall remain, to the extent possible, unaffected and in full force and
effect.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Headings
The headings contained in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not affect the
construction hereof.

Confidentiality

Each Party agrees to maintain in confidence, both during the term of this Agreement and
thereafter, all confidential information relating to the business of the other Party, which it
may become aware of in connection with Supplier providing Services under this
Agreement. Each Party agrees not to use at any time, except for purposes of
performing its obligations under this Agreement, any such confidential information and
to return all same 1o the appropriate Party upon expiration or any termination of this
Agreement.

Applicable Law

This Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or its subject
matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the law of England and Wales.

Jurisdiction

Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, including any question
regarding its existence, validity or termination, shall be referred to and finally resolved by
arbitration under the LCIA Rules, which Rules are deemed to be incorporated by reference
into this clause.

The number of arbitrators shall be one. The seat, or legal place, of arbitration shall be
London.

Authority

Each Party represents and warrants that the respective individual signing below for and on
behalf of such Party has the necessary approval and authority to bind such Party to this
Agreement.

Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. It
is the express intent of the Parties hereto to be bound by the exchange of signatures on this
Agreement via facsimile or electronic mail via the portable document format (PDF).

(Signature page follows)
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IN WITNESS whereof this Agreement is signed by the respective duly authorized
representatives of the Parties.

TRAFIGURA PTE LTD

Name: Wlﬂlagi/ g 1n Jaede Na jcolas Marsac
or

Title: D Title: Director

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

By: j{ [ WW M, By: b o

e -
Name: Mm nJ \-/q() U m20 Name: 7&\’1\'\'\‘: [ (\L.\.
Title: _D 1R CTGK Tide: BIRECTOR
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ANNEX A

(Description of services in Services Agreement)

Category

"Support &
Administration"

Detailed description (whereby the category of
services may include any one or more of the below
detailed services)

Treasury support
© Assisting in raising payments

through data entry and validation of
key inputs such as name, account
number, amount to be paid etc.
Bank data reconciliations including
that of bank entry charges and
interest received from banks

Metal trading business support
o Entering data in specified formats

and templates in documents that
will later be developed and
presented to banks by the main
sellers as Letter of Credit
presentations

Oil trading business support
o Reconciliation of bank charges and

main business costs with regards to
financing of trades

Assistance on payments to labs
© Entering data such as lab name,

date of execution, value etc. based
on transactions made by the main
office / front office with labs
Generating a booking number
which is then approved by the front
office based on which the India
tcam generates payment orders

Fulfillment / operations support
©  Entering details of counterparties

including name, transaction type
and value, in the invoices, based on
data received from onshore
operators

Validating the details in the
invoices

Generating payment orders to pay
counterparties for their services

37>



&

|

"Information
Technology"

"Legal”

"Compliance"

e  Accounts support

o Setting up of new counterparties in
the internal system

o Bank reconciliation activities

© Internal Trafigura company
transactions' reconciliation
activities

o Other Accounts Payable support
activities

¢ Design and implementation of IT

infrastructure and package software

e Maintenance of IT infrastructure and

package software

¢ Design, creation, testing, implementation
o o

and maintenance of bespoke software

» Drafting contracts and advising on contract

negotiations

Advising on disputes

Advising on regulatory matters
Maintenance of corporate legal books and
records

¢ Drafting minutes, resolutions, declarations,

agreements and other corporate documents

» Compliance related back-office support

o Screening new counterparty set-up
requests

o Requests screened based on
multiple compliance parameters
including financial, ethical and
business reputation of the counter-
parties and findings presented

o Ongoing screening of existing
counterparties to check for
validation of their updated details
with the main business' compliance
requirements

¢ Insurance support

o Creating insurance records on the
third party website based on
storage and voyage transactions of
the main business

o Modifying the records in the
website based on any changes done
to transactions
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"Banking and other
Financial Services"

"Credit"

"Logistics &
Infrastructure”

"Trade Support”

"Engineering"

© Validation of bills received from
third party insurance vendor with
internal records

o Generating payment orders basis
validated bills

Risk management support

o Data entry in excel files

o Data validation using existing
records maitches

o Rectifying system inaccuracies

o Formatting the excel files

Cash and financing management

Arranging banking matters for:

- Obtaining letters of credit

- Negotiating loans

Support in making hedging decisions and
implementation of hedging decisions
Arrangement of insurance

Review of potential counterparties
Setting of credit limits

Monitoring of credit exposures against
limits

Arranging transportation facilities to
transport commodities around the world
Provision of office facilities

Design, implementation and maintenance
of communications technologies

Advice in the petrforming of marketing
techniques such as market surveys, market
analysis and evaluation, marketing
communications, identification of new
markets and trends, collecting and
dissemination of marketing information;
Support and advice in the field of product
information and public relations;

Support and advice in selecting suppliers,
distributors, and customers.

Providing engineering and architectural
studies and services for new or expanded
physical plant layouts
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"Human Resources"

"Planning"

Training of staff in production, quality
control, regulatory affairs, research and
development, and management techniques
Installation and start-up of new production
facilities

Location of new vendors/buyers for
materials, equipment and services where
not available locally.

Recruitment and evaluation of staff etc
Training

Staff Development

Payroll administration

Prepare strategic plans
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Oil & Gas
Regulatory Authority

OGRA-6(1)-NG/2018 July 04, 2018

Mr. Elias Chibani,

Chief Executive Officer,

Trafigura Pakistan (Private) Limited,
Behria Complex 3,

8" Floor M.T Khan Road,

KARACHI
Subject: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF LICENCE FOR SALE OF NATURAL
S /RLANG

Dear Sir, [ JJ_f”"u }

Please refer to your letter No Nil dated 17-05-201 8 on the above
subject.

1. In this regard following observations has been made in your application:

i) There is no date of signing of the agreements between applicant and
(a) Trafigura Pte Singapore and (b) Puma Energy Pakistan Ltd.

i) OGRA has granted license to PGPCL for terminal operation therefore
terminal capacity allocation of PGPCL is required.

iii) As per documents attached M/s Puma Energy Pakistan Ltd appears to be
aggregator rather than end consumer having no valid license for sale of
natural gas to CNG Stations, therefore the subject agreement is not

acceptable.

2. In view of above you are requested to furnish proper agreements /MoUs
between applicant Company and (i), SNGPL and SSGC for GTA (i) LNG suppliers
(i) PGPCL being Licensed Terminal Operator for regasification services

(iv) Prospective Consumers for further processing of your request.

prte]
(Abdul'Basit Qureshi)

Registrar
(For & on behaf of the Authority)

0/\e,

Best Regards,

C.C

Mr. Igbal Z Ahmed,
Chaiman,

PGP Consortium Limited,
Associated House,

Seven Egerton Road, LAHORE

54-B, Fazlul Haq Road, Blue Area, Islamabad. PABX: +92 51 9244090-98, Fax: +92 51 9244310
+92 51 9244310: 4S8 492 51 9244090-98:09-% sLTaM sl Lyyyly L, c39,3->dl 1 ad 54-B
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TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Dated: July 12, 2017

TO

The Registrar

Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority — OGRA
54-B, Fazal-e-Haq Road, Blue Area,
Islamabad, Pakistan

Tel: +92-51-9244090-98

Subject: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF LICENSE FOR SALE OF NATURAL GAS / RLNG
Dear Sir, @W \> ”‘B
e i

I am responding to your letter no. OGRA-6(1)-NG/2018 dated July 04, 2018 regarding the
application for grant of license for sale of natural gas / RLNG. You have asked us for
complementary information on_Agreement / MOUs between Trafigura Pakistan Pvt Ltd (the
Applicant) and SSGCL, SNGPL, LNG Suppliers, Licensed Terminal Operators, and Consumers.
The table below provides you with an overview of our detailed answers.

S. No | The Counterparty The Applicant

i SSGCL & SNGPL As advised by the authority, SSGC & SNGPL
were approached to enter into Gas
Transportation Agreement. But then, SNGPL
has reverted with letter # GMS:938(LNG)
dated June 29, 2018 (attached as an
Annexure- A) that they may only be
approached, once the TPA rules along with
Network Code come into force.

In view of the above, it is submitted to the
Authority to kindly issue license for the sale
and marketing of RLNG. However, the
effectiveness of the same may be considered
subject to the provision of final arrangements
with the SUIs.

Kind considerations will also enable us to
serve those customers who already have such
arrangements with SUIs companies.

Further to the above, we are still approaching
SUls to initiate discussions on Gas
Transportation Agreements as soon as
possible and will keep authority updated on
any further progress on it. J

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED
WWW.TRAFIGURA.COM
UNIVERSAL ID NUMRER: 01 10562
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TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED
[
ii. LNG Suppliers The executed Heads of Agreement for the
supply of LNG is attached as an Annexure - B
iil. Licensed Terminal Operator | PGPCL’s letter is attached as an Annexure — C
iv. Consumer The executed Heads of Agreement for sale of

RLNG with following customer are attached as
an Annexure - D,

1) M/s. Puma Energy Pakistan

2) M/s. Noor Petroleum Services

3) M/s. Hyderabad F/s

4) M/s. Jeewa F/s

5) M/s. Labbaik CNG F/s

6) M/s. Bara Dari CNG

7) M/s. Al Naseer Petroleum & CNG

8) M/s. Bismillah CNG

9) M/s. Raja Petroleum & CNG Services
10) M/s. Warraich Petroleum Services

Further to the above, the Applicant has been
approached by various customers from
different parts of the country for the supply of
RLNG and negotiations are still in progress.

L

Kindly let us know in case clarification is required on above.

a priority basis.

For and on behalf of
Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

Fadi Mitri
Chief Executive Officer

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LiMiTED

WWW.TRAHGURA.COM
UNIVERSAL ID NUMBER: 0] 10562
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) SUINORTHERN GAS PIPELINES LIMITED

-

gyt

Ref: GMS: 938 (LNG) June 29, 2018

. Ameer Ali,
Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd
8" Floor, Bahria Complex —IIi,

M.T Khan Road,
KARACHI
ALLOCATION OF PIPELINE CAPACITY
Dear Sir,
Reference your email dated 23.05.2018, regarding entering into Gas Transportation Agreement in order
to avail transportation capacities on SNGPL’s network.

We would like to bring to your kind notice that OGRA Gas (Third Party Access Rules) 2012 is repealed
now and new TPA Rules, 2018 has been notified. Further, Network Code which is a common set of
standard conditions governing access arrangement between transporter and shipper is under preparation
by both Sui Companies. Network Code being an integral part of the TPA Rules, 2018 is also required to
be approved by the Authority before implementation.

In view of the above, SNGPL shall be in a position to engage in the negotiation regarding pipeline
allocation or Gas Transportation Agreement, once the Network Code is duly approved by the Athourity.

Moreover, Government of Pakistan has already allocated pipeline capacities to different entities; whereas
clarification has been sought from the Competent Authority regarding the fate of these allocations.

It is therefore, requested that SNGPL may be approached once the TPA Rules along with Network Code
come into force and clarifications sought from the Competent Authority are received.

Meanwhile, we assure you of our best corporation at all times.

Regards,
Yours faithfully,
SUI NORTHERN GAS PIPELINES LIMITED

SHAHID MAQSUD %
General Manager (Sales)

Jor MANAGING DIRECTOR

Copy to;

®  SPS to Secretary - MoE {Petroleum Division), Istamabad:

¢ Additional Secretary, MoE (Petroleum Division), Islamabad

¢ Director General (Gas) — MoE (Petroleum Division), Islamabad
®  Director General (LGs) — MoE (Petroleum Division), Islamabad

. ] +92-42)9082000 ) . pan ~ [E
Tolephanes Exch: {ﬂsz_u)mzoos r.hphon.-,{ 042-99201058 Fax: D42-99201209 www.angpl.com.pk @ ‘;\/“




TRAFIGURA

TRAFIGURA PTE LTD, SINGAPORE, BRANCH OFFICE GENEVA
Heads of Agreement for a LNG Sales Agreement

This is a binding Heads of Agreement ("HOA”) for the fully termed Sale Purchase Agreement
{"SPA") between the Seller and the Buyer.

Item

Provisions

Seller

Trafigura Pte Ltd. {"Pte”) or any of its Affiliates.

Buyer

Trafigura Pakistan Pvt Ltd {“PAK").

Term

The term of the sale and purchase of LNG hereunder shall be for a period of fifteen
{15) Contract Years from 2018 until 2032 {*Term”), with an option to extend the Term
for an additional period of five (5} years subject to mutually agreement between the
Parties.

Buyer shall notify Seller of its request for an extension of the Term at least two (2)
years prior to expiry of the original Term, and following such notice, Seller and Buyer
shall discuss in good faith to an extension of the original Term.

Contract Year

Each Contract Year shall commence on 1st January and end on 31st December.

The commencement date of this Agreement (signifying the delivery date of the first
LNG Cargo under this Agreement) shall be discussed between Buyer and Seller.

Term of Delivery

Delivered Ex-Ship (DES).

LNG Ship

The LNG Ship size shall be between 130,000 - 160,000 m? in accordance with standard
industry practices and will be subject to ship shore compatibility.

Source of Supply

The source of supply shall be from PTE global LNG supply portfolio, including but not
limited to its 15 years supply agreements with producers in Australia, the USA and the
Middle East plus its short term trading portfolio (8,1 mtpa of LNG delivered in 2017)
which will allow Trafigura to access the LNG market at any time to supply PAK’s LNG
import requirements.

Seller shall be entitled to include new sources of supply in the list of PTE global LNG
supply portfolio, subject to the ING supplied from such source would meet the

required specifications. =

Receiving
Terminal

The Receiving Terminal shall be the FRSU-based LNG receiving terminals located in J

Port Qasim, Karachi, islamic Republic of Pakistan.

Alternative Receiving Facilities in Pakistan shall be included in the SPA, subject to
compatibility with LNG Vessels and Seller’s consent.

Port Charges

Port charges payable at Receiving Terminal shall be paid by the Seller

TRAFIGURA PTE LTD, SINGAPORE, BRANCH OFFICE GENEVA
REGSIEREL OFRCL § RUL JARGORMANT | 207 GENLYA. ST ZERL AND
REGISTEEL: NUMSER: CH-480.15290¢ -7
HEA: Omnce: TaanGuna PIELIT, BNGAPORE — REG 140: |9960) S50
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Seller’s Facilities,
LNG Vessels

Seller shall be responsible for transporting LNG from the Loading Port for deliveryof _|
such LNG to Buyer at the Delivery Point. A R

The SPA shall specify a pre-agreed list of LNG Vessels compatible with the Receiving
Terminal.

The SPA shall also set out the applicable specification for additional LNG vessels, which
shall include a gross tank capacity of between one hundred thirty thousand (130,000)
and one hundred sixty thousand (160,000) cubic metres of LNG.

Annual Contract
Quantity (“ACQ”")

The "ACQ" shall be approximately 0.5 million metric tons of LNG per Contract Year {or

2,85

a pro-rata proportion thereof in respect of the first Contract Year) S—
The buyer shall have option to increase ACP to approximately 05 million metric tons of
LNG for each Contract Year from the commencement of 2020 until the end of the
Supply Period; subject to the COD of new Terminal sponsored by any of Group
Company .

In each Contract Year the adjusted ACQ (“AACQ") shall be scheduled and delivered on
a reasonably rateable basis in cargoes falling within the range of one hundred and
thirty thousand (130,000) cubic metres to one hundred and sixty thousand {160,000)
cubic metres per cargo (with each such cargo having a quantity tolerance of up to five
(5) percent).

Selier Summer
LNG

With respect to any Contract Year, at the time when the relevant ADP is developed,
Seller shall have the right to increase the ACQ by up to 0.5 million metric tons of LNG
{being the equivalent of one (1) cargo per month), to be scheduled for delivery during
the summer months on a reasonably rateable basis.

Buyer's
Obligation to
Take or Pay

in each Contract Year, Seller shall seif and deliver in accordance with the SPA, and
Buyer shall purchase, receive and pay for, or pay for if not taken, the AACQ.

If Buyer fails to take all or part of a Cargo as required under the SPA, Buyer shall pay
Seller the Contract Price applicable to the Cargo (or any portion thereof) not taken.
Seller shall then use reasonable endeavours to sell the Cargo to another buyer and
upon doing so shall reimburse to Buyer the proceeds of that sale, Jess incremental
shipping and other associated costs incurred by Seller, up to a maximum amount,
being equai to the Contract Price multiplied by the applicable quantity, expressed in
MMBtu.

Seller's
Obligation to
Deliver or Pay

The SPA shall provide for the mechanism whereby Seller reimburses Buyer for actual,
incremental, direct and documented cover gas/LNG/downstream losses as a result of
non-delivery, up to the thermal quantity of Seller’s Shortfall, but in any case subject to
a cap of 20% of the Contract Price of the applicable cargo.

Contract Price,
Price Review

The LNG Price in USD/MMBtu for LNG sold and delivered as ACQ under the LNG SPA,
as applicable, shall be determined according to the following formula:

Pn = X.JOO% x Brentm
where:

X.XXXX% will be discounted to current OGRA Price.

Pn is the Contract Price applicable to the relevant LNG cargo, rounded to 4 decimal
places; Brentm for a given month is the arithmetic mean of the 3 values of BRICE
(USS/bbl) for the 3 months immediately preceding (and not including) the month in
which the commencement of unloading of the LNG cargo falls. Brentm shall be

TRAFIGURA PTE LTD, SINGAPORE, BRANCYH OFFICE GENEVA
REGHTIED OFRCE: § RUE JAIQOMMANT, 107 Gevbvs, Svn r2Ernesc
PO TRAPGEIRA. OO
RECHTERED Muredtn: CH 0157901 | .7
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rounded to 4 decimal places {with 0.0005 and above bring rounded up);
BRICE for a given month is the un-weighted arithmetic average of all the settlement

date, the applicable pricing quotation will be rolled to the second nearby maturity.
BRICE shall be rounded to 4 decimal places (with 0.005 and above bring rounded up).

Commencement of the discharge shall be deemed to occur at the point at which the
relevant LNG ship is shown to be all fast in the port log at the Receiving Terminal as
defined in the SPA.

The Contract Price shall be reviewed and revised with a new Contract Price {if any)
being effective on and from:

i.  Forthe first time, the fifth (S“‘) Contract Year
il.  Forthe second time, the tenth (10tM) Contract Year

The Price Review shall constitute the Contract Price structure, which includes slope
percentage but shall exclude any deletion or replacement of the Brent reference
index.

The LNG delivered into the Receiving Termina) shall, when regasified and measured at
Reference Conditions, conform to the further specification set out in the table below:

Reference | Characteristic Unit of Measure Limit

1 Higher Heating Value | Btu/scf min 940 max 1140

2 Wobbe Index Btu/scf min 1222 max 1534

3 Inert Gases, Total % (v/v) 4 max

4 Hydrocarbon Dew Point | °C ~4 max at 5,500 Kpa abs
5 Carbon Dioxide (CO,) | % (v/v) 2.0 max

6 Oxygen (0,) % (viv) 0.2 max

7 Hydrogen Sulphide (H,S) [ mg/m? 5.49 max

8 Total Sulphur mg/m’ 35 max

9 Total Mercury ng/ m* 50 max

For the purposes of this Schedule A, “Reference Conditions” shall mean a temperature
of 15°C and an absolute pressure of 1.01325 bar.,

/ 4

~
Price Review

i
ING
Specification

L,

LNG Outside
Specification

Provisions for Off-spec LNG shall be included in the SPA:
® Known receipt of Off-spec LNG - Seller covers Buyer’s actual reasonable,
documented, direct, incremental costs, subject to cap of 20% of the applicable

234
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cargo value; and

® Unknown receipt of Off-spec LNG - Seller covers Buyer’s actual reasonabie,
documented, direct, incremental costs, subject to cap of 100% of the
applicable cargo value,

Payment Terms

Invoices shall be payable in full in USD in fifteen (15) Banking Days from unloading of
Cargo or receipt of final invoice whichever is later, Interest shall be payable on any
unpaid amounts.

Credit Support

Buyer shall provide Seller with a Standby Letter of Credit from an international first-
class bank (or confirmed by such bank), valid for not fess than one (1) year, as may be

Buyer’s Letter of Credit shall at ail times cover not less than one hundred and five
percent (105%) of the value of the MMBtu equivalent of two (2) cargoes.

Force Majeure

The SPA shall contain standard Force Majeure provisions to be developed by the
Parties.

Suspension,
Termination

Standard default and termination provisions shall be developed by the Parties and
included in the SPA. Events of default shall include material breach of contract which
prevents that party from effectively performing, failure to pay amounts due,
insolvency and credit related events.

in the event of non-payment by Buyer, Seller shall be entitled to suspend its delivery
obligations until full payment is made,

Governing Law

The SPA shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the English

Title and Risk

Title to LNG and Natural Gas aboard a LNG Ship shall pass from Seller to Buyer in
international waters at the Title Transfer Point, being the point that is two (2) nautical
miles outside of Pakistan’s territorial waters.

Risk of LNG and Natural Gas on the LNG Ship shall pass from Seller to Buyer at the
flange of receiving Terminal.

. Other Terms

The SPA shall contain such other provisions as are usually included in the sale and
purchase agreements in the LNG industry, including but not limited to Title and Risk,
Transportation and Unloading, Insurance, Safety, Taxes, ADP and NDS,
Representations and Warvanties, Assignment, Audit Rights, Measurement and Testing,
Notices, Confidentiality, Compliance with Law, Anti-bribery and Corruption and
Dispute Resolution.

TRAFIGURA PTE LD, SINGAPORE, BRANCH OFFice GENEVA
ROGHETERED OMICE: § R JARGOMSART 1307 Gaev, STZERLAND

REGHTERED NuriR. CH 380-152901 1.7
HEAD OFIOE: TRAMGIRA P1E L1, SMGARORE - Rits NO: 199601 595D




RUNELLE - ¢

PGP Consortium Limited
Associated House, Seven Egerton Road, Lahore 54000

Dated: June 22, 2018

To

The Registrar

Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority - OGRA
54-8, Fazal-e-Haq Road, Blue Area,
Islamabad, Pakistan

Tel: +92-51-9244090-98

Subject: Confirmation — Trafigura’s Capacity in PGPCL Terminal

We hereby confirm that Trafigura Pakistan {Pvt.) limited (Or any of its affiliates) holds all the
spare capacity in Pakistan Gasport Consortium Limited ( PGPCL) Terminal for import of LNG
and sale of RLNG from our Terminali.

Dear Sir,

Yours Sincerely

For PGPCL

CC:
® CEO- Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd
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TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (Pvr.) L1,
8TH FLOOR, BAKRIA COMPLEX — 1, M.T. KHAN ROAD KaRACH
Datedon Mgy 2018

Heads of Agreement for a Gas Sales Agreement

This is a non-binding Heads of Agreement (“HOA™) for the fully termed Gas Sales
Agreement (“GSA”™) between the Seller and the Buyer (defined in Clause 1 below).

The Seller is desirous to selj RLNG and has extended its support to the Buyer.

Clause Term

( 1. | Parties 1. TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED {or any of
its group company), a company duly incorporated and existing
under the laws of Pakistan under company number 010562,
having its registered office at §* Floor, Bahria Complex - i,
M.T Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan, represented herein by two
duly-authorized directors (teferred 10 as "Seller which
expression shall, unless repugnant to the context or meaning
hereof, include its successors and permitted assigns and/or its

subsidiary(ies)); and

2. PUMA ENERGY PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED, a
company incorporated under the Companies Ordinance 1984
having its registered / head Office at 9 Floor, Bahria Complex
I, M.T. Khan Road, Karachi (referred to as "Buyer” which
expression shall, unless repugnant to the context or meaning
hereof, include its successors and permitted assigns).

- The Buyer and the Seller, each is hereinafter referred to as a “Party”
and together as the “Parties”,

The Buyer intents to enter into gas sales agreements with compressed
natural gas stations operated under the brand name of Puma Energy
Pakistan with other gas users across Pakistan,(*Buyer’s Customers®

Facility™).
The Seller has already applied to obtain License for sale and
distribution of Gas from OGRA.

The Seller (or its affiliate) has acquired a minority equity stake in
Pakistan Gas Port (PGPC) which gives Seller exclusive access to the
extra regasification capacity, this is being 90 MMSCFD, available for

175 days per year.
TRAFIGURA PYE. LTD,
Recryeur Oy lmhuvmmg::rm.lm.am 1L ) (7 w
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The Seller is willing to provide to the Buyer LNG supply along with
Regasification Services from Pakistan Gas Port Consortium ( PGPC)
for delivery of Regasified LNG through national gas pipeline grid at
the delivery point of the buyers’ designated CNG Stations.

AND WHEREAS, the parties have now come on board to form their
alliance and/or business combination specific to LNG services and
intend to lay out the principal terms and conditions of their alliance;

NOw, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutuaj benefits and
Covenants contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows
(always subject to applicable laws and regulations):

1) The Seller will make RLNG available 1o Buyer, Subject to
final price discussion and agreement of suitable terms,

2) The Seller will use its own exclusive access to the
regasification capacity at the PGPC FSRU terminal to
provide regasification services for the LNG it will provide to

The Buyer.

3) Consequently, the Seller has agreed to allocate RLNG
supplies upto 340 MMSCF in a month to the Buyer on
intermittent supply chain to be consumed on a monthly basis
» with a potential ramp up to 600 MMSCF per month in the
future subject to the Market dynamics and circumstances,

4) The deliveries of RLNG will have to be on delivered basis at
the facilities of the Buyer, unless mutually agreed between

parties.

2. [ Start Date ") The start date of Gas sales (“Start Date”) shall be fhe date when |
Seller shall deliver the first quantities of Gas and the Buyer shall
take delivery and pay for the Gas so delivered,

2) The Parties expect the Start Date to fall afier the Seller acquiring
necessary approvals and licenses from the government and
regulating authorities.

3) The Parties shall agree a windowing mechanism and conditions
precedent in the GSA. Upon the fulfilment or wajver of all the
conditions precedent therein, the Seler will provide notices to the
Buyer within set time windows providing an estimate of the
periods when the Seller expects the Start Date to occur as
provided by the following:

a) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 3 month period falling within the above 6 month
period;

b) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 1 month period falling within the above 3 month
period; and

c) finally, a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy) by

X7 Dk
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the Seller for the actual Start Date falling within the
above one month periced,
which will allow the Parties to progressively narrow down the Start

Date.
The term of the GSA is currently envisaged to be | year from the

3 [T Start Date (“Term”)and the Parties, by mutual agreement in writing,
nay agree extend the Term by an additional 1 year, The process by
which mutual agreement can be reached between the Parties will be
outlined in the GSA.

4. | General I. The Buyer shall inform the Seller immediately upon

Undertakings becoming aware of any event or circumstance, which has or

is reasonably likely to have a materia] adverse effect on the
Buyer’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

2. The Buyer shall not contravene any laws or legal
requirements which could reasonably be expected to have

Seller’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

4. The Seller shall not enter into any agreement and not
contravene any laws or legal requirements which could
reasonably be expected to have material adverse effect on jts
ability to perform jts obligations under the GSA or cause it to
be in breach, in any material respect(s), of its obligations
under the GSA.

5. | Quantity of Gas The total annual contract quantity (“ACQ”) of Gas to be sold by the
aarc .

MMSCF per annum.
6. | Quality The terms and conditions in relation to quality specifications of Gas
specifications of | shall be set out in the GSA.

Gas
7. | Principles of | In the GSA, the following principles will apply for determining the
Pricing of Gas price at which an Affiliate of the Seller will sell and the Buyer will

buy Gas respectively (“Contract Price™):

1. The Contract Price for Gas delivered or tendered for delivery
by the Seller to the Buyer shall be expressed in US Dollars
per MMBtu (US$/MMBtu);

2. The final price will have to be converted from USD into
PKR

3. For avoidance of doubt, the price will be brent-related and
not a fixed price for the full term of the contract,

4. All references to MMBty shall mean MMBtu on Gross

7
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Heating Value basis;

8. | Delivery If, during a certain period, the Seller fails to deliver or tender for
obligations of the delivery certain quantities of Gas (the duration of such period and
Seller such quantities to be specified in the GSA) to the Buyer (except for

reasons to be specified.in the GSA), the Seller shall pay the Buyer an
amount to be negotiated and specified in the GSA.

9. | Measurement 1. The unit of measurement to quantify amounts of Gas in the

GSA or in any document produced in accordance with the
terms of the GSA.

2. The Parties shall agree provisions in the GSA for the location,
standards and verification of measurement  equipment,
ownership of measurement equipment, the dispute resolution
mechanism in case of variations in measurement and alternate
provisions in case of a metering failure.

11. | Transportation | It is agreed that seller will have 1o make the RLNG/ Natural Gas
of Gas available to the buyer at the entry point of the buyers’ designated
CNG stations. The seller will use his allocation of pipeline access and
his GTAs with SSGC & SNGPL to transport the RLNG into the
buyer’s designated CNG stations,

12. | Title to Gas Title to Gas delivered pursuant to the GSA shall pass from the Seller
to the Buyer at the Delivery Point of respective designated CNG
stations,

The final price of the LNG will be advised by Trafigura at the time of
contract negotiation but will include, also, terminal Re-gasification,
transportation charges as well as all other applicable loca] taxes. Price
will be expressed and paid in PKR. For the avoidance of doubt, the
final price will be subject to the agreement of the Buyer.

13. | Price

The Buyer and the Seller shall comply with all applicable laws, rules

14. | Compliance with :
and regulations,

Laws
I5. | Invoicing and 1. The Buyer shall pay for the Gas delivered or tendered for
Payments delivery at the Delivery Point in the manner set out in the GSA.,
2. Terms and conditions in relation to invoicing and payment,
including billing cycles shall be set out in the GSA.
16. | Taxes and 1. The Buyer shall pay, or cause to be paid, all applicable Taxes
Charges related to the sale of Gas and other sums in respect of Gas

delivered or tendered for delivery under the GSA at the Delivery

Point.
2. Each Party shall bear Taxes on its own income.

17. | Force Majenre | The GSA shall contain industry standard provisions for force majeure
(including a definition of force majeure which shall include severe
weather _conditions) which would suspend obligations of the

T de
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respective Party impacted by the force majeure, notice and reporting
Tequirements, mitigation responsibility, consequences, termination

and notice of cessation.
18. | Conditions The sale and purchase of Gas under the GSA shall be subject to
Precedent certain conditions precedent, which shall include amongst others the
following:

1. The Seller and its Affiliates satisfactorily assuring themselves
of clearance and acceptability of the Facilities as well as the
use of Port Qasim for the delivery of LNG;

2. The Seller obtaining all relevant Consents to sell Gas in
Pakistan;

3. The seller executing third party gas pipeline access and
transportation agreements with SSGC & SNGPL, including
Necessary provisions covering balancing of Gas volumes with
the Transporter using the Transporter’s Facilities and
provisions addressing unaccounted for gas (also known as
UFG);

4. The Buyer obtaining all relevant Consents to buy Gas in
Pakistan.

Detailed terms and conditions including relevant deadlines in relation
to the conditions precedent shall be set out in the GSA subject to the

agreement of the parties.

19. | Miscellaneous
provisions Subject to agreement on all terms of the GSA by the Parties, the

Parties agree to reflect in the GSA in greater detail the key

commercial terms and principles recorded in this HOA. For the

avoidance of doubt, (8)nothing contained in this HOA s intended to

give rise to any binding contractual relationship nor shall this HOA

give rise to any right, obligation or liability on the part of either the

Buyer or the Seller to enter into the GSA;

(bJany such legally binding rights and obligations and consequent

liabilities would arise only in the event of, and as a result of, the

execution of a mutually acceptable GSA; and

(c) Each party shall bear its own costs in connection with this HOA,

the GSA and all matters contemplated by this HOA.

20. | Confidentiality 1) Each Party acknowledges that the Confidential Information is

confidential and undertakes:

a) to use the Confidential Information solely for the purpose set
out in this HOA;

b) to keep the Confidential Information in strict confidence;

¢) not, without the prior written consent of the other Party, to
disclose any Confidential Information furnished to it to any
third party other than its Representatives or to its Affiliates
who have a legitimate need to know such Confidential
Information;

d) before disclosing Confidential Information to any Affiliate or
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[ to its Representatives, to ensure that such person is aware of
the discloser’s obligations in this HOA, ensure compliance by
such person and be liable for any breach of such obligations
by such person; and

€) as far as possible to keep separate all Confidential
Information from all documents and other records of a Party.

2) The undertakings in Clause 25.1 shall not apply to any

Confidential Information which:

a) at the time of disclosure to the recipient Party or thereafier
has become part of public knowledge or literature without
breach of any of the said undertakings by such Party;

b) the recipient Party can show was in its possession at the time
of disclosure hereunder and was not acquired by such Party
under an obligation of confidence; or

c) the recipient Party can show was received by it after the time
of disclosure hereunder from a third party (other than one
disclosing on behalf of the other Party or its Affiliates) who
could lawfully do so and who did not derive the Confidential
Information from the other Party or any of its Affiliates.

The foregoing exceptions shall not, however, apply to:
(i)specific information merely because it is embraced by or
included with other information which falls within any one or
more of such exceptions; or
(i)any combination of information ‘merely because specific
information (but not the combination itself) falls within any one
or more of such exceptions.

3) In the event that the recipient Party, its Affiliates, Representatives
or other permitted recipients is required by an order of any
govemnment, state government agency or requested by any court
or legislative or administrative body including any recognised
stock exchange to disclose any Confidential Information, such
Party shall, to the extent it is lawful to do so, promptly and prior
to disclosure notify the disclosing Party so that an appropriate
protective order and/or other action can be sought and/or other
action can be taken if possible (and if it is not lawful to inform the
disclosing party prior to disclosure, the recipient Party shall
inform the disclosing Party as soon as it becomes lawful to do
s0). In the event that such protective order is not, or cannot be,
obtained, then:

a) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request may
disclose to the appropriate body that portion of the
Confidential Information which such Party is legally required
to disclose and shall use reasopable efforts to obtain
assurances that confidential treatment will be accorded to
such Confidential Information; and

b) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request shall
not be liable for such disclosure unless such disclosure was
caused by or resulted from a previous disclosure by such
Party or its Affiliates or any of their Representatives that was

?’.:f DHH
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not permitted under this HOA.
4) The Parties agree that, upon request by one Party, the other Party
shall promptly:

a) retumn or, at the option of the requesting Party, destroy all
Confidential Information that is in tangible form (including,
without limitation, Confidentia] Information contained on
computer disks or other electronic media) fumished to the
other Party, together with any copies or extracts thereof: and

b) destroy all analyses, compilations, studies or other documents
which have been prepared by the other Party or permitted
recipients and which reflect or are based upon any
Confidential Information, except to the extent that the
recipient Party is requited to retain any Confidential
Information by any applicable law, rule or regulation or by
any judicial, governmental, supervisory or regulatory body or
to the extent that such Confidential Information is
incorporated into organisational records which such Party is
required to retain by law or in accordance with internal
policies regarding the keeping of records generally, in which
case such Party will take appropriate measures to preserve its
continuing confidentiality.

21. | Governing Law | This HOA shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
and Dispute | Pakistani Law. Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this
Resolution HOA, including any question regarding its existence, validity or
termination, shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration

22. | Duration of | This HOA shall terminate either upon (a) the execution of the GSA
HOA by the Buyer and the Seller; or (b) the Parties discontinuing the
discussions on the terms of the GSA, whichever comes earlier. (©)
either party serving one Month Notice for terminating this Heads of

Agreement,
23. | Conduct of | Both Parties will strictly adhere fo the Codes, Practices and Conducts
Business of Business Ethics (which shall be more specifically referenced in the
GSA) including, but not limited to Anti-Bribery and Corruption and
Sanctions policies.
24. | Notices 1) All notices and other communications to be sent by either Party to

the other shall be delivered by hand or sent by personal delivery or
facsimile to the relevant Party’s address or facsimile number noted
below (or to such other address or facsimile number as g Party
may substitute by notice to the other in accordance with this
provision after the date of this HOA):

To Buyer: Puma Energy Pakistan

Address:  8th Floor, Bahria Complex — I1I, M.T. Khan Road
Attention: [insert]

Fax number: Email: [insert]

To Seller: Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

= D
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Address: - §th Floor, Bahria Complex — IIT, M.T Kiian Road ]
Attention:  Fadi Mitri
Fax number:

2) All notices or other communications under this HOA shall be
deemed to be duly given or made on the next business day in the
Jurisdiction of receipt following the date of delivery or (in the case
of personal delivery) or receipt by the sender of a valid

transmission confirmation (in the case of facsimile).

25. | Counterparts This HOA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which will be deemed an o iginal and all of which together will
constitute one and the same instrument.

The Parties hereto have executed this Heads of Agreement on the day and year first
above written:

For and on behalf of
Trafigura Pakistani (Pvt) Ltd,
Signature;
Name; Mr. Fadi Mitri
Title; CEO
Witnesses:
v
1. Signature;

Name: ﬁnvm/h y TUITeRR
Title: mwu’q_,

2. Signature:

M M i

Title:
Puma Energy Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

(YIHLL
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Witnesses:

1. Signature: N W b
Name:  NISA Arimg€D  Kirg7)
Title: Heoo ‘D/ :

2. Signature: M
,l’ﬁ'_znf: Moran g
iue: REM_ %()\)_i \\
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TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PvT.) LTD. T
8TH FLOOR, BAHRIA COMPLEX — Il M.T. KHan Roap KARACHI Q
Dated on June Beck 2018
Heads of Agreement for a Gas Sales Agreement
This is a non-binding Heads of Agreement (“HOA”) for the fully termed Gas Sales
Agreement (“GSA”) between the Seller and the Buyer (defined in Clause I below).
The Seller is desirous to sel] RLNG and has extended jts support to the Buyer,
‘ Clause | Term
C 1. | Parties 1. TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED (or any of
its group company), a company duly incorporated and existin
under the laws of Pakistan under company number 010562
having its registered office at 8™ Floor, Bahria Complex - I11,
M.T Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan, represented herein by two
duly-authorized directors (referred to as "Seller" which
€xpression shall, unless répugnant to the context or meaning
hereof, include its Successors and permitted assigns and/or its
subsidiary(ies)); and
2 M[S NWOR SeEan e LeQuees
........ (referred to as "Buyer" which expression shall, unless
répugnant to the context or meaning hereof, include its
Successors and permitted assigns).
: The Buyer and the Seller, each is hereinafter referred to as a “Party”
L and together as the “Parties™.

The Seller has already applied to obtain License for sale and
distribution of Gas from OGRA.

The Seller is willing to provide to the Buyer RLING supply along

TRAFIGURA PTE, LTD.

REGISTERED OFrice: | MaRriNA Bourevarp, #28-00, ONE MARINA BOULEVARD, SINGARORE (018989)
WWW.TRAFIGURA.COM
REGISTERED INUMBER: 19960 | 595D
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with Regasificatio Services from Pakistan Gas Port Consortium (
PGPC) for delivery of Regasified LNG through national gas
pipeline grid at the delivery point of the buyers’ CNG Station,

AND WHEREAS, the parties have now come on board to form thejr
alliance and/or business combination specific to LNG services and
intend to lay out the principal terms and conditions of thejr
cooperation;

NOw, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutyal benefits and
covenants contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows
(always subject to applicable laws and regulations):

3) Consequently, the Seller has agreed to allocate RLNG

Start Date 1) The start date of Gag sales (“Start Date” shall be the date when
Seller shall deliver the first quantities of Gas and the Buyer shall
take delivery and pay for the Gas so delivered.

2) The Parties expect the Start Date to f3]]

d by [mm/yy] by the Seller
g within the above 6 month

b) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 1 month period falling within the above 3 month
period; and

c) finally, a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by

the Seller for the actual Start Date falling within the
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above one month period,

which will allow the Parties to progressively narrow down the Start
Date.

3. | Term The term of the HOA is currently envisaged to be 1 year from the
Start Date (“Term™)and the Parties, by mutyaj agreement in writing,

General
Undertakings

1. The Buyer shall inform the Seller immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance, which has or
is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect op the
Buyer’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

2. The Buyer shall not Contravene any Jaws or legal

Quantity of Gas The total annuaj contract quantity (“*ACQ”) of Gas to be sold by the

Seller and to be purchased, taken and paid for by the Buyer at the
Delivery Point in a Contract Fiscal Year shall be approximately 160
= Quality
specifications of
Gas
Principles of

MMSCF per annum,
Pricing of Gas

tions in relation to
GSA.

The terms and condi
shall be set out in the

In the GSA, the following principles will apply for determining the
price at which an Affiliate of the Seller will sell and the Buyer will
buy Gas respectively (“Contract Price”):

1. The Contract Price for Gas delivered or tendered for delivery
by the Seller to the Buyer shall be €xpressed in US Dollars
per MMBty (US$/MMBtu);

2. The final price will have to be converted from USD into
PKR

3. For avoidance of doubt, the price will be brent-related and
not a fixed price for the full term of the contract.

4. All references to MMBtu shall mean MMBtu on Gross

Heating Value basis;
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If, during a certain period, the Seller fails to deliver or tender for
obligations of the delivery certain quantities of Gas (the duration of such period and

amount to be negotiated and specified in the GSA.

Measurement 1. The unit of measurement to quantify amounts of Gas in the
GSA or in any document produced in accordance with the
terms of the GSA.

2. The Parties shall agree provisions in the GSA for the location,
Standards and verification of measurement equipment,
ownership of measurement equipment, the dispute resolution
mechanism in case of variations in measurement and alternate
provisions in case of g metering failure,

11. Transportaﬁon It is agreed that seller
of Gas available to the buyer at

12. /Title to Gas

13. | Price The final price of th-e .

14. | Compliance with | The Buyer and the Seller shall comply with all applicable laws, rules

Laws and regulations.
Invoicing and 1. The Buyer shall pay for the Gas delivered or tendered for
Payments delivery at the Delivery Point in the manner set out in the GSA.

2. Terms and conditions in relation to invoicing and payment,
including billing cycles shalj be set out in the GSA.

Taxes and 1. The Buyer shall pay, or cause to be paid, all applicable Taxes
Charges related to the sale of Gas and other sums in respect of Gas
delivered or tendered for delivery under the GSA at the Delivery

2. Each Party shall bear Taxes on its own income.

Force Majeure

The GSA shall contain industry standard provisions for force majeure
(including a definition of force majeure which shal] include severe

gation responsibi
and notice of cessation,
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18. | Conditions
Precedent

The sale and purchase of Gas under the GSA shall be subject to
certain conditions precedent, which shall include amongst others the
following:

1. The Seller and its Affiliates satisfactorily assuring themselves
of clearance and acceptability of the Facilities as well as the
use of Port Qasim for the delivery of LNG;

2. The Seller obtaining all relevant Consents to sell Gas in
Pakistan;

necessary provisions covering balancing of Gas volumes with
the Transporter using the Transporter’s Facilities and
provisions addressing unaccounted for gas (also known as
UFG);

4. The Buyer obtaining all relevant Consents to buy Gas in
Pakistan.

Detailed terms and conditions including relevant deadlines in relation
to the conditions precedent shall be set out in the GSA subject to the
agreement of the parties.

19, Miscellaneous
provisions

Subject to agreement on all terms of the GSA by the Parties, the
Parties agree to reflect in the GSA in greater detail the key
commercial terms and principles recorded in this HOA. For the
avoidance of doubt, (a)nothing contained in this HOA is intended to
give rise to any binding contractuaj relationship nor shall this HOA
give rise to any right, obligation or liability on the part of either the
Buyer or the Seller to enter into the GSA;

(b)any such legally binding rights and obligations and consequent
liabilities would arise only in the event of, and as a resylt of, the
execution of a mutually acceptable GSA; and

(c) Each party shall bear its OWn costs in connection with this HOA,
the GSA and all matters contemplated by this HOA.

20. Confidentiality

1) Each Party acknowledges that the Confidential Information is

confidential and undertakes:

a) to use the Confidential Information solely for the purpose set
out in this HOA;

b) to keep the Confidential Information in strict confidence;

¢) not, without the prior written consent of the other Party, to
disclose any Confidentia] Information furnished to it to any
third party other than jts Representatives or to jts Affiliates
who have a legitimate need to know such Confidential
Information;

d) before disclosing Confidentia] Information to any Affiliate or
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2) The undertakings in Clayse 25.1 shall not apply to any

Confidential Information which:

a) at the time of disclosure to the recipient Party or thereafter
has become part of public knowledge or literature without
breach of any of the said undertakings by such Party;

b) the recipient Party can show was in its possession at the time

The foregoing exceptions shall not, however, apply to:
(specific information merely because it is embraced by or
included with other information which fajls within any one or
more of such exceptions; or
(i)any combination of information merely because specific
information (but not the combination itself) falls within any one
or more of such exceptions,

3) Inthe event that the recipient Party, its Affiliates, Representatives

or other permitted recipients is required by an order of any

obtained, then:

a) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request may
disclose to the appropriate  body that portion of the
Confidential Information which such Party is legally required
to disclose and shall yge reasonable efforts to obtain
assurances that confidential treatment will be accorded to
such Confidentia] Information; and

b) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request shal]

not permitted under this HOA.
4) The Parties agree that, upon request by one Party, the other Party
shall promptly:
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a) return or, at the option of the requesting Party, destroy all
Confidential Information that is in tangible form (including,
without limitation, Confidentia] Information contained on

b) destroy all analyses, compilations, studies or other documents

policies regarding the keeping of records generally, in which
case such Party will take appropriate measures to preserve its
continuing confidentiality.

and Dispute | Pakistani Law. Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this
Resolution HOA, including any question regarding its existence, validity or

Duration of | This HOA shal] terminate either upon (a) the execution of the GSA
HOA by the Buyer and the Seller; or (b) the Parties discontinuing the
discussions on the terms of the GSA, whichever comes earlier. (c)
either party serving one Month Notice for terminating this Heads of

Agreement.
Conduct of | Both Parties wil] strictly adhere to the Codes, Practices and Conducts
Business of Business Ethics (which shall be more specifically referenced in the
GSA) including, but not limited to Anti-Bribery and Corruption and
Sanctions policies.
Notices 1) All notices and other communications to be sent by either Party to

provision after the date of this HOA):
N7z i eny ] ﬁ
To Buyer: ®yMA Tw R ALGESRAN DN ) (RO

Address: B, A Wiy N, Wi e Nz am
Attention: [insert] 3> SO ‘(W"m‘* 200y
Fax number: Emajl: [insert] ¢ A0 019\9\'57\\\%

To Seller: Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

Address: 8th Floor, Bahria Complex — I, ML.T. Khan Road
Attention: Fadi Mitri

Fax number:
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of personal delivery)

2) All notices or other comm
deemed to be duly given
Jurisdiction of receipt foll

transmission confirmatio

unications under this HOA shall be

or made on the next business day in the
owing the date of delivery or (in the case
or receipt by the sender of a valid
n (in the case of facsimile).

25. Counterparts

which will be deemed an orj
constitute one and the same ins

|
This HOA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
ginal and all of which together will
trument.

£
The Parties hereto have executed this Heaq:»‘?’ of Agreement on the day and year first

above written:

(" For and on behalf of
Trafigura Pakistani (Pvt) Ltd,

Signature:

Name:
Title:

Witnesses:

1. Signature: S

Name: MOWSTN aLT
Title: o - ANEUNWY

L./ 2. Signature:
Name; H \M:
Title:

ABC
NOOR, SRR, i

2®

ot

x¥gzi City, BinQasi
CEO :
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TRAFIGURA

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PvT.) LTD. -
8TH FLOOR, BAHRIA CompLex ~ I, M.T. KHAN Roap KARACHI quN

Dated on June #x| 2018
Heads of Agreement for a Gags Sales Agreement

This is a non-binding Heads of Agreement (“HOA”) for the fully termed Gag Sales
Agreement (“GSA”) between the Seller and the Buyer (defined in Clause 1 below).

The Seller is desirous to sell RLNG and has extended its support to the Buyer.

------------------------------------------------------------------------------

........ "Buyer" which expression shall, unless
fpugnant to the context or meaning  hereof, include its
Successors and permitted assigns).

The Buyer and the Seller, each is hereinafter referred to as a “Party”
and together as the “Pa.rties”.

The Seller intents to enter into gas sales agreements with the licensee
of compressed natura] gas station operated under the brand name of
Puma Energy Pakistan and with other gas users across
Pakistan,(“Buyer’s Customers’ Facility”).

The Seller has already applied to obtain License for sale and
distribution of Gas from OGRA.

TRAFIGURA PTE, Ltp. o
REGISTERED OFficE: | MARINA BOULEVARD, #28-00, ONE MaRINA BOULEVARD, SiNGAPORE (018989)
" TRAFIGURA.COM
REGISTERED NuMBER: | 99601595D
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Start Date

2) The Parties €xpect the Start Date to fa] after the Seller acquiring

3)

o

with Regasification Services from Pakistan Gas Port Consortium (
PGPC) for delivery of Regasified LNG through national gas
Pipeline grid at the delivery point of the buyers’ CNG Station,

AND WHEREAS, the parties have now come on board to form thejr
alliance and/or business combination specific to LNG services and
intend to lay out the principal terms anq conditions of theijr
cooperation;

NOw, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutyal benefits and
Covenants contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows
(always subject to applicable laws and regulations):

regasification capacity at the PGPC FSRU terminal to
provide regasification services for the LNG it will provide to
The Buyer.

3) Consequently, the Seller hag agreed to allocate RING
supplies upto 5 MMSCF in a month to the Buyer on

1) The start date of Gas sales (“Start Date”) shall be the date when
Seller shall deliver the first quantities of Gas and the Buyer shall
take delivery and pay for the Gas so delivered.

hecessary approvals and licenses from the government and
regulating authoritieg,

d by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 3 month period falling within the above 6 month

b) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 1 month period falling within the above 3 month
period; and

c) finally, a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by
the Seller for the actual Start Date falling within the
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above one month period,
which will allow the Parties to progressively narrow down the Start
Date.
The term of the HOA is currently envisaged to be ] year from the
Start Date (“Term”)and the Parties, by mutual agreement in writing,
may agree extend the Term by an additiona] 1 year. The process by

outlined in the GSA.

1. The Buyer shall inform the Seller immediately upon

becoming aware of any event or circumstance, which has or

is reasonably likely to have a materia] adverse effect on the
Buyer’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

2. The Buyer shall not contravene

General
Undertakings

any material respect(s), of its obligations under the GSA.

3. The Seller shall inform the Buyer immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance which has or
is reasonably likely to have a materia] adverse effect on the
Seller’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

4. The Seller shall not enter into any agreement and not

contravene any laws or legal requirements which could

reasonably be expected to have material adverse effect on its
ability to perform its obligations under the GSA or cause it to
be in breach, in any material respect(s), of its obligations
under the GSA.

Quantity of Gas | The tota] annual contract quantity (“ACQ”) of Gas to be sold by the
Seller and to be purchased, taken and paid for by the Buyer at the
Delivery Point in a Contract Fiscal Year shall be approximately 160

MMSCF per annum.

The terms and conditions in relation to quality specifications of Gas
shall be set out in the GSA.

Quality
specifications of
Gas
Principles
Pricing of Gas

of | In the GSA, the following principles will apply for determining the
price at which an Affiliate of the Seller will sell and the Buyer will

buy Gas respectively (“Contract Price™):

1. The Contract Price for Gas delivered or tendered for delivery
by the Seller to the Buyer shall be expressed in US Dollars
per MMBtu (US$/MMBtu);

2. The final price will have to be converted from USD into
PKR

3. For avoidance of doubt, the price will be brent-related and
not a fixed price for the full term of the contract,

4. All references to MMBtu shall mean MMBtu on Gross
Heating Value basis;
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Delivery
obligations of the
Seller

If, during a certain period, the Seller fails to deliver or tender for
delivery certain quantities of Gas (the duration of such period and
such quantities to be specified in the GSA) to the Buyer (except for
reasons to be specified in the GSA), the Seller shall pay the Buyer an
amount to be negotiated and specified in the GSA.

Measurement

1. The unit of measurement to quantify amounts of Gas in the
GSA or in any document produced in accordance with the
terms of the GSA.

2. The Parties shall agree provisions in the GSA for the location,
standards and verification of measurement equipment,
ownership of measurement equipment, the dispute resolution
mechanism in case of variations in measurement and alternate
provisions in case of a metering failure.

11.

Transportation
of Gas

It is agreed that seller will have to make the RLNG/ Natural Gas
available to the buyer at the entry point of the buyers’ CNG station.
The seller will use his allocation of pipeline access and his GTAs
with SSGC & SNGPL to transport the RLNG into the buyer’s CNG
station.

12.

Title to Gas

Title to Gas delivered pursuant to the GSA shall pass from the Seller
to the Buyer at the Delivery Point of CNG station.

13.

Price

The final price of the RLNG will be advised by Trafigura at the time
of contract negotiation but will include, also, terminal Re-
gasification, transportation charges as well as all other applicable
local taxes. Price will be expressed and paid in PKR. For the
avoidance of doubt, the final price will be subject to the agreement of
the Buyer.

14.

Compliance with
Laws

The Buyer and the Seller shall comply with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

15.

Invoicing and
Payments

1. The Buyer shall pay for the Gas delivered or tendered for
delivery at the Delivery Point in the manner set out in the GSA.

2. Terms and conditions in relation to invoicing and payment,
including billing cycles shall be set out in the GSA.

16.

Taxes and
Charges

1. The Buyer shall pay, or cause to be paid, all applicable Taxes
related to the sale of Gas and other sums in respect of Gas
delivered or tendered for delivery under the GSA at the Delivery
Point.

2. Each Party shall bear Taxes on its own income.

17.

Force Majeure

The GSA shall contain industry standard provisions for force majeure
(including a definition of force majeure which shall include severe
weather conditions) which would suspend obligations of the
respective Party impacted by the force majeure, notice and reporting
requirements, mitigation responsibility, consequences, termination
and notice of cessation.

—
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18. | Conditions
Precedent

The sale and purchase of Gas under the GSA shall be subject to
certain conditions precedent, which shall include amongst others the
following:

1. The Seller and its Affiliates satisfactorily assuring themselves
of clearance and acceptability of the Facilities as well as the
use of Port Qasim for the delivery of LNG;

2. The Seller obtaining all relevant Consents to sell Gas in
Pakistan;

3. The seller executing third party gas pipeline access and
transportation agreements with SSGC & SNGPL, including
necessary provisions covering balancing of Gas volumes with
the Transporter using the Transporter’s Facilities and
provisions addressing unaccounted for gas (also known as
UFG);

4. The Buyer obtaining all relevant Consents to buy Gas in
Pakistan.

Detailed terms and conditions including relevant deadlines in relation
to the conditions precedent shall be set out in the GSA subject to the
agreement of the parties.

Miscellaneous
provisions

Subject to agreement on al] terms of the GSA by the Parties, the
Parties agree to reflect in the GSA in greater detail the key
commercial terms and principles recorded in this HOA. For the
avoidance of doubt, (a)nothing contained in this HOA is intended to
give rise to any binding contractual relationship nor shall this HOA
give rise to any right, obligation or liability on the part of either the
Buyer or the Seller to enter into the GSA;

(b)any such legally binding rights and obligations and consequent
liabilities would arise only in the event of, and as a result of, the
execution of a mutually acceptable GSA; and

(¢) Each party shall bear its OWn costs in connection with this HOA,
the GSA and all matters contemplated by this HOA.

Confidentiality

1) Each Party acknowledges that the Confidential Information is

confidential and undertakes:

a) to use the Confidential Information solely for the purpose set
out in this HOA;

b) to keep the Confidential Information in strict confidence;

¢) not, without the prior written consent of the other Party, to
disclose any Confidential Information furnished to it to any
third party other than its Representatives or to its Affiliates
who have a legitimate need to know such Confidential
Information;

d) before disclosing Confidential Information to any Affiliate or
to its Representatives, to ensure that such person is aware of

the discloser’s obligations in this HOA, ensure compliance by
such person and be liable for any breach of such obligations }
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by such person; and
€) as far as possible to keep separate all Confidential
Information from all documents and other records of a Party.

2) The undertakings in Clause 25.1 shall not apply to any

Confidential Information which:

a) at the time of disclosure to the recipient Party or thereafter
has become part of public knowledge or literature without
breach of any of the said undertakings by such Party;

b) the recipient Party can show was in its possession at the time
of disclosure hereunder and was not acquired by such Party
under an obligation of confidence; or

c) the recipient Party can show was received by it after the time
of disclosure hereunder from a third party (other than one
disclosing on behalf of the other Party or its Affiliates) who
could lawfully do so and who did not derive the Confidential
Information from the other Party or any of its Affiliates,

The foregoing exceptions shall not, however, apply to:

3)

4)

(D)specific information merely because it is embraced by or
included with other information which falls within any one or
more of such exceptions; or
(iDany combination of information merely because specific
information (but not the combination itself) falls within any one
or more of such exceptions.

In the event that the recipient Party, its Affiliates, Representatives
or other permitted recipients is required by an order of any
government, state government agency or requested by any court
or legislative or administrative body including any recognised
stock exchange to disclose any Confidential Information, such
Party shall, to the extent it is lawful to do so, promptly and prior
to disclosure notify the disclosing Party so that an appropriate
protective order and/or other action can be sought and/or other
action can be taken if possible (and if it is not lawful to inform the
disclosing party prior to disclosure, the recipient Party shall
inform the disclosing Party as soon as it becomes lawful to do
$0). In the event that such protective order is not, or cannot be,
obtained, then:

a) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request may
disclose to the appropriate body that portion of the
Confidential Information which such Party is legally required
to disclose and shall use reasonable efforts to obtain
assurances that confidential treatment will be accorded to
such Confidential Information; and

b) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request shall
not be liable for such disclosure unless such disclosure was
caused by or resulted from a previous disclosure by such
Party or its Affiliates or any of their Representatives that was
not permitted under this HOA.

The Parties agree that, upon request by one Party, the other Party

shall promptly:
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a) return or, at the option of the requesting Party, destroy all
Confidential Information that is jn tangible form (including,
without limitation, Confidential Information contained on
computer disks or other electronic media) furnished to the
other Party, together with any copies or extracts thereof; and

b) destroy all analyses, compilations, studies or other documents
which have been prepared by the other Party or permitted
recipients and which reflect of are based upon any
Confidential Information, except to the extent that the
recipient Party is required to retain any Confidential
Information by any applicable law, rule or regulation or by
any judicial, governmental, supervisory or regulatory body or
to the extent that such Confidential Information is
incorporated into organisational records which such Party is
required to retain by law or in accordance with internal
policies regarding the keeping of records generally, in which
case such Party will take appropriate measures to preserve its
continuing confidentiality.

21. | Governing Law | This HOA shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
and Dispute | Pakistani Law. Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this
Resolution HOA, including any question regarding its existence, validity or

termination, shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration

22. | Duration of | This HOA shall terminate either upon (a) the execution of the GSA
HOA by the Buyer and the Seller; or (b) the Parties discontinuing the
discussions on the terms of the GSA, whichever comes earlier. (c)
either party serving one Month Notice for terminating this Heads of

Agreement.

of | Both Parties will strictly adhere to the Codes, Practices and Conducts

of Business Ethics (which shall be more specifically referenced in the

GSA) including, but not limited to Anti-Bribery and Corruption and

Sanctions policies.

1) All notices and other communications to be sent by either Party to
the other shall be delivered by hand or sent by personal delivery or
facsimile to the relevant Party’s address or facsimile number noted
below (or to such other address or facsimile number ag a Party
may substitute by notice to the other in accordance with this

provision after the date of this HOA):

Conduct
Business

24. | Notices

To Buyer: ,
Address: MM %%?Q&X Qead Wi,

Attention: [insert] N\ %OJ\J\\Q«/\QAK b
Fax number: Email: [insert] O AV - B/ Q_\O,\LA\

To Seller: Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

Address: 8th Floor, Bahria Complex —ITI, M.T. Khan Road
Attention: Fadi Mitri

Fax number:




‘N

Sul PRIVATE A Ll (RS

“n

2) All notices or other communications under this HOA shall be

deemed to be duly given or made on the next business day in the
b, - Jjurisdiction of receipt following the date of delivery or (in the case
- of personal delivery) or receipt by the sender of g valid
transmission confirmation (in the case of facsimile).

25. | Counterparts This HOA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which will be deemed an original and all of which together will
constitute one and the same instrument. )

| | B

The Parties hereto have executed thjs Heads of Agreement on the day and year first
above written:

For and on behalf of
Signature: Wl .
S v 255 Road HyderaFad—
Name: Mr. Fadi Mitri Y\\\?“‘ ATS > Bye Pass Road Hy
& . A
Title: CEO % CEo
o
»
Witnesses:

1. Signature:
Name: N %2/

Title: e
Name: A~ \MA\

Title:
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TRAFIGURA

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PvT.)LTD. .
8TH FLOOR, BAHRIA COMPLEX ~ ll, M.T. KHAN ROAD KARACH 2A[HUAY

Dated on June ped- 2018

Heads of Agreement for a Gas Sales Agreement

This is a non-binding
Agreement (“GSA'®

Heads of Agreement (“HOA”) for the fully termed Gas Sales
) between the Seller and the Buyer (defined in Clause ] below).

The Seller is desirous to sel] RLNG and has extended its support to the Buyer.

Clause

Term

1.

Parties

1. TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED (or any of
its group company), a company duly incorporated and existing
under the laws of Pakistan under company number 010562,
having its registered office at 8% Floor, Bahria Complex - III,
M.T Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan, represented herein by two
duly-authorized directors (referred to as "Seller" which
expression shall, unless Iepugnant to the context or meaning
hereof, include its Successors and permitted assigns and/or its
subsidiary(ies)); and

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------

........ (referred to as "Buyer" which expression shall, unless
ICpugnant to the context or meaning hereof, include ijts
successors and permitted assigns).

The Buyer and the Seller, each is hereinafter referred to as a “Party”
and together as the “Parties”.

The Seller intents to enter into gas sales agreements with the licensee
of compressed natural gas station operated under the brand name of
Puma Energy Pakistan and with other gas users across
Pakistan,(“Buyer’s Customers’ Facility™).

The Seller has already applied to obtajn License for sale and
distribution of Gas from OGRA.

€xtra regasification capacity, this is being 90 MMSCFD, available for
175 days per year.

The Seller is willing to provide to the Buyer RLNG supply along

TRAFIGURA PTE. LvD.

REGISTERED OFFICE: | MaRINA BOULEVARD, #28-00, ONE MaRiNA BOULEVARD, SINGAPORE (018989)

WWW.TRAFIGURA.COM

REGISTERED NUMBER; 1996015950
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with Regasification Services from Pakistan Gas Port Consortium (
PGPC) for delivery of Regasified LNG through national gas
pipeline grid at the delivery point of the buyers® CNG Station.

AND WHEREAS, the parties have now come on board to form their
alliance and/or business combination specific to ILNG services and
intend to lay out the principal terms and conditions of their
cooperation;

NOwW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and
covenants contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows
(always subject to applicable laws and regulations):

1) The Seller will make RLNG available to Buyer, Subject to
final price discussion and agreement of suitable terms,

2) The Seller will use its own exclusive access to the
regasification capacity at the PGPC F SRU terminal to
provide regasification services for the LNG it will provide to
The Buyer.

3) Consequently, the Seller has agreed to allocate RING
supplies upto 5 MMSCF in a month to the Buyer on
intermittent supply chain to be consumed on a monthly basis
» with a potential ramp up to § MMSCF per month in the
future subject to the Market dynamics and circumstances,

4) The deliveries of RLNG will have to be on delivered basis at
the facilities of the Buyer, unless mutually agreed between
parties.

Start Date

1) The start date of Gas sales (“Start Date”) shall be the date when
Seller shall deliver the first quantities of Gas and the Buyer shall
take delivery and pay for the Gas so delivered.

2) The Parties expect the Start Date to fall after the Seller acquiring
necessary approvals and licenses from the government and
regulating authorities.

3) The Parties shall agree a windowing mechanism and conditions
precedent in the GSA. Upon the fulfilment or waiver of all the
conditions precedent therein, the Seller will provide notices to the
Buyer within set time windows providing an estimate of the
periods when the Seller expects the Start Date to occur as

provided by the following:

a) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 3 month period falling within the above 6 month
period;

b) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 1 month period falling within the above 3 month
period; and

c) finally, a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by

the Seller for the actual Start Date falling within the
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above one month period,
which will allow the Parties to progressively narrow down the Start
Date.

The term of the HOA is currently envisaged to be | year from the

2 e Start Date (“Term”)and the Parties, by mutual agreement in writing,
may agree extend the Term by an additional ] year. The process by
which mutual agreement can be reached between the Parties will be
outlined in the GSA.

4. | General 1. The Buyer shall inform the Seller immediately upon

Undertakings becoming aware of any event or circumstance, which has or
is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Buyer’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.
2. The Buyer shall not contravene any laws or legal
requirements which could reasonably be expected to have
material adverse effect on its ability to perform its
obligations under the GSA and or cause it to be in breach, in
any material respect(s), of its obligations under the GSA.
3. The Seller shall inform the Buyer immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance which has or
is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Seller’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA,
4. The Seller shall not enter into any agreement and not
contravene any laws or legal requirements which could
reasonably be expected to have materia] adverse effect on its
ability to perform its obligations under the GSA or cause it to
be in breach, in any material respect(s), of its obligations
under the GSA.
5. | Quantity of Gas | The total annual contract quantity (“ACQ”) of Gas to be sold by the
Seller and to be purchased, taken and paid for by the Buyer at the
Delivery Point in a Contract Fiscal Year shall be approximately 160
MMSCF per annum.
6. | Quality The terms and conditions in relation to quality specifications of Gas
specifications of | shall be set out in the GSA.
Gas

7. | Principles of | In the GSA, the following principles will apply for determining the
Pricing of Gas price at which an Affiliate of the Seller will sell and the Buyer will

buy Gas respectively (“Contract Price”):

1. The Contract Price for Gas delivered or tendered for delivery
by the Seller to the Buyer shall be expressed in US Dollars
per MMBtu (US$/MMBtu);

2. The final price will have to be converted from USD into
PKR

3. For avoidance of doubt, the price will be brent-related and
not a fixed price for the full term of the contract.

4. All references to MMBtu shall mean MMBtu on Gross
Heating Value basis;
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8. | Delivery If, during a certajn period, the Seller fails to deliver or tender for
obligations of the delivery certain qQuantities of Gas (the duration of such period and
Seller such quantities to be specified in the GSA) to the Buyer (except for

reasons to be specified in the GSA), the Seller shall pay the Buyer an

amount to be negotiated and specified in the GSA.

1. The unit of measurement to quantify amounts of Gas in the
GSA or in any document produced in accordance with the
terms of the GSA.

2. The Parties shall agree provisions in the GSA for the location,
standards and verification of measurement  equipment,
ownership of measurement equipment, the dispute resolution
mechanism in case of variations in measurement and alternate
provisions in case of a metering failure.

9, Measurement

11. | Tramsportation |It is agreed that seller will have to make the RLNG/ Natural Gas
of Gas available to the buyer at the entry point of the buyers’ CNG station.

Title to Gas delivered pursuant to the GSA shall pass from the Seller

1
to the Buyer at the Delivery Point of CNG station,

N

Title to Gas

— ]

13. | Price The final price of the RLNG will be advised by Trafigura at the time
of contract negotiation but will include, also, terminal Re-

14. | Compliance with | The Buyer and the Seller shall comply with all applicable laws, rules
Laws and regulations.

1. The Buyer shall pay for the Gas delivered or tendered for
delivery at the Delivery Point in the manner set out in the GSA.

15. Invoicing and

e Payments = S . el o
2. Terms and conditions in relation to Invoicing and payment,

including billing cycles shall be set out in the GSA.
Taxes and 1. The Buyer shall pay, or cause to be paid, al] applicable Taxes
Charges related to the sale of Gas and other sums in respect of Gas

delivered or tendered for delivery under the GSA at the Delivery

2. Each Party shall bear Taxes on its own income,

The GSA shall contain industry standard provisions for force majeure
(including a definition of force majeure which shaj] include severe
weather conditions) which would suspend obligations of the
respective Party impacted by the force majeure, notice and reporting
requirements, mitigation responsibility, consequences, termination
and notice of cessation.

Force Majeure
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18. | Conditions
Precedent

The sale and purchase of Gas under the GSA shail be subject to
certain conditions precedent, which shall include amongst others the
following:

1. The Seller and its Affiliates satisfactorily assuring themselves
of clearance and acceptability of the Facilities as well as the
use of Port Qasim for the delivery of LNG;

2. The Seller obtaining all relevant Consents to sell Gas in
Pakistan;

3. The seller executing third party gas pipeline access and
transportation agreements with SSGC & SNGPL, including
necessary provisions covering balancing of Gas volumes with
the Transporter using the Transporter’s Faciljties and
provisions addressing unaccounted for gas (also known as
UFG);

4. The Buyer obtaining all relevant Consents to buy Gas in
Pakistan.

19. | Miscellaneous
provisions

Subject to agreement on all terms of the GSA by the Parties, the
Parties agree to reflect in the GSA in greater detail the key
commercial terms and principles recorded in this HOA. For the

give rise to any right, obligation or liability on the part of either the
Buyer or the Seller to enter into the GSA;

(b)any such legally binding rights and obligations and consequent
liabilities would arise only in the event of, and as a result of, the
execution of a mutually acceptable GSA; and

(¢) Each party shall bear its own costs in connection with this HOA,
the GSA and all matters contemplated by this HOA.

20. Confidentiality

1) Each Party acknowledges that the Confidential Information is
confidential and undertakes:

a) to use the Confidential Information solely for the purpose set
out in this HOA;

b) to keep the Confidential Information in strict confidence;

¢) not, without the prior written consent of the other Party, to
disclose any Confidentia] Information furnished to it to any
third party other than its Representatives or 1o its Affiliates
who have a legitimate need to know such Confidential
Information;

d) before disclosing Confidential Information to any Affiliate or
to its Representatives, to ensure that such person is aware of
the discloser’s obligations in this HOA, ensure compliance by
such person and be liable for any breach of such obligations
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by such person; and

e) as far as possible to keep separate all Confidential

Information from all documents and other records of a Party.
2) The undertakings in Clause 25.1 shall not apply to any

Confidential Information which:

a) at the time of disclosure to the recipient Party or thereafter
has become part of public knowledge or literature without
breach of any of the said undertakings by such Party;

b) the recipient Party can show was in its possession at the time
of disclosure hereunder and was not acquired by such Party
under an obligation of confidence; or

¢) the recipient Party can show was received by it after the time
of disclosure hereunder from a third party (other than one
disclosing on behalf of the other Party or its Affiliates) who
could lawfully do so and who did not derive the Confidential
Information from the other Party or any of its Affiliates.

The foregoing exceptions shall not, however, apply to:
()specific information merely because it is embraced by or
included with other information which falls within any one or
more of such exceptions; or
(i)any combination of information merely because specific
information (but not the combination itself) falls within any one
or more of such exceptions.

3) In the event that the recipient Party, its Affiliates, Representatives
or other permitted recipients is required by an order of any
government, state government agency or requested by any court
or legislative or administrative body including any recognised
stock exchange to disclose any Confidential Information, such
Party shall, to the extent it is lawful to do s0, promptly and prior
to disclosure notify the disclosing Party so that an appropriate
protective order and/or other action can be sought and/or other
action can be taken if possible (and if it is not lawful to inform the
disclosing party prior to disclosure, the recipient Party shall
inform the disclosing Party as soon as it becomes lawful to do
s0). In the event that such protective order is not, or cannot be,
obtained, then:

a) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request may
disclose to the appropriate body that portion of the
Confidential Information which such Party is legally required
to disclose and shall use reasonable efforts to obtain
assurances that confidential treatment will be accorded to
such Confidential Information; and

b) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request shall
not be liable for such disclosure unless such disclosure was
caused by or resulted from a previous disclosure by such
Party or its Affiliates or any of their Representatives that was
not permitted under this HOA.

4) The Parties agree that, upon request by one Party, the other Party
shall promptly:
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a) return or, at the option of the requesting Party, destroy all
Confidential Information that is in tangible form (including,
without limitation, Confidential Information contained on
computer disks or other electronic media) furnished to the
other Party, together with any copies or extracts thereof; and

b) destroy all analyses, compilations, studies or other documents
which have been prepared by the other Party or permitted
recipients and which reflect or are based upon any
Confidential Information, cxcept to the extent that the
recipient Party is required to retain any Confidential
Information by any applicable law, rule or regulation or by
any judicial, governmental, supervisory or regulatory body or
to the extent that such Confidential Information js
incorporated into organisational records which such Party is
required to retain by law or in accordance with internal
policies regarding the keeping of records generally, in which
case such Party will take appropriate measures to preserve its

continuing confidentiality.

21. | Governing Law | This HOA shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
and Dispute | Pakistani Law. Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this
Resolution HOA, including any question regarding its existence, validity or

termination, shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration

22. | Duration of | This HOA shall terminate either upon (a) the execution of the GSA
HOA by the Buyer and the Seller; or (b) the Parties discontinuing the

discussions on the terms of the GSA, whichever comes earlier. (©
either party serving one Month Notice for terminating this Heads of
Agreement.

23. | Conduct of | Both Parties will strictly adhere to the Codes, Practices and Conducts

Business of Business Ethics (which shall be more specifically referenced in the
GSA) including, but not limited to Anti-Bribery and Corruption and

Sanctions policies.
24. | Notices 1) All notices and other communications to be sent by either Party to

below (or to such other address or facsimile number as a Party
may substitute by notice to the other in accordance with this
provision after the date of this HOA):

To Buyer:

Address: & WMo o RSN VR WV VI PR
Attention: [insert] \aowsowu onel

Fax number: Emajl: [insert] ARRAA Lk S SN\

To Seller: Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

Address: 8th Floor, Bahria Complex — ITI, M.T. Khan Road
Attention: Fadi Mitri

Fax number: N




2) All notices or other communications under this HOA shall be
deemed to be duly given or made on the next business day in the
Jurisdiction of receipt following the date of delivery or (in the case
of personal delivery) or receipt by the sender of a valid
transmission confirmation (in the case of facsimile).

25. Counterparts

This HOA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each cf’
which will be deemed an original and all of which together will
constitute one and the same instrument,

The Parties hereto have executed this Heacisﬂ’ of Agreement on the day and year first

above written:

For and on behalf of

Signature:

Name:

Title: CEO

Witnesses:

Mr. Fadi Mitri

1. Signature: W/

Name: DAQWNSS & QAL

Title:

Title:

DA G [

Signature;
Name: A(-v\'\u *
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TRAFIGURA

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PvT.) L1D. —
8TH FLOOR, BAHRIA COMPLEX — Iil, M.T. KHAN ROAD KARACHI 2Qu/

Dated on June [xx} 2018

Heads of Agreement for a Gas Sales Agreement

This is a non-binding Heads of Agreement (“HOA”) for the fully termed Gas Sales

between the Seller and the Buyer (defined in Clause 1 below).

The Seller is desirous to sell RLNG and has extended its support to the Buyer.

Term

‘-
7
Agreement (“GSA™)
'_Clause
' 1. Parties
s

1. TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED (or any of
its group company), a company duly incorporated and existing
under the laws of Pakistan under company number 010562,
having its registered office at 8 Floor, Bahria Complex - 11,
M.T Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan, represented herein by two
duly-authorized directors (referred to as "Seller" which
expression shall, unless repugnant to the context or meaning
hereof, include its successors and permitted assigns and/or its
subsidiary(ies)); and

........ (referred to as "Buyer" which expression shall, unless
repugnant to the context or meaning hereof, include its
successors and permitted assigns).

The Buyer and the Seller, each is hereinafter referred to as a “Party”
and together as the “Parties”.

The Seller intents to enter into gas sales agreements with the licensee
of compressed natural gas station operated under the brand name of
Puma Energy Pakistan and with other £as users across
Pakistan,(“Buyer’s Customers’ Facility™).

The Seller has already applied to obtain License for sale and
distribution of Gas from OGRA.

The Seller (or its affiliate) has acquired a minority equity stake in
Pakistan Gas Port (PGPC) which gives Seller exclusive access to the
extra regasification capacity, this is being 90 MMSCFD, available for
175 days per year.

The Seller is willing to provide to the Buyer RLNG supply along |

TRAFIGURA PTE. LTD.

REGISTERED OFFICE: | MARINA BOULEVARD, #28-00, ONE MaRiNA BOULEVARD, SINGAPORE (018989)

WWW.TRAFIGURA,COM

REGISTERED NUMBER: 1996015951
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with Regasification Services from Pakistan Gas Port Consortium (
i PGPC) for delivery of Regasified LNG through national gas
pipeline grid at the delivery point of the buyers’ CNG Station.

AND WHEREAS, the parties have now come on board to form their
alliance and/or business combination specific to LNG services and
intend to lay out the principal terms and conditions of their
cooperation;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and
covenants contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows
(always subject to applicable laws and regulations):

1) The Seller will make RLNG available to Buyer, Subject to
final price discussion and agreement of suitable terms.

2) The Seller will use its own exclusive access to the

= regasification capacity at the PGPC FSRU terminal to
provide regasification services for the LNG it will provide to
The Buyer.

3) Consequently, the Seller has agreed to allocate RLNG
supplies upto 5 MMSCF in a month to the Buyer on
intermittent supply chain to be consumed on a monthly basis
» with a potential ramp up to 8§ MMSCF per month in the
future subject to the Market dynamics and circumstances.

4) The deliveries of RLNG will have to be on delivered basis at
the facilities of the Buyer, unless mutually agreed between
parties.

2. | Start Date 1) The start date of Gas sales (“Start Date”) shall be the date when
Seller shall deliver the first quantities of Gas and the Buyer shall
take delivery and pay for the Gas so delivered.

2) The Parties expect the Start Date to fall after the Seller acquiring
necessary approvals and licenses from the government and

e regulating authorities.

3) The Parties shall agree a windowing mechanism and conditions
precedent in the GSA. Upon the fulfilment or waiver of all the
conditions precedent therein, the Seller will provide notices to the
Buyer within set time windows providing an estimate of the
periods when the Seller expects the Start Date to occur as
provided by the following:

a) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 3 month period falling within the above 6 month
period;

b) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 1 month period falling within the above 3 month
period; and

c) finally, a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by

| the Seller for the actual Start Date falling within the
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above one month period,
which will allow the Parties to progressively narrow down the Start
Date.

Term

The term of the HOA is currently envisaged to be 1 year from the
Start Date (“Term™)and the Parties, by mutual agreement in writing,
may agree extend the Term by an additional 1 year. The process by
which mutual agreement can be reached between the Parties will be
outlined in the GSA.

General
Undertakings

1. The Buyer shall inform the Seller immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance, which has or
is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Buyer’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

2. The Buyer shall not contravene any laws or legal
requirements which could reasonably be expected to have
material adverse effect on its ability to perform its
obligations under the GSA and or cause it to be in breach, in
any material respect(s), of its obligations under the GSA.

3. The Seller shall inform the Buyer immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance which has or
is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Seller’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

4. The Seller shall not enter into any agreement and not
confravene any laws or legal requirements which could
reasonably be expected to have material adverse effect on its
ability to perform its obligations under the GSA or cause it to
be in breach, in any material respect(s), of its obligations
under the GSA.

Quantity of Gas

The total annual contract quantity (“ACQ”) of Gas to be sold by the
Seller and to be purchased, taken and paid for by the Buyer at the
Delivery Point in a Contract F iscal Year shall be approximately 160
MMSCF per annum.

Quality

specifications of
Gas

The terms and conditions in relation to quality specifications of Gas
shall be set out in the GSA.

Principles of
Pricing of Gas

In the GSA, the following principles will apply for determining the
price at which an Affiliate of the Seller will sell and the Buyer will
buy Gas respectively (“Contract Price”):

1. The Contract Price for Gas delivered or tendered for delivery
by the Seller to the Buyer shall be expressed in US Dollars
per MMBtu (US$/MMBtu);

2. The final price will have to be converted from USD into
PKR

3. For avoidance of doubt, the price will be brent-related and
not a fixed price for the full term of the contract.

4. All references to MMBty shall mean MMBtu on Gross
Heating Value basis;
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If, during a certain period, the Seller fails to deliver or tender for |
delivery certain quantities of Gas (the duration of such period and
such quantities to be specified in the GSA) to the Buyer (except for
reasons to be specified in the GSA), the Seller shall pay the Buyer an
amount to be negotiated and specified in the GSA.

1. The unit of measurement to quantify amounts of Gas in the
GSA or in any document produced in accordance with the
terms of the GSA.

2. The Parties shall agree provisions in the GSA for the location,
standards and verification of measurement equipment,
ownership of measurement equipment, the dispute resolution
mechanism in case of variations in measurement and alternate
provisions in case of a metering failure,

-~
8. | Delivery
obligations of the
Seller
9. | Measurement
11. | Transportation
~ of Gas
(
station.

It is agreed that seller will have t0 make the RLNG/ Natural Gas
available to the buyer at the entry point of the buyers’ CNG station.
The seller will use his allocation of pipeline access and his GTAs
with SSGC & SNGPL to transport the RLNG into the buyer’s CNG

12. | Title to Gas

Title to Gas delivered pursuant to the GSA shall pass from the Seller
to the Buyer at the Delivery Point of CNG station.

13. | Price

The final price of the RLNG will be advised by Trafigura at the time
of contract negotiation but will include, also, terminal Re-
gasification, transportation charges as well as all other applicable
local taxes. Price will be expressed and paid in PKR. For the
avoidance of doubt, the final price will be subject to the agreement of
the Buyer.

14. | Compliance with
Laws

The Buyer and the Seller shall comply with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

{ 15. | Invoeicing and
Payments

1. The Buyer shall pay for the Gas delivered or tendered for
delivery at the Delivery Point in the manner set out in the GSA.,

2. Terms and conditions in relation to invoicing and payment,
including billing cycles shall be set out in the GSA.

16. | Taxes and
Charges

1. The Buyer shall pay, or cause to be paid, all applicable Taxes
related to the sale of Gas and other sums in respect of Gas
delivered or tendered for delivery under the GSA at the Delivery
Point.

2. Each Party shall bear Taxes on its own income.

17. | Force Majeure

The GSA shall contain industry standard provisions for force majeure
(including a definition of foree majeure which shall include severe
weather conditions) which would suspend obligations of the
respective Party impacted by the force majeure, notice and reporting
requirements, mitigation responsibility, consequences, termination

and notice of cessation.
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18.

Conditions
Precedent

The sale and purchase of Gas under the GSA shall be subject to
certain conditions precedent, which shall include amongst others the
following:

1. The Seller and its Affiliates satisfactorily assuring themselves
of clearance and acceptability of the Facilities as wel] as the
use of Port Qasim for the delivery of LNG;

2. The Seller obtaining all relevant Consents to sell Gas in
Pakistan;

3. The seller executing third party gas pipeline access and
transportation agreements with SSGC & SNGPL, including
nhecessary provisions covering balancing of Gas volumes with
the Transporter using the Transporter’s Facilities and
provisions addressing unaccounted for gas (also known as
UFG);

4. The Buyer obtaining all relevant Consents to buy Gas in
Pakistan,

Detailed terms and conditions including relevant deadlines in relation
to the conditions precedent shall be set out in the GSA subject to the
agreement of the parties.

19.

Miscellaneous
provisions

Subject to agreement on all terms of the GSA by the Parties, the
Parties agree to reflect in the GSA in greater detail the key
commercial terms and principles recorded in this HOA. For the
avoidance of doubit, (a)nothing contained in this HOA is intended to
give rise to any binding contractual relationship nor shall this HOA
give rise to any right, obligation or liability on the part of ejther the
Buyer or the Seller to enter into the GSA;

(b)any such legally binding rights and obligations and consequent
liabilities would arise only in the event of, and as a result of, the
execution of a mutually acceptable GSA; and

(¢) Each party shall bear its own costs in connection with this HOA,
the GSA and all matters contemplated by this HOA.

20.

Confidentiality

1) Each Party acknowledges that the Confidential Information is

confidential and undertakes:

a) to use the Confidential Information solely for the purpose set
out in this HOA;

b) to keep the Confidential Information in strict confidence;

¢) not, without the prior written consent of the other Party, to
disclose any Confidential Information furnished to it to any
third party other than its Representatives or to its Affiliates
who have a legitimate need to know such Confidential
Information;

d) before disclosing Confidential Information to any Affiliate or
to its Representatives, to ensure that such person is aware of

the discloser’s obligations in this HOA, ensure compliance by
such person and be liable for any breach of such obligations }
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by such person; and 7
¢) as far as possible to keep separate all Confidential
Information from all documents and other records of a Party.

2) The undertakings in Clause 25.1 shall not apply to any

3)

4)

Confidential Information which:

a) at the time of disclosure to the recipient Party or thereafter
has become part of public knowledge or literature without
breach of any of the said undertakings by such Party;

b) the recipient Party can show was in its possession at the time
of disclosure hereunder and was not acquired by such Party
under an obligation of confidence; or

c) the recipient Party can show was received by it after the time
of disclosure hereunder from a third party (other than one
disclosing on behalf of the other Party or its Affiliates) who
could lawfully do so and who did not derive the Confidential
Information from the other Party or any of its Affiliates.

The foregoing exceptions shall not, however, apply to:

(i)specific information merely because it is embraced by or
included with other information which falls within any one or
more of such exceptions; or
(i)any combination of information merely because specific
information (but not the combination itself) falls within any one
or more of such exceptions.

In the event that the recipient Party, its Affiliates, Representatives

or other permitted recipients is required by an order of any

government, state government agency or requested by any court
or legislative or administrative body including any recognised
stock exchange to disclose any Confidential Information, such

Party shall, to the extent it is lawful to do so, promptly and prior

to disclosure notify the disclosing Party so that an appropriate

protective order and/or other action can be sought and/or other
action can be taken if possible (and if it is not lawful to inform the
disclosing party prior to disclosure, the recipient Party shall
inform the disclosing Party as soon as it becomes lawful to do

50). In the event that such protective order is not, or cannot be,

obtained, then:

a) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request may
disclose to the appropriate body that portion of the
Confidential Information which such Party is legally required
to disclose and shall use reasonable efforts to obtain
assurances that confidential treatment will be accorded to
such Confidential Information; and

b) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request shall
not be liable for such disclosure unless such disclosure was
caused by or resulted from a previous disclosure by such
Party or its Affiliates or any of their Representatives that was
not permitted under this HOA.

The Parties agree that, upon request by one Party, the other Party

shall promptly:
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[ a) return or, at the option of the requesting Party, destroy all
Confidential Information that is in tangible form (including,
without limitation, Confidential Information contained on
computer disks or other electronic media) furnished to the
other Party, together with any copies or extracts thereof: and

b) destroy all analyses, compilations, studies or other documents
which have been prepared by the other Party or permitted
recipients and which reflect or are based upon any
Confidential Information, except to the extent that the
recipient Party is required to retain any Confidential
Information by any applicable law, rule or regulation or by
any judicial, governmental, supervisory or regulatory body or
to the extent that such Confidential Information is
incorporated into organisational records which such Party is
required to retain by law or in accordance with internal
policies regarding the keeping of records generally, in which

C case such Party will take appropriate measures to preserve its

continuing confidentiality.

21. | Governing Law | This HOA shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
and Dispute | Pakistani Law. Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this
Resolution HOA, including any question regarding its existence, validity or
termination, shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration

22. | Duration of | This HOA shall terminate either upon (a) the execution of the GSA
HOA by the Buyer and the Seller; or (b) the Parties discontinuing the
discussions on the terms of the GSA, whichever comes earlier. (c)
either party serving one Month Notice for terminating this Heads of

Agreement.
23. | Conduct of | Both Parties will strictly adhere to the Codes, Practices and Conduca
Business of Business Ethics (which shall be more specifically referenced in the
GSA) including, but not limited to Anti-Bribery and Corruption and
C Sanctions policies.
24. | Notices 1) All notices and other communications to be sent by either Party to

the other shall be delivered by hand or sent by personal delivery or
facsimile to the relevant Party’s address or facsimile number noted
below (or to such other address or facsimile number as a Party
may substitute by notice to the other in accordance with this
provision after the date of this HOA):

To Buyer:

Address: (OO NOLR, WD

Attention: [insert] ™Y - Joner] L

Fax number: Email: [insert] ©w. O3\ 2\ 294 (.

To Seller: Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd
Address: 8th Floor, Bahria Complex — ITI, M.T. Khan Road

Attention:  Fadi Mitri
} __| Fax number: J
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g 2) All notices or other communications under this HOA shall be
deemed to be duly given or made on the next business day in the
Jurisdiction of receipt following the date of delivery or (in the case
of personal delivery) or receipt by the sender of a valid
transmission confirmation (in the case of facsimile).

25. | Counterparts This HOA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which will be deemed an original and all of which together will
constitute one and the same instrument.

The Parties hereto have executed this Heads of Agreement on the day and year first
above written:
¢ For and on behalf of
Trafigura Pakista ABE-
-~

Signature: JSAreED A
N.a;n'e: Mr. Fadi Mitri XY7Z

Title: CEO CEO

Witnesses: . o W%
1. Signature: M

Name: MoaSI™N QWL
Title: S\ Vi AN

~

) 2. Signature:

Name: 'A_V\/\Lt‘\ %,

Title:
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TRAFIGURA

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PVT) LTD.
8TH FLOOR, BAHRIA COMPLEX — Il M.T. KHAN ROAD KARACH) %
2018

Dated on June
Heads of Agreement for a Gas Sales Agreement

This is a non-binding Heads of Agreement (“HOA”) for the fully termed Gas Sales
Agreement (“GSA”) between the Seller and the Buyer (defined in Clause 1 below).

The Seller is desirous to sell RLNG and has extended its support to the Buyer.

........ (referred “to as "Buyer" which expression shall, unless
r'epugnan_t_ to the context or meaning hereof, include its
succes;ofs‘}wd permitted assigns).

The Buyer and the Seller, each is hereinafter referred to as a “Party”
and together as the “Parties”. .

The Seller intents to enter into gas sales agreements with the licensee
of I

compressed natural gas station operated under the brand name of

The Seller has already applied to obtain License for sale and
distribution of Gas from OGRA.

TRAFIGURA PTE, LTD.

REGISTERED OFFicE: | MARINA BouLevarp, #28-00, ONE MaRina BOULEVARD, SINGAPORE (018989)
TRAFIGURA.COM

Wwwy,
REGISTERED NUMBER: 199601595D
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with Regasification Services from Pakistan Gas Port Consortium (
PGPC) for delivery of Regasified LNG through national gas
pipeline grid at the delivery point of the buyers’ CNG Station,

AND WHEREAS, the parties have now come on board to form their
alliance and/or business combination specific to LNG services and
intend to lay out the principal terms and conditions of theijr
cooperation;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutua] benefits and
Covenants contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows
(always subject to applicable laws and regulations):

1) The Seller will make RLNG available to Buyer, Subject to
final price discussion and agreement of suitable terms,

2) The Seller will use its own exclusive access to the
regasification capacity at the PGPC FSRU terminal to
provide regasification services for the LNG it will provide to
The Buyer.

3) Consequently, the Seller has agreed to allocate RLNG
supplies upto 5 MMSCF in a month to the Buyer on
intermittent supply chain to be consumed on a monthly basis
» With a potential ramp up to 8 MMSCF per month in the
future subject to the Market dynamics and circumstances.

4) The deliveries of RLNG wil have to be on delivered basis at
the facilities of the Buyer, unless mutually agreed between
parties.

Start Date

1) The start date of Gas sales (“Start Date”) shall be the date when
Seller shall deliver the first quantities of Gas and the Buyer shall
take delivery and pay for the Gas so delivered.

2) The Parties expect the Start Date to fall after the Seller acquiring
necessary approvals and licenses from the government and
regulating authorities.

3) The Parties shall agree a windowing mechanism and conditions
precedent in the GSA. Upon the fulfilment or waiver of all the
conditions precedent therein, the Seller will provide notices to the
Buyer within set time windows providing an estimate of the
periods when the Seller expects the Start Date to occur as
provided by the following:

a) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 3 month period falling within the above 6 month
period;

b) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 1 month period falling within the above 3 month
period; and

c) finally, a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by
the Seller for the actual Start Date falling within the
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above one month period, ]
which will allow the Parties to progressively narrow down the Start
Date.

3. Term

The term of the HOA is currently envisaged to be 1 year from the
Start Date (“Term™)and the Parties, by mutual agreement in writing,
May agree extend the Term by an additional ] year. The process by
which mutual agreement can be reached between the Parties will be
outlined in the GSA.

4. | General
Undertakings

1. The Buyer shall inform the Seller immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance, which has or
is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Buyer’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

2. The Buyer shall not contravene any laws or legal
requirements which could reasonably be expected to have
material adverse effect on its ability to perform its
obligations under the GSA and or cause it to be in breach, in
any material respect(s), of its obligations under the GSA.

3. The Seller shall inform the Buyer immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance which has or
is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Seller’s ability to perform jts obligations under the GSA.

4. The Seller shall not enter into any agreement and not
contravene any laws or legal requirements which could
reasonably be expected to have material adverse effect on its
ability to perform its obligations under the GSA or cause it to
be in breach, in any material respect(s), of its obligations
under the GSA.

5. | Quantity of Gas

The total annual contract quantity (“ACQ”) of Gas to be sold by the
Seller and to be purchased, taken and paid for by the Buyer at the
Delivery Point in a Contract Fiscal Year shall be approximately 160
MMSCF per annum.

6. | Quality
specifications of
Gas

The terms and conditions in relation to quality specifications of Gas
shall be set out in the GSA.

7. | Principles
Pricing of Gas

of

In the GSA, the following principles will apply for determining the
price at which an Affiliate of the Seller will sell and the Buyer will
buy Gas respectively (“Contract Price”):

1. The Contract Price for Gas delivered or tendered for delivery
by the Seller to the Buyer shall be expressed in US Dollars
per MMBtu (US$/MMBtu);

2. The final price will have to be converted from USD into
PKR

3. For avoidance of doubt, the price will be brent-related and
not a fixed price for the full term of the contract,

4. All references to MMBtu shall mean MMBtu on Gross
Heating Value basis;
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Delivery
obligations of the
Seller

If, during a certain period, the Seller fails to deliver or tender for
delivery certain quantities of Gas (the duration of such period and
such quantities to be specified in the GSA) to the Buyer (except for
reasons to be specified in the GSA), the Seller shall pay the Buyer an
amount to be negotiated and specified in the GSA.

Measurement

1. The unit of measurement to quantify amounts of Gas in the
GSA or in any document produced in accordance with the
terms of the GSA.

2. The Parties shall agree provisions in the GSA for the location,
standards and verification of measurement  equipment,
ownership of measurement equipment, the dispute resolution
mechanism in case of variations jn measurement and alternate
provisions in case of a metering failure.

I1.

Transportation
of Gas

It is agreed that seller will have to make the RLNG/ Natural Gas
available to the buyer at the entry point of the buyers’ CNG station.
The seller will use his allocation of pipeline access and his GTAs
with SSGC & SNGPL to transport the RLNG into the buyer’s CNG
station.

12.

Title to Gas

Title to Gas delivered pursuant to the GSA shall pass from the Seller
to the Buyer at the Delivery Point of CNG station.

13.

Price

The final price of the RLNG will be advised by Trafigura at the time
of contract negotiation but will include, also, terminal Re-
gasification, transportation charges as well as all other applicable
local taxes. Price will be expressed and paid in PKR. For the
avoidance of doubt, the final price will be subject to the agreement of
the Buyer.

14.

Compliance with
Laws

The Buyer and the Seller shall comply with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

15.

Invoicing and
Payments

1. The Buyer shall pay for the Gas delivered or tendered for
delivery at the Delivery Point in the manner set out in the GSA.

2. Terms and conditions in relation to invoicing and payment,
including billing cycles shall be set out in the GSA.

16.

Taxes and
Charges

1. The Buyer shall pay, or cause to be paid, all applicable Taxes
related to the sale of Gas and other sums in respect of Gas
delivered or tendered for delivery under the GSA at the Delivery
Point.

2. Each Party shall bear Taxes on its own income.

I

Force Majeure

The GSA shall contain industry standard provisions for force majeure
(including a definition of force majeure which shall include severe
weather conditions) which would suspend obligations of the
respective Party impacted by the force majeure, notice and reporting
requirements, mitigation responsibility, consequences, terminatioriJ

and notice of cessation.
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18. | Conditions The sale and purchase of Gas under the GSA shall be subject tﬂ
Precedent certain conditions precedent, which shall include amongst others the
following:

1. The Seller and its Affiliates satisfactorily assuring themselves
of clearance and acceptability of the Facilities as well as the
use of Port Qasim for the delivery of LNG;

2. The Seller obtaining all relevant Consents to sell Gas in
Pakistan;

3. The seller executing third party gas pipeline access and
transportation agreements with SSGC & SNGPL, including
necessary provisions covering balancing of Gas volumes with
the Transporter using the Transporter’s Facilities and
provisions addressing unaccounted for gas (also known as
UFG);

4. The Buyer obtaining all relevant Consents to buy Gas in
Pakistan.

Detailed terms and conditions including relevant deadlines in relation
to the conditions precedent shall be set out in the GSA subject to the
agreement of the parties.

19. | Miscellaneous B

provisions Subject to agreement on ajl terms of the GSA by the Parties, the
Parties agree to reflect in the GSA in greater detail the key
commercial terms and principles recorded in this HOA. For the
avoidance of doubt, (a)nothing contained in this HOA is intended to
give rise to any binding contractual relationship nor shall this HOA
give rise to any right, obligation or liability on the part of either the
Buyer or the Seller to enter into the GSA;
(b)any such legally binding rights and obligations and consequent
liabilities would arise only in the event of, and as a result of, the
execution of a mutually acceptable GSA; and
(¢) Each party shall bear its OWI costs in connection with this HOA,
the GSA and all matters contemplated by this HOA.
1) Each Party acknowledges that the Confidential Information is
confidential and undertakes:

a) to use the Confidential Information solely for the purpose set
out in this HOA;

b) to keep the Confidentia] Information in strict confidence;

¢) not, without the prior written consent of the other Party, to
disclose any Confidential Information furnished to it to any
third party other than its Representatives or to its Affiliates
who have a legitimate need to know such Confidential
Information;

d) before disclosing Confidential Information to any Affiliate or
to its Representatives, to ensure that such person is aware of
the discloser’s obligations in this HOA, ensure compliance by
such person and be liable for any breach of such obligations

20. Confidentiality
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by such person; and
¢) as far as possible to keep separate all Confidential
Information from all documents and other records of a Party.

2) The undertakings in Clause 25.1 shall not apply to any

Confidential Information which:

a) at the time of disclosure to the recipient Party or thereafter
has become part of public knowledge or literature without
breach of any of the said undertakings by such Party;

b) the recipient Party can show was in its possession at the time
of disclosure hereunder and was not acquired by such Party
under an obligation of confidence; or

¢) the recipient Party can show was received by it after the time
of disclosure hereunder from a third party (other than one
disclosing on behalf of the other Party or its Affiliates) who
could lawfully do so and who did not derive the Confidential
Information from the other Party or any of its Affiliates,

The foregoing exceptions shall not, however, apply to:

3)

4)

()specific information merely because it is embraced by or
included with other information which falls within any one or
more of such exceptions; or
(i)any combination of information merely because specific
information (but not the combination itself) falls within any one
or more of such exceptions.

In the event that the recipient Party, its Affiliates, Representatives
or other permitted recipients is required by an order of any
government, state government agency or requested by any court
or legislative or administrative body including any recognised
stock exchange to disclose any Confidential Information, such
Party shall, to the extent it is lawful to do so, promptly and prior
to disclosure notify the disclosing Party so that an appropriate
protective order and/or other action can be sought and/or other
action can be taken if possible (and if it is not lawful to inform the
disclosing party prior to disclosure, the recipient Party shall
inform the disclosing Party as soon as it becomes lawful to do
s0). In the event that such protective order is not, or cannot be,
obtained, then:

a) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request may
disclose to the appropriate  body that portion of the
Confidential Information which such Party is legally required
to disclose and shall use reasonable efforts to obtain
assurances that confidential treatment will be accorded to
such Confidential Information; and

b) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request shall
not be liable for such disclosure unless such disclosure was
caused by or resulted from a previous disclosure by such
Party or its Affiliates or any of their Representatives that was
not permitted under this HOA.

The Parties agree that, upon request by one Party, the other Party

shall promptly:
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a) return or, at the option of the requesting Party, destroy all
Confidential Information that is in tangible form (including,
without limitation, Confidential Information contained on
computer disks or other electronic media) furnished to the
other Party, together with any copies or extracts thereof; and

b) destroy all analyses, compilations, studies or other documents
which have been prepared by the other Party or permitted
recipients and which reflect or are based upon any
Confidential Information, except to the extent that the
recipient Party is required to retain any Confidential
Information by any applicable law, rule or regulation or by
any judicial, govemmental, supervisory or regulatory body or
to the extent that such Confidential Information is
incorporated into organisational records which such Party is
required to retain by law or in accordance with internal
policies regarding the keeping of records generally, in which
case such Party will take appropriate measures to preserve its
continuing confidentiality.

This HOA shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
Pakistani Law. Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this
HOA, including any question regarding its existence, validity or
termination, shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration

Governing Law
and Dispute
Resolution

Duration
HOA

Conduct
Business

Both Parties will strictly adhere to the Codes, Practices and Conducts
of Business Ethics (which shall be more specifically referenced in the
GSA) including, but not limited to Anti-Bribery and Corruption and
Sanctions policies.

Notices

To Buyer: e o, Dext) CAG, g’ IEZS’

Address: @, 5~ , oy A -
Atte;:isjn: [icr%se{'t]oze)cjf}))‘ ngs?fgs 8(%/ éQ / 3’ él-lé

Fax number: Email: [insert]

To Seller: Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

Address: 8th Floor, Bahria Complex —III, M.T. Khan Road
Attention: Fadi Mitri

Fax number:
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2) All notices or other communications under thlS HOA shall be
deemed to be duly given or made on the next business day in the

Counterparts

The Parties hereto have e

xecuted this Heads of Agreement on the day and year first

above written: =
R
For and on behalf of
Trafigura Pakistani (Pvt) Ltd, - -
Signature:
]I\“I'Etllm?: ggoF adi Mitri -
itle: CEO

Witnesses: g
1. Si :
A

Title: : AFM"( M‘:
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TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PvTt.) LTD.
8TH FLOOR, BAHRIA COMPLEX — 1, M.T. KHAN RoAD Karac
Dated on July 06, 2018
Heads of Agreement for a Gas Sales Agreement
This is a non-binding Heads of Agreement (“HOA”) for the fully termed Gas Sales
Agreement (“GSA”™) between the Seller and the Buyer (defined in Clause 1 below).
The Seller is desirous to se]] RLNG and has extended its support to the Buyer
_ Clause | Term
( 1. | Parties 1. TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED (or any of
its group company), a company duly incorporated and existing
under the laws of Pakistan under company number 010562,
having its registered office at 8" Floor, Bahria Complex - II1,
M.T Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan, represented herein by two
duly-authorized directors (referred to as "Seller" which
€xpression shall, unless repugnant to the context or meaning
hereof, include ijts Successors and permitted assigns and/or its
subsidiary(ies)); and
e Bisrillehy Wy (Rewnit)
........ (referred to as "Buyer" which expression shall, unless
repugnant to the context or meaning hereof, include ijis
successors and permitted assigns),
( The Buyer and the Seller, each is hereinafter referred to as a “Party”
e and together as the “Parties”.

The Seller intents to enter into gas sales agreements with the licensee
of compressed natural gas station operated under the brand name of
Puma Energy Pakistan and with other gas users across

Pakistan,(“Buyer’s Customers’ Facility”).

The Seller has already applied to obtajn License for sale and
distribution of Gas from OGRA.

The Seller is willing to provide to the Buyer RLNG supply along

TRAFIGURA PTE. LTD.
REGISTERED OFFicE: | Mapina BouLevarp, #28.00, One MARINA BOULEVARD, SINGAPORE (018989)
.TRAFIGURA.COM
REGISTERED NUMBER: 19966 595D
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with Regasification Services from Pakistan Gas Port Consortium (
PGPC) for delivery of Regasified LNG through national gas
pipeline grid at the delivery point of the buyers’ CNG Station,

cooperation;

NOw, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and
covenants contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows
(always subject to applicable laws and regulations):

1) The Seller will make RLNG available to Buyer, Subject to
final price discussion and agreement of suitable terms,

2) The Seller will use its own exclusive access to the
regasification capacity at the PGPC F SRU terminal to
provide regasification services for the LNG it will provide to
The Buyer.,

3) Consequently, the Seller has agreed to ‘allocate RLNG
supplies upto 5 MMSCF in a month to the Buyer on
intermittent supply chain to be consumed on a monthly basis
» With a potential famp up to 8 MMSCF per month in the
future subject to the Market dynamics and circumstances,

4) The deliveries of RLNG will have to be on delivered basis at
the facilities of the Buyer, unless mutually agreed between
parties.

2.

Start Date

1)

2)

3)

The start date of Gas sales (“Start Date”) shall be the date when
Seller shall deliver the first quantities of Gas and the Buyer shall
take delivery and pay for the Gas so delivered.

The Parties expect the Start Date to fall after the Seller acquiring

necessary approvals and licenses from the government angd

regulating authorities.

The Parties shall agree a windowing mechanism and conditions

precedent in the GSA. Upon the fulfilment or waiver of all the

conditions precedent therein, the Seller will provide notices to the

Buyer within set time windows providing an estimate of the

periods when the Seller expects the Start Date to occyr as

provided by the following:

a) a written notice to be provided by [ ] by the
Seller for a 3 month period falling within the above 6
month period;

b) a written notice to be provided by [ ] by the
Seller for a 1 month period falling within the above 3
month period; and

c) finally, a written notice to be provided by [ ] by
the Seller for the actual Start Date falling within the

h&q

v
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above one month period,

which will allow the Parties to progressively narrow down the Start
Date.

Term The term of the HOA s currently envisaged to be | year from the
Start Date (“Term™)and the Parties, by mutual agreement in writing,
may agree extend the Term by an additiona] 1 year. The process by
which mutual agreement can be reached between the Parties will be

outlined in the GSA.
General 1. The Buyer shall inform the Seller immediately upon
Undertakings becoming aware of any event or circumstance, which has or

any material respect(s), of jts obligations under the GSA.

3. The Seller shal] inform the Buyer immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance which has or
is reasonably likely to have a materia] adverse effect on the
Seller’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

4. The Seller shall not enter into any agreement and not

Quantity of Gas | The total annual contract quantity (“ACQ”) of Gas to be sold by the
Seller and to be purchased, taken and paid for by the Buyer at the
Delivery Point in a Contract Fiscal Year shal] be approximately 160

MMSCF per annum,

Quality
specifications of
Gas
Principles
Pricing of Gas

The terms and conditions in relation to
shall be set out in the GSA.

quality specifications of Gas

of | In the GSA, the following principles will apply for determining the
price at which an Affiliate of the Seller will sell and the Buyer will

buy Gas respectively (“Contract Price”):

1. The Contract Price for Gas delivered or tendered for delivery
by the Seller to the Buyer shall be expressed in US Dollars
per MMBtu (U S$/MMBtu);

2. The final price will have to be converted from USD into
PKR

3. For avoidance of doubt, the price will be brent-related and
not a fixed price for the fiyl] term of the contract.

4. All references to MMBtu shall mean MMBtu on Gross

Heating Value basis;
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8. | Delivery If, during a certain period, the Seller fails to deliver or tender for
obligations of the delivery certain qQuantities of Gas (the duration of such period and
Seller " | such quantities to be specified in the GSA) to the Buyer (except for

reasons to be specified in the GSA), the Seller shall pay the Buyer an
amount to be negotiated and specified in the GSA.

9. | Measurement 1. The unit of measurement to quantify amounts of Gas in the
GSA or in any document produced in accordance with the
terms of the GSA.

2. The Parties shall agree provisions in the GSA for the location,
standards and verification of measurement equipment,
ownership of measurement equipment, the dispute resolution
mechanism in case of variations in measurement and alternate

provisions in case of a metering failure.

11. | Transportation | It is agreed that seller wil have to make the RLNG/ Natural Gas
of Gas available to the buyer at the entry point of the buyers’ CNG station.

Title to Gas delivered pursuant to the GSA shall pass from the Seller
to the Buyer at the Delivery Point of CNG station.

12. | Title to Gas

e —

Price The final price of the RLNG will be advised by Trafigura at the time
of contract negotiation but wilj include, also, terminal Re-

gasification, transportation charges as well as all other applicable

Compliance with | The Buyer and the Seller shal] comply with all applicable laws, rules
Laws and regulations,

15. Invoicing and 1. The Buyer shall pay for the Gas delivered or tendered for
Payments delivery at the Delivery Point in the manner set out in the GSA.
2. Terms and conditions in relation to invoicing and payment,
including billing cycles shall be set oyt in the GSA,

- The Buyer shal] pay, or cause to be paid, a]l applicable Taxes
related to the sale of Gas and other sums in respect of Gas
delivered or tendered for delivery under the GSA at the Delivery

Point.
2. Each Party shall bear Taxes on its own income,

16. | Taxes and
Charges

Force Majeure | The GSA shall contain industry standard provisions for force majeure
(including a definition of force majeure which shal] include severe
weather conditions) which would suspend obligations of the
respective Party impacted by the force majeure, notice and reporting
requirements, mitigation responsibility, consequences, termination

and notice of cessation.
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18. | Conditions
Precedent

The sale and purchase of Gas under the GSA shall be subject to
certain conditions precedent, which shall include amongst others the
following:

1. The Seller and its Affiliates satisfactorily assuring themselves
of clearance and acceptability of the Facilities as well as the
use of Port Qasim for the delivery of LNG;

2. The Seller obtaining all relevant Consents to sell Gas in
Pakistan;

3. The seller executing third party gas pipeline access and
transportation agreements with SSGC & SNGPL, including
necessary provisions covering balancing of Gas volumes with
the Transporter using the Transporter’s Facilities and
provisions addressing unaccounted for gas (also known as
UFG);

4. The Buyer obtaining all relevant Consents to buy Gas in
Pakistan,

Detailed terms and conditions including relevant deadlines in relation
to the conditions precedent shall be set out in the GSA subject to the
agreement of the parties.

19. | Miscellaneous
provisions

Subject to agreement on af| terms of the GSA by the Parties, the
Parties agree to reflect in the GSA in greater detaj] the key
commercial terms and principles recorded in this HOA. For the
avoidance of doubt, (a)nothing contained in this HOA is intended to
give rise to any binding contractual relationship nor shall this HOA
give rise to any right, obligation or liability on the part of either the
Buyer or the Seller to enter into the GSA;

(b)any such legally binding rights and obligations and consequent
liabilities would arise only in the event of, and as a result of, the
execution of a mutually acceptable GSA; and

(c) Each party shall bear its OWn costs in connection with this HOA,
the GSA and all matters contemplated by this HOA.

20. Confidentiality

1) Each Party acknowledges that the Confidential Information s
confidential and undertakes:

a) to use the Confidential Information solely for the purpose set
out in this HOA;

b) to keep the Confidentia] Information in strict confidence;

¢) not, without the prior written consent of the other Party, to
disclose any Confidential Information furnished to jt to any
third party other than its Representatives or to jts Affiliates
who have a legitimate need to know such Confidentia]
Information;

d) before disclosing Confidentia] Information to any Affiliate or
to its Representatives, to ensure that such person is aware of
the discloser’s obligations in this HOA, ensure compliance by
such person and be liable for any breach of such obligations

\;t’i
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by such person; and
€) as far as possible to keep separate al Confidential
Information from ali documents and other records of a Party.
2) The undertakings in Clayse 25.1 shall not apply to any
Confidential Information which:
a) at the time of disclo

of disclosure hereunder and was not acquired by such Party
under an obligation of confidence; or

¢) the recipient Party can show was received by it after the time
of disclosure hereunder from a third party (other than one

The foregoing exceptions shall not, however, apply to:
(Dspecific information merely because it is embraced by or
included with other information which falls within any one or
more of such exceptions; or
(i)any combination of information merely because specific
information (but not the combination itself) falls within any one
or more of such exceptions,

3) Inthe event that the recipient Party, its Affiliates, Representatives
or other permitted recipients is required by an order of any
government, state government agency or requested by any court
or legislative or administrative body including any recognised

obtained, then:
a) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request may
disclose to the appropriate body that portion of the
Confidential Information which such Party is legally required
to disclose and shall yse reasonable efforts to obtain
assurances that confidentia] treatment will be accorded to

such Confidential Information; and

not permitted under this HOA.
4) The Parties agree that, upon request by one Party, the other Party
shall promptly:
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a) return or, at the option of the requesting Party, destroy all
Confidential Information that is in tangible form (including,
without limitation, Confidential Information contained on
computer disks or other electronic media) furnished to the
other Party, together with any copies or extracts thereof; and

b) destroy all analyses, compilations, studies or other documents
which have been prepared by the other Party or permitted
recipients and which reflect or are based upon any
Confidential Information, except to the extent that the
recipient Party is required to retain any Confidential
Information by any applicable law, rule or regulation or by
any judicial, governmental, supervisory or regulatory body or
to the extent that such Confidential Information is
incorporated into Organisational records which such Party is
required to retain by law or in accordance with internal
policies regarding the keeping of records generally, in which
case such Party will take appropriate measures to preserve its
continuing confidentiality.

21. Governing Law | This HOA shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
and Dispute | Pakistani Law. Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this
Resolution HOA, including any question regarding its existence, validity or

Duration of | This HOA shall terminate either upon (a) the execution of the GSA
HOA by the Buyer and the Seller; or (b) the Parties discontinuing the
discussions on the terms of the GSA, whichever comes earlier. (c)
either party serving one Month Notice for terminating this Heads of

Agreement.
23. | Conduct of | Both Parties will strictly adhere to the Codes, Practices and Conducts
Business of Business Ethics (which shall be more specifically referenced in the

GSA) including, but not limited to Anti-Bribery and Corruption and
Sanctions policies.
Notices 1) All notices and other communications to be sent by either Party to

may substitute by notice to the other in accordance with this
provision after the date of this HOA):

) .
To Buyer: BL(";‘)%M ci/ég;ﬁ F"[/;ng f]%ﬂ’l”
Address: Rowat [Rawelps y
Attention: Mis¢- §fadeen Alehyomd

Fax number: Email:

To Seller: Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

Address: 8th Floor, Bahria Complex - ITI, M.T. Khan Road
Attention: Fadi Mitri

Fax number:
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constitute one and the same instrument,

For and on behalf of

BISMiLLAH Cn e p
Near Rzwat

; 1 & DisH. Islamabag
- Kallar Say #1 Road, Rawat

<

4
Signature: NVO:___
Name:
Tlﬂe: CEO
Witnesses:
/
1. Signature: R %
Name: Mgz "/”/‘4 4
Title:

2. Signature:

Name:
Tite: A W
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TRAFIGURA

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PVT) LTD.
8TH FLOOR, BAHRIA COMPLEX — IlI, M.T. KHAN ROAD KARACHI
@] 2018

Dated on June
Heads of Agreement for a Gas Sales Agreement

This is a non-binding Heads of Agreement (“HOA”) for the fully termed Gas Sales
Agreement (“GSA”) between the Seller and the Buyer (defined in Clause 1 below).

The Seller is desirous to sell RLNG and has extended its support to the Buyer.

Clause Term

1. | Parties 1. TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED (or any of
its group company), a company duly incorporated and existing
under the laws of Pakistan under company number 010562,
having its registered office at 8™ Floor, Bahria Complex - III,
M.T Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan, represented herein by two
duly-authorized directors (referred to as "Seller" which
expression shall, unless repugnant to the context or meaning
hereof, include its successors and permitted assigns and/or its

subsidiary(ieﬁl); and
2 AL calG, € 5/5
........ (referred to as "Buyer" which expression shall, unless

répugnant,‘ to the context or meaning hereof, include its
successors and permitted assigns).

The Buyer and the Seller, each is hereinafter referred to as a “Party”
and together as the “Parties”.

The Seller intents to enter into gas sales agreements with the licensee
of compressed natural gas station operated under the brand name of
Puma Energy Pakistan and with other £4as USers across
Pakistan,(“Buyer’s Customers’ Facility”).

The Seller has already applied to obtain License for sale and
distribution of Gas from OGRA.

The Seller (or its affiliate) has acquired a minority equity stake in
Pakistan Gas Port (PGPC) which gives Seller exclusive access to the
extra regasification capacity, this is being 90 MMSCFD, available for
175 days per year.

The Seller is willing to provide to the Buyer RLNG supply along |

TRAFIGURA PTE. LTD.
REGISTERED OFFICE: | MARINA BOULEVARD, #28-00, ONE MARINA BOULEVARD, SINGAPORE (018989)
WWW.TRAFIGURA.COM
REGISTERED NUMBER: |99601595D
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with Regasification Services from Pakistan Gas Port Consortium (
PGPC) for delivery of Regasified LNG through national gas
pipeline grid at the delivery point of the buyers’ CNG Station.

AND WHEREAS, the parties have now come on board to form their
alliance and/or business combination specific to LNG services and
intend to lay out the principal terms and conditions of their
cooperation;

NOw, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutua] benefits and
Covenants contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows
(always subject to applicable laws and regulations):

1) The Seller will make RLNG available to Buyer, Subject to
final price discussion and agreement of suitable terms,

2) The Seller will use its own exclusive access to the
regasification capacity at the PGPC FSRU terminal to
provide regasification services for the LNG it will provide to
The Buyer.

3) Consequently, the Seller has agreed to allocate RLNG
supplies upto 5 MMSCF in a month fo the Buyer on
intermittent supply chain to be consumed on a monthly basis
> With a potential famp up to 8 MMSCF per month in the
future subject to the Market dynamics and circumstances,

4) The deliveries of RLNG will have to be on delivered basis at
the facilities of the Buyer, unless mutually agreed between
parties.

2. | Start Date 1) The start date of Gas sales (“Start Date”) shall be the date when |
Seller shall deliver the first quantities of Gas and the Buyer shall
take delivery and pay for the Gas so delivered,

2) The Parties expect the Start Date to fall after the Seller acquiring
necessary approvals and licenses from the government and
regulating authorities.

3) The Parties shall agree a windowing mechanism and conditions
precedent in the GSA. Upon the fulfilment or wajver of all the
conditions precedent therein, the Seller will provide notices to the
Buyer within set time windows providing an estimate of the
periods when the Seller expects the Start Date to occur as
provided by the following:

a) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 3 month period falling within the above 6 month
period;

b) a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by the Seller
for a 1 month period falling within the above 3 month
period; and

c) finally, a written notice to be provided by [mm/yy] by

the Seller for the actual Start Date falling within the |
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above one month period,
which will allow the Parties to progressively narrow down the Start
Date.

3. Term

The term of the HOA is currently envisaged to be 1 year from the
Start Date (“Term™)and the Parties, by mutual agreement in writing,
may agree extend the Term by an additional 1 year. The process by
which mutual agreement can be reached between the Parties will be
outlined in the GSA.

4. | General
Undertakings

1. The Buyer shall inform the Seller immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance, which has or
is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Buyer’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

2. The Buyer shall not contravene any laws or legal
requirements which could reasonably be expected to have
material adverse effect on its ability to perform its
obligations under the GSA and or cause it to be in breach, in
any material respect(s), of its obligations under the GSA.

3. The Seller shall inform the Buyer immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance which has or
is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Seller’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

4. The Seller shall not enter into any agreement and not
contravene any laws or legal requirements which could
reasonably be expected to have material adverse effect on its
ability to perform its obligations under the GSA or cause it to
be in breach, in any material respect(s), of its obligations
under the GSA.

Quantity of Gas ﬂ

The total annual contract quantity (“ACQ") of Gas to be sold by the
Seller and to be purchased, taken and paid for by the Buyer at the
Delivery Point in a Contract Fiscal Year shall be approximately 160
MMSCEF per annum.

Quality

Gas

specifications of

The terms and conditions in relation to quality specifications of Gas |
shall be set out in the GSA.

Principles
Pricing of Gas

of

In the GSA, the following principles will apply for determining the
price at which an Affiliate of the Seller will sell and the Buyer will
buy Gas respectively (“Contract Price™):

1. The Contract Price for Gas delivered or tendered for delivery
by the Seller to the Buyer shall be expressed in US Dollars
per MMBtu (US$/MMBtu);

2. The final price will have to be converted from USD into
PKR

3. For avoidance of doubt, the price will be brent-related and
not a fixed price for the full term of the contract.

4. All references to MMBtu shall mean MMBty on Gross
Heating Value basis;
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Delivery
obligations of the
Seller

If, during a certain period, the Seller fails to deliver or tender for |
delivery certain quantities of Gas (the duration of such period and
such quantities to be specified in the GSA) to the Buyer (except for
reasons to be specified in the GSA), the Seller shall pay the Buyer an
amount to be negotiated and specified in the GSA.

Measurement

1. The unit of measurement to quantify amounts of Gas in the
GSA or in any document produced in accordance with the
terms of the GSA.

2. The Parties shall agree provisions in the GSA for the location,
standards and verification of measurement  equipment,
ownership of measurement equipment, the dispute resolution
mechanism in case of variations in measurement and alternate
provisions in case of a metering failure,

11.

Transportation
of Gas

It is agreed that seller will have to make the RLNG/ Natural Gas
available to the buyer at the entry point of the buyers’ CNG station.
The seller will use his allocation of pipeline access and his GTAs
with SSGC & SNGPL to transport the RLNG into the buyer’s CNG
station.

12.

Title to Gas

Title to Gas delivered pursuant to the GSA shall pass from the Seller
to the Buyer at the Delivery Point of CNG station,

13.

Price

The final price of the RLNG will be advised by Trafigura at the time
of contract negotiation but will include, also, terminal Re-
gasification, transportation charges as well as all other applicable
local taxes. Price will be expressed and paid in PKR. For the
avoidance of doubt, the final price will be subject to the agreement of
the Buyer.

14.

Compliance with
Laws

The Buyer and the Seller shall comply with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

IS.

Invoicing and
Payments

1. The Buyer shall pay for the Gas delivered or tendered for
delivery at the Delivery Point in the manner set out in the GSA.

2. Terms and conditions in relation to invoicing and payment,
including billing cycles shall be set out in the GSA.

16.

Taxes and
Charges

1. The Buyer shall pay, or cause to be paid, all applicable Taxes
related to the sale of Gas and other sums in respect of Gas
delivered or tendered for delivery under the GSA at the Delivery
Point,

2. Each Party shall bear Taxes on its own income.

17.

Force Majeure

The GSA shall contain industry standard provisions for force majeure
(including a definition of force majeure which shall include severe
weather conditions) which would suspend obligations of the
respective Party impacted by the force majeure, notice and reporting
requirements, mitigation responsibility, consequences, termination
and notice of cessation. N
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18. | Conditions
Precedent

The sale and purchase of Gas under the GSA shall be subject to |
certain conditions precedent, which shall include amongst others the
following:

1. The Seller and its Affiliates satisfactorily assuring themselves
of clearance and acceptability of the Facilities as well as the
use of Port Qasim for the delivery of LNG;

2. The Seller obtaining all relevant Consents to sell Gas in
Pakistan;

3. The seller executing third party gas pipeline access and
transportation agreements with SSGC & SNGPL, including
necessary provisions covering balancing of Gas volumes with
the Transporter using the Transporter’s Facilities and
provisions addressing unaccounted for gas (also known as
UFG);

4. The Buyer obtaining all relevant Consents to buy Gas in
Pakistan.

Detailed terms and conditions including relevant deadlines in relation
to the conditions precedent shall be set out in the GSA subject to the-
agreement of the parties.

19. | Miscellaneous
provisions

Subject to agreement on all terms of the GSA by the Parties, the
Parties agree to reflect in the GSA in greater detail the key
commercial terms and principles recorded in this HOA. For the
avoidance of doubt, (a)nothing contained in this HOA is intended to
give rise to any binding contractual relationship nor shall this HOA
give rise to any right, obligation or liability on the part of either the
Buyer or the Seller to enter into the GSA;

(b)any such legally binding rights and obligations and consequent
liabilities would arise only in the event of, and as a result of, the
execution of a mutually acceptable GSA; and

(¢) Each party shall bear its own costs in connection with this HOA,
the GSA and all matters contemplated by this HOA.

20. Confidentiality

1) Each Party acknowledges that the Confidential Information is
confidential and undertakes:

a) to use the Confidential Information solely for the purpose set
out in this HOA;

b) to keep the Confidential Information in strict confidence;

¢) not, without the prior written consent of the other Party, to
disclose any Confidential Information furnished to it 1o any
third party other than its Representatives or to its Affiliates
who have a legitimate need to know such Confidential
Information;

d) before disclosing Confidential Information to any Affiliate or
to its Representatives, to ensure that such person is aware of
the discloser’s obligations in this HOA, ensure compliance by
such person and be liable for any breach of such obligations
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F by such person; and
€) as far as possible to keep separate all Confidential
Information from all documents and other records of a Party,
2) The undertakings in Clause 25.1 shall not apply to any

Confidential Information which:

a) at the time of disclosure to the recipient Party or thereafter
has become part of public knowledge or literature without
breach of any of the said undertakings by such Party;

b) the recipient Party can show was in its possession at the time
of disclosure hereunder and was not acquired by such Party
under an obligation of confidence; or

c) the recipient Party can show was received by it after the time
of disclosure hereunder from a third party (other than one
disclosing on behalf of the other Party or its Affiliates) who
could lawfully do so and who did not derive the Confidential
Information from the other Party or any of its Affiliates,

( The foregoing exceptions shall not, however, apply to:
()specific information merely because it is embraced by or
included with other information which falls within any one or
more of such exceptions; or
(i)any combination of information merely because specific
information (but not the combination itself) falls within any one
or more of such exceptions.

3) In the event that the recipient Party, its Affiliates, Representatives
or other permitted recipients is required by an order of any
government, state government agency or requested by any court
or legislative or administrative body including any recognised
stock exchange to disclose any Confidential Information, such
Party shall, to the extent it is lawful to do so, promptly and prior
to disclosure notify the disclosing Party so that an appropriate
protective order and/or other action can be sought and/or other
action can be taken if possible (and if it is not lawful to inform the
disclosing party prior to disclosure, the recipient Party shall

et inform the disclosing Party as soon as it becomes lawful to do

s0). In the event that such protective order is not, or cannot be,
obtained, then:

a) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request may
disclose to the appropriate  body that portion of the
Confidential Information which such Party is legally required
to disclose and shall use reasonable efforts to obtain
assurances that confidential treatment wil be accorded to
such Confidential Information; and

b) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request shall
not be liable for such disclosure unless such disclosure was
caused by or resulted from a previous disclosure by such
Party or its Affiliates or any of their Representatives that was

not permitted under this HOA.
4) The Parties agree that, upon request by one Party, the other Party
shall promptly: N




a) return or, at the option of the requesting Party, destroy all
Confidential Information that is in tangible form (including,
without limitation, Confidentia] Information contained on

Governing Law
and Dispute
Resolution

Duration s HOA shall terminate

Thi
HOA by

Conduct
Business

Both Parties will strictly adhere to the Codes, Practices and Conducts
of Business Ethics (which shall be more specifically referenced in the
GSA) including, but not limited to Anti-Bribery and Corruption and
Sanctions

Notices

may substitute by notice to the other in accordance with this
provision after the date of this HOA):
To Buyer: AL -~/adee cl\jG’ % P(f

Address: (Saper—@ —Hlew-gN - | 22 9&
Attention: finsert] @M - ~opa™ + OJp0 Sy

Fax number: Email: [insert]

To Seller: Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

Address: 8th Floor, Bahria Complex — I, M.T. Khan Road
Attention: Fadi Mitri

Fax number:




o

2) All notices or other communications under this HOA shall be
deemed to be duly given or made on the next business day in the
jurisdiction of receipt following the date of delivery or (in the case
of personal delivery) or receipt by the sender of a valid
transmission confirmation (in the case of facsimile).

Z3,

L

Counterparts

This HOA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which will be deemed an original and all of which together will
constitute one and the same instrument.

The Parties hereto have executed this Heads of Agreement on the day and year first
above written:

For and on behalf of

nieum & ONG
Al-Naseer Pe".'i‘i,%n.sasazsa

| SRl L ode: 112449

A

Signature:
Name: Mr. Fadi Mitri
X =
Title: CEO CEO
Witnesses:
1. Signatu.reg )
Name: /)y Zgabtio~
Title® .
2. Signature:
Name: .
Title: Al \(f-\((,.\
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TRAFIGURA

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PvT.) LTD.
8TH FLOOR, BAHRIA COMPLEX — I, M.T. KHAN ROAD KARACHI

Dated on July 06, 2018

Heads of Agreement for a Gas Sales Agreement

This is a non-binding Heads of Agreement (“HOA”™) for the fully termed Gas Sales
Agreement (“GSA”) between the Seller and the Buyer (defined in Clause 1 below).

The Seller is desirous to sell RLNG and has extended its support to the Buyer.

| Clause | Term
1. | Parties 1. TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED (or any of
its group company), a company duly incorporated and existing
under the laws of Pakistan under company number 010562,
having its registered office at §t Floor, Bahria Complex - 111,
M.T Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan, represented herein by two
duly-authorized directors (referred to as "Seller" which
expression shall, unless repugnant to the context or meaning
hereof, include its successors and permitted assigns and/or its
subsidiary(ies)); and

2 K ... N0 o S Shtn

seeeee(referred to as "Buyer" which expressien shall, unless
repugnant to the context or meaning hereof, include its
successors and permitted assigns).

The Buyer and the Seller, each is hereinafter referred to as a “Party”
and together as the “Parties”.

The Seller intents to enter into gas sales agreements with the licensee
of compressed natural gas station operated under the brand name of
Puma Energy Pakistan and with other gas users across
Pakistan,(“Buyer’s Customers’ Facility™).

The Seller has already applied to obtain License for sale and
distribution of Gas from OGRA.

The Seller (or its affiliate) has acquired a minority equity stake in
Pakistan Gas Port (PGPC) which gives Seller exclusive access to the
extra regasification capacity, this is being 90 MMSCFD, available for
175 days per year.

L The Seller is willing to provide to the Buyer RLNG supply along |

TRAFIGURA PTE. LTD.
REGISTERED OFFICE; | MARINA BOULEVARD, #28-00, ONE MariNA BOULEVARD, SINGAPORE (018989}
WWW.TRAFIGURA.COM
REGISTERED NUMBER: 1996015950
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with Regasification Services from Pakistan Gas Port Consortium (
PGPC) for delivery of Regasified LNG through national gas
pipeline grid at the delivery point of the buyers’ CNG Station,

AND WHEREAS, the parties have now come on board to form their
alliance and/or business combination specific to LNG services and
intend to lay out the principal terms and conditions of their
cooperation;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and
covenants contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows
(always subject to applicable laws and regulations):

1) The Seller will make RLNG available to Buyer, Subject to
final price discussion and agreement of suitable terms.

2) The Seller will use its own exclusive access to the
regasification capacity at the PGPC FSRU terminal to
provide regasification services for the LNG it will provide to
The Buyer.

3) Consequently, the Seller has agreed to allocate RLNG
supplies upto 5 MMSCF in a month to the Buyer on
intermittent supply chain to be consumed on a monthly basis
» With a potential ramp up to 8 MMSCF per month in the
future subject to the Market dynamics and circumstances.

4) The deliveries of RLNG will have to be on delivered basis at
the facilities of the Buyer, unless mutually agreed between
parties.

Start Date

1) The start date of Gas sales (“Start Date”) shall be the date when
Seller shall deliver the first quantities of Gas and the Buyer shall
take delivery and pay for the Gas so delivered.

2) The Parties expect the Start Date to fal] after the Seller acquiring
necessary approvals and licenses from the government and
regulating authorities.

3) The Parties shall agree a windowing mechanism and conditions
precedent in the GSA. Upon the fulfilment or waiver of all the
conditions precedent therein, the Seller will provide notices to the
Buyer within set time windows providing an estimate of the
periods when the Seller expects the Start Date to occur as
provided by the following:

a) a written notice to be provided by [ ] by the
Seller for a 3 month period falling within the above 6
month period;

b) a written notice to be provided by [ 1 by the
Seller for a 1 month period falling within the above 3
month period; and

c) finally, a written notice to be provided by [ ] by
the Seller for the actual Start Date falling within the
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above one month period,
which will allow the Parties to progressively narrow down the Start
Date.
3. | Term The term of the HOA is currently envisaged to be 1 year from the
Start Date (“Term”)and the Parties, by mutual agreement in writing,
may agree extend the Term by an additional 1 year. The process by
which mutual agreement can be reached between the Parties will be

| outlined in the GSA.
4. | General 1. The Buyer shall inform the Seller immediately upon
Undertakings becoming aware of any event or circumstance, which has or

is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Buyer’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

2. The Buyer shall not contravene any laws or legal
requirements which could reasonably be expected to have
material adverse effect on its ability to perform its
obligations under the GSA and or cause it to be in breach, in
any material respect(s), of its obligations under the GSA.

3. The Seller shall inform the Buyer immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance which has or
is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Seller’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

4. The Seller shall not enter into any agreement and not
contravene any laws or legal requirements which could
reasonably be expected to have material adverse effect on its
ability to perform its obligations under the GSA or cause it to
be in breach, in any material respect(s), of its obligations
under the GSA.

5. | Quantity of Gas | The total annual contract quantity (“ACQ”) of Gas to be sold by the
Seller and to be purchased, taken and paid for by the Buyer at the
Delivery Point in a Contract Fiscal Year shall be approximately 160

MMSCEF per annum.
6. | Quality The terms and conditions in relation to quality specifications of Gas
specifications of | shall be set out in the GSA.

Gas
7. | Principles of | In the GSA, the following principles will apply for determining the
Pricing of Gas price at which an Affiliate of the Seller will sell and the Buyer will
buy Gas respectively (“Contract Price”):

1. The Contract Price for Gas delivered or tendered for delivery
by the Seller to the Buyer shall be expressed in US Dollars
per MMBtu (US$/MMBtu);

2. The final price will have to be converted from USD into
PKR

3. For avoidance of doubt, the price will be brent-related and
not a fixed price for the full term of the contract.

4. All references to MMBtu shall mean MMBtu on Gross
Heating Value basis;

I N
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Delivery
obligations of the
Seller

If, during a certain period, the Seller fails to deliver or tender for]
delivery certain quantities of Gas (the duration of such period and
such quantities to be specified in the GSA) to the Buyer (except for
reasons to be specified in the GSA), the Seller shall pay the Buyer an
amount to be negotiated and specified in the GSA.

Measurement

1. The unit of measurement to quantify amounts of Gas in the
GSA or in any document produced in accordance with the
terms of the GSA.

2. The Parties shall agree provisions in the GSA for the location,
standards and verification of measurement equipment,
ownership of measurement equipment, the dispute resolution
mechanism in case of variations in measurement and alternate
provisions in case of a metering failure,

11.

Transportation
of Gas

It is agreed that seller will have to make the RLNG/ Natural Gas
available to the buyer at the entry point of the buyers’ CNG station.
The seller will use his allocation of pipeline access and his GTAs
with SSGC & SNGPL to transport the RLNG into the buyer’s CNG
station.

12.

Title to Gas

Title to Gas delivered pursuant to the GSA shall pass from the Seller
to the Buyer at the Delivery Point of CNG station.

13.

Price

The final price of the RLNG will be advised by Trafigura at the time
of contract negotiation but will include, also, terminal Re-
gasification, transportation charges as well as all other applicable
local taxes. Price will be expressed and paid in PKR. For the
avoidance of doubt, the final price will be subject to the agreement of
the Buyer.

14.

Compliance with
Laws

The Buyer and the Seller shall comply with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

15.

Invoicing and

1. The Buyer shali pay for the Gas delivered or tendered for
delivery at the Delivery Point in the manner set out in the GSA.

2. Terms and conditions in relation to invoicing and payment,
including billing cycles shall be set out in the GSA.

1. The Buyer shall pay, or cause to be paid, all applicable Taxes
related to the sale of Gas and other sums in respect of Gas
delivered or tendered for delivery under the GSA at the Delivery
Point.

2. Each Party shall bear Taxes on its own income.

Payments

16. | Taxes and
Charges

17. | Force Majeure

The GSA shall contain industry standard provisions for force majeure
(including a definition of force majeure which shall include severe
weather conditions) which would suspend obligations of the
respective Party impacted by the force majeure, notice and reporting
requirements, mitigation responsibility, consequences, termination
and notice of cessation.
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18. | Conditions The sale and purchase of Gas under the GSA shall be subject to
Precedent certain conditions precedent, which shall include amongst others the
following:

1. The Seller and its Affiliates satisfactorily assuring themselves
of clearance and acceptability of the Facilities as well as the
use of Port Qasim for the delivery of LNG;

2. The Seller obtaining all relevant Consents to sell Gas in
Pakistan;

3. The seller executing third party gas pipeline access and
transportation agreements with SSGC & SNGPL, including
necessary provisions covering balancing of Gas volumes with
the Transporter using the Transporter’s Facilities and
provisions addressing unaccounted for gas (also known as
UFG);

4. The Buyer obtaining all relevant Consents to buy Gas in
Pakistan.

Detailed terms and conditions including relevant deadlines in relation
to the conditions precedent shall be set out in the GSA subject to the
agreement of the parties.

19. | Miscellaneous
provisions Subject to agreement on all terms of the GSA by the Parties, the

Parties agree to reflect in the GSA in greater detaj] the key

commercial terms and principles recorded in this HOA. For the

avoidance of doubt, (a)nothing contained in this HOA is intended to
give rise to any binding contractual relationship nor shall this HOA
give rise to any right, obligation or liability on the part of either the

Buyer or the Seller to enter into the GSA;

(b)any such legally binding rights and obligations and consequent

liabilities would arise only in the event of, and as a result of, the

execution of a mutually acceptable GSA; and

(c) Each party shall bear its own costs in connection with this HOA,

the GSA and all matters contemplated by this HOA.

20. Confidentiality 1) Each Party acknowledges that the Confidential Information is

confidential and undertakes:

a) to use the Confidential Information solely for the purpose set
out in this HOA;

b) to keep the Confidential Information in strict confidence;

¢) not, without the prior written consent of the other Party, to
disclose any Confidential Information furnished to it to any
third party other than its Representatives or to its Affiliates
who have a legitimate need to know such Confidentia]
Information;

d) before disclosing Confidential Information to any Affiliate or
to its Representatives, to ensure that such person is aware of
the discloser’s obligations in this HOA, ensure compliance by
such person and be liable for any breach of such obligations
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_( [ by such person; and

) as far as possible to keep separate all Confidential

Information from all documents and other records of a Party,
2) The undertakings in Clause 25.] shall not apply to any

Confidential Information which:

a) at the time of disclosure to the recipient Party or thereafier
has become part of public knowledge or literature without
breach of any of the said undertakings by such Party;

b) the recipient Party can show was in its possession at the time
of disclosure hereunder and was not acquired by such Party
under an obligation of confidence; or

¢) the recipient Party can show was received by it after the time
of disclosure hereunder from a third party (other than one
disclosing on behalf of the other Party or its Affiliates) who
could lawfully do so and who did not derive the Confidential
Information from the other Party or any of its Affiliates,

_ The foregoing exceptions shall not, however, apply to:

( ()specific information merely because it is embraced by or
included with other information which falls within any one or
more of such exceptions; or
(ii)any combination of information merely because specific
information (but not the combination itself) falls within any one
or more of such exceptions.

3) In the event that the recipient Party, its Affiliates, Representatives
or other permitted recipients is required by an order of any
government, state government agency or requested by any court
or legislative or administrative body including any recognised
stock exchange to disclose any Confidential Information, such
Party shall, to the extent it is lawful to do so, promptly and prior
to disclosure notify the disclosing Party so that an appropriate
protective order and/or other action can be sought and/or other
action can be taken if possible (and if it is not lawful to inform the
disclosing party prior to disclosure, the recipient Party shall
inform the disclosing Party as soon as it becomes lawful to do
s0). In the event that such protective order is not, or cannot be,

- obtained, then:

a) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request may
disclose to the appropriate body that portion of the
Confidential Information which such Party is legally required
to disclose and shall use reasonable efforts to obtain
assurances that confidential treatment will be accorded to
such Confidential Information; and

b) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request shall
not be liable for such disclosure unless such disclosure was
caused by or resulted from a previous disclosure by such
Party or its Affiliates or any of their Representatives that was
not permitted under this HOA. _

4) The Parties agree that, upon request by one Party, the other Party
shall promptly:
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a) return or, at the option of the requesting Party, destroy all
Confidential Information that is in tangible form (including,
without limitation, Confidentia] Information contained on
computer disks or other electronic media) furnished to the
other Party, together with any copies or extracts thereof: and

b) destroy all analyses, compilations, studies or other documents

Information by any applicable law, rule or regulation or by
any judicial, governmental, supervisory or regulatory body or
to the extent that such Confidential Information i
incorporated into organisational records which such Party is
required to retain by law or in accordance with internal
policies regarding the keeping of records generally, in which
case such Party will take appropriate measures to preserve its
continuing confidentiality.

Governing Law | This HOA shall be governed by and construed in accordance with

and Dispute | Pakistani Law. Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this

Resolution HOA, including any question regarding its existence, validity or
termination, shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration

Duration of | This HOA shall terminate either upon (a) the execution of the GSA
HOA by the Buyer and the Seller; or (b) the Parties discontinuing the

discussions on the terms of the GSA, whichever comes earlier. (c)
either party serving one Month Notice for terminating this Heads of

Agreement,
Conduct of | Both Parties will strictly adhere to the Codes, Practices and Conducts
Business of Business Ethics (which shall be more specifically referenced in the

GSA) including, but not limited to Anti-Bribery and Corruption and

Sanctions policies.

1) All notices and other communications to be sent by either Party to
the other shall be delivered by hand or sent by personal delivery or
facsimile to the relevant Party’s address or facsimile number noted
below (or to such other address or facsimile number as a Party
may substitute by notice to the other in accordance with this
provision after the date of this HOA):

. yn M‘&V
To Buyer: [Qﬁd, C”/(:) £F//wj 57[

Address: (.7 Read Tt o 4'
Attentjon: 7&“{}'&. Rab fnwﬂg
Fax number: Email:

Notices

To Seller: Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd
Address: 8th Floor, Bahria Complex - II, M.T. Khan Road
Attention: Fadi Mitri
Fax number:




X

2) All notices or other communications under this HOA shall be
deemed to be duly given or made on the next business day in the
Jurisdiction of receipt following the date of delivery or (in the case
of personal delivery) or receipt by the sender of a valid
transmission confirmation (in the case of facsimile).

25. | Counterparts This HOA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which will be deemed an original and all of which together will
constitute one and the same instrument,

The Parties hereto have executed this Heads of Agreement on the day and year first
above written:

For and on behalf of
Trafigura Pakistani (Pvt) Ltd,
Signature: W
o v
Name: Mr. Fadi Mitri
Title: CEO Pet
R 82 CNG Serwcg'nl
Dealer Admore S
Witnesses: G.T Road Taxila Cant
Code No. N 00671
1. Signatur .
Name: Met Y gaf/W

Title

2. Signature:

Name:
Tite:  Pr—\aan A
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TRAFIGURA

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PvT.) LTD.
8TH FLOOR, BAHRIA CoMPLEX — II, M.T. KHAN ROAD KARACHI

Dated on July 06, 2018
Heads of Agreement for a Gas Sales Agreement

This is a non-binding Heads of Agreement (*HOA™) for the fully termed Gas Sales
Agreement (*GSA”) between the Seller and the Buyer (defined in Clause 1 below).

The Seller is desirous to sell RLNG and has extended its support to the Buyer.

having its registered office at gt Floor, Bahria Complex - 111,
M.T Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan, represented herein by two
duly-authorized directors

WerkYae b v~gevices .

........ (referred to as "Buyer" which expression shall, unless
Iepugnant to the context or meaning hereof, include its
Successors and permitted assigns).

The Buyer and the Seller, each is hereinafter referred to as a “Party”
and together as the “Parties”,

Puma Energy Pakistan and with other gas users across
Pakistan,(“Buyer’s Customers’ Facility™).

The Seller has already applied to obtain License for sale and
distribution of Gas from OGRA.

istan Gas Port (PGPC) which gives Seller exclusive access to the
€xtra regasification capacity, this is being 90 MMSCFD, available for
175 days per year.

The Seller is willing to provide to the Buyer RING supply along

TRAFIGURA PTE. L1D.
REGISTERED OFrice: | MARINA BOULEVARD, #28-00, ONE MaRiNA BOULEVARD, SINGAPCRE (018989)
\TRAFIGURA.COM
REGISTERED Niumper: 199601595D
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with Regasification Services from Pakistan Gas Port Consortium (
PGPC) for delivery of Regasified LNG through national gas
pipeline grid at the delivery point of the buyers’ CNG Station,

cooperation;

NOw, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and
covenants contained herein, the parties hereby agree as follows
(always subject to applicable laws and regulations):

1) The Seller will make RLNG available to Buyer, Subject to
final price discussion and agreement of suitable terms,

2) The Seller will use its own exclusive access to the
regasification capacity at the PGPC FSRU terminal to
provide regasification services for the LNG it wil provide to
The Buyer.

3) Consequently, the Seller has  agreed to allocate RLNG
supplies upto 5 MMSCF in a month to the Buyer on
intermittent supply chain to be consumed on a monthly basis

4) The deliveries of RLNG will have to be on delivered basis at

2. | Start Date 1) The start date of Gas sales (“Start Date”) shall be the date when
Seller shall deliver the first quantities of Gas and the Buyer shall
take delivery and pay for the Gas so delivered.

2) The Parties expect the Start Date to fall after the Seller acquiring
nhecessary approvals and licenses from the government and
regulating authorities,

3) The Parties shall agree a windowing mechanism and conditions
precedent in the GSA. Upon the fulfilment or waiver of all the

Buyer within set time windows providing an estimate of the
periods when the Seller €xpects the Start Date to occyr as
provided by the following:

a) a written notice to be provided by [ ] by the
Seller for a 3 month period falling within the above 6
month period;

b) a written notice to be provided by [ ] by the
Seller for a 1 month period falling within the above 3
month period; and

c) finally, a written notice to be provided by [ ] by
the Seller for the actyal Start Date falling within the
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lﬂ | above one month period,

which will allow the Parties to progressively narrow down the Start
Date.

The term of the HOA is currently envisaged to be 1 year from the
Start Date (“Term”)and the Parties, by mutual agreement in writing,
nay agree extend the Term by an additional 1 year. The process by
which mutual agreement can be reached between the Parties wil] be

3. Term

outlined in the GSA.
4. | General 1. The Buyer shall inform the Seller immediately upon
Undertakings becoming aware of any event or circumstance, which has or

is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Buyer’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA .

2. The Buyer shall not contravene any laws or legal
requirements which could reasonably be expected to have
material adverse effect on its ability to perform its
obligations under the GSA and or cause it to be in breach, in
any material respect(s), of its obligations under the GSA.

( 3. The Seller shall inform the Buyer immediately upon
becoming aware of any event or circumstance which has or
is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the
Seller’s ability to perform its obligations under the GSA.

4. The Seller shall not enter into any agreement and not
contravene any laws or legal requirements which could
reasonably be expected to have material adverse effect on its
ability to perform its obligations under the GSA or cause it to
be in breach, in any material respect(s), of its obligations
under the GSA.

5. | Quantity of Gas | The total annual contract quantity (“ACQ”) of Gas to be sold by the
Seller and to be purchased, taken and paid for by the Buyer at the
Delivery Point in a Contract F iscal Year shall be approximately 160

l MMSCF per annum.
6. | Quality The terms and conditions in relation to quality specifications of Gas
specifications of | shall be set out in the GSA.
L. Gas

7. | Principles of | In the GSA, the following principles will apply for determining the |
Pricing of Gas price at which an Affiliate of the Seller will sell and the Buyer will
buy Gas respectively (“Contract Price”):

1. The Contract Price for Gas delivered or tendered for delivery
by the Seller to the Buyer shall be expressed in US Dollars
per MMBtu (US$/MMBtu);

2. The final price will have to be converted from USD into
PKR

3. For avoidance of doubt, the price will be brent-related and

~ nota fixed price for the full term of the contract,

4. All references to MMBtu shall mean MMBtu on Gross
Heating Value basis;

-
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8. | Delivery If, during a certain period, the Seller fails to deliver or tender f(ﬂ
obligations of the delivery certain quantities of Gas (the duration of such period and
Seller such quantities to be specified in the GSA) to the Buyer (except for

reasons to be specified in the GSA), the Seller shali pay the Buyer an
amount to be negotiated and specified in the GSA.

9. | Measurement 1. The unit of measurement to quantify amounts of Gas in the
GSA or in any document produced in accordance with the
terms of the GSA.

2. The Parties shall agree provisions in the GSA for the location,
standards and verification of measurement equipment,
ownership of measurement equipment, the dispute resolution
mechanism in case of variations in measurement and alternate
provisions in case of a metering failure.

11. | Transportation | It is agreed that selier will have to make the RLNG/ Natural Gas
of Gas available to the buyer at the entry point of the buyers’ CNG station.

12. | Title to Gas Title to Gas delivered pursuant to the GSA shall pass from the Seller
to the Buyer at the Delivery Point of CNG station.

13. | Price The final price of the RLNG will be advised by Trafigura at the time |
of contract negotiation but will include, also, terminal Re-
gasification, transportation charges as wel] as all other applicable
local taxes. Price will be expressed and paid in PKR. For the

avoidance of doubt, the final price will be subject to the agreement of
’ the Buyer.
14. | Compliance with | The Buyer and the Seller shall comply with al] applicable laws, rules
Laws and regulations.
15. | Invoicing and 1. The Buyer shall pay for the Gas delivered or tendered for
Payments delivery at the Delivery Point in the manner set out in the GSA.

2. Terms and conditions in relation to invoicing and payment,
including billing cycles shall be set out in the GSA.

16. | Taxes and 1. The Buyer shall pay, or cause to be paid, al! applicable Taxes
related to the sale of Gas and other sums in respect of Gas
delivered or tendered for delivery under the GSA at the Delivery
Point,

2. Each Party shall bear Taxes on its own income,

Charges

Force Majeure | The GSA shall contain industry standard provisions for force majeure
(including a definition of force majeure which shall include severe
weather conditions) which would suspend obligations of the
respective Party impacted by the force majeure, notice and reporting
requirements, mitigation responsibility, Consequences, termination

and notice of cessation.
|
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18.

Conditions
Precedent

The sale and purchase of Gas under the GSA shall be subject to
certain conditions precedent, which shall include amongst others the
following:

1. The Seller and its Affiliates satisfactorily assuring themselves
of clearance and acceptability of the Facilities as well as the
use of Port Qasim for the delivery of LNG;

2. The Seller obtaining all relevant Consents to sell Gas in
Pakistan;

3. The seller executing third party gas pipeline access and
transportation agreements with SSGC & SNGPL, including
necessary provisions covering balancing of Gas volumes with
the Transporter using the Transporter’s Facilities and
provisions addressing unaccounted for gas (also known as
UFG);

4. The Buyer obtaining all relevant Consents to buy Gas in
Pakistan.

Detailed terms and conditions including relevant deadlines in relation
to the conditions precedent shall be set out in the GSA subject to the
agreement of the parties.

19.

Miscellaneous
provisions

Subject to agreement on all terms of the GSA by the Parties, the
Parties agree to reflect in the GSA in greater detail the key
commercial terms and principles recorded in this HOA. For the
avoidance of doubt, (a)nothing contained in this HOA is intended to
give rise to any binding contractual relationship nor shall this HOA
give rise to any right, obligation or liability on the part of either the
Buyer or the Seller to enter into the GSA;

(blany such legally binding rights and obligations and consequent
liabilities would arise only in the event of, and as a result of, the
execution of a mutually acceptable GSA; and

(c) Each party shall bear its own costs in connection with this HOA,
the GSA and all matters contemplated by this HOA.

20.

Confidentiality

1) [Each Party acknowledges that the Confidential Information is
confidential and undertakes:

a) to use the Confidential Information solely for the purpose set
out in this HOA;

b) to keep the Confidential Information in strict confidence;

¢) not, without the prior written consent of the other Party, to
disclose any Confidential Information furnished to it to any
third party other than its Representatives or to its Affiliates
who have a legitimate need to know such Confidential
Information;

d) before disclosing Confidential Information to any Affiliate or
to its Representatives, to ensure that such person is aware of
the discloser’s obligations in this HOA, ensure compliance by
such persen and be liable for any breach of such obligations
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by such person; and

¢) as far as possible to keep separate all Confidential

Information from all documents and other records of a Party.
2) The undertakings in Clause 25.1 shall not apply to any

Confidential Information which:

a) at the time of disclosure to the recipient Party or thereafter
has become part of public knowledge or literature without
breach of any of the said undertakings by such Party;

b) the recipient Party can show was in its possession at the time
of disclosure hereunder and was not acquired by such Party
under an obligation of confidence; or

c) the recipient Party can show was received by it after the time
of disclosure hereunder from a third party (other than one
disclosing on behalf of the other Party or its Affiliates) who
could lawfully do so and who did not derive the Confidential
Information from the other Party or any of its Affiliates.

The foregoing exceptions shall not, however, apply to:
()specific information merely because it is embraced by or
included with other information which falls within any one or
more of such exceptions; or
(i)any combination of information merely because specific
information (but not the combination itself) falls within any one
or more of such exceptions.

3) In the event that the recipient Party, its Affiliates, Representatives
or other permitted recipients is required by an order of any
government, state government agency or requested by any court
or legislative or administrative body including any recognised
stock exchange to disclose any Confidential Information, such
Party shall, to the extent it is lawful to do so, promptly and prior
to disclosure notify the disclosing Party so that an appropriate
protective order and/or other action can be sought and/or other
action can be taken if possible (and if it is not lawful to inform the
disclosing party prior to disclosure, the recipient Party shall
inform the disclosing Party as soon as it becomes lawful to do
s0). In the event that such protective order is not, or cannot be,
obtained, then:

a) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request may
disclose to the appropriate body that portion of the
Confidential Information which such Party is legally required
to disclose and shall use reasonable efforts to obtain
assurances that confidential treatment will be accorded to
such Confidential Information; and

b) the Party subject to the disclosure requirement or request shall
not be liable for such disclosure unless such disclosure was
caused by or resulted from a previous disclosure by such
Party or its Affiliates or any of their Representatives that was
not permitted under this HOA.

4) The Parties agree that, upon request by one Party, the other Party
shall promptly:
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a) return or, at the option of the requesting Party, destroy all
Confidential Information that is in tangible form (including,
without limitation, Confidential Information contained on
computer disks or other electronic media) furnished to the
other Party, together with any copies or extracts thereof: and

b) destroy all analyses, compilations, studies or other documents
which have been prepared by the other Party or permitted
recipients and which reflect or are based upon any
Confidential Information, except to the extent that the
recipient Party is required to retain any Confidential
Information by any applicable law, rule or regulation or by
any judicial, governmental, supervisory or regulatory body or
to the extent that such Confidential Information is
incorporated into organisational records which such Party is
required to retain by law or in accordance with internal
policies regarding the keeping of records generally, in which
case such Party will take appropriate measures to preserve its
continuing confidentiality.

21.

Governing Law

This HOA shall be governed by and construed in accordance with

and Dispute | Pakistani Law. Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this
Resolution HOA, including any question regarding its existence, validity or
termination, shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration
22. | Duration of | This HOA shall terminate either upon (a) the execution of the GSA
HOA by the Buyer and the Seller; or (b) the Parties discontinuing the
discussions on the terms of the GSA, whichever comes earlier. (c)
either party serving one Month Notice for terminating this Heads of
Agreement.
23. | Conduct of | Both Parties will strictly adhere to the Codes, Practices and Conducts
Business of Business Ethics (which shall be more specifically referenced in the
GSA) including, but not limited to Anti-Bribery and Corruption and
Sanctions policies.
24. | Notices 1) All notices and other communications to be sent by either Party to

the other shall be delivered by hand or sent by personal delivery or
facsimile to the relevant Party’s address or facsimile number noted
below (or to such other address or facsimile number as a Party
may substitute by notice to the other in accordance with this
provision after the date of this HOA):

To Buyer: Wgﬂm’oLL_Cﬂé‘, g’\/&{ierva\&iw'cM .
Address: G Jjvads _JaReQf (Jactlan .4D.
Attention: CH elers 0T 1} 775875 .

Fax number: Email:
To Seller: Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd
Address: 8th Floor, Bahria Complex — III, M.T. Khan Road
Attention: Fadi Mitri

Fax number:

f
/"
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2) All notices or other communications under this HOA shall be
deemed to be duly given or made on the next business day in the
jurisdiction of receipt following the date of delivery or (in the case
of personal delivery) or receipt by the sender of a valid
transmission confirmation (in the case of facsimile).

25. | Counterparts This HOA may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which will be deemed an original and all of which together will
constitute one and the same instrument.

The Parties hereto have executed this Heads of Agreement on the day and year first
above written:

For and on behalf of NARRAICH PETRQLEUW‘.
SERVICES

Trafigura Pakistani (Pvt) Ltd,

Signature:

Name:
Title:

Witnesses:
1. Signature: ’ g

Name: O c&(«}vm .
Title:

2. Signature:
Name: ol ~M/\

Title:

CEO
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No. OGRA-6 (1)/2018-Trafigura é}

17" July 2018
M/s Trafigura Pakistan Pvt Ltd,
Bahria Complex 3,
8% Floor, M.T Khan Road,
Karachi

Subject: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF LICENSE

.. a eob -
Dear Sir, = P’w frf
Please refer to your letter Mo Nil dated 12-07-2018 on the/above subject. In this regard

following information / clarification fnay please be provided for furtlfer processing of your request: -

i.  Sui companies enters into fan MOU / non-disclosure agreement with interested parties for
pipeline capacity allocation/. On the basis of same OGRA’grantsé conditional license to such
applicants for execution of formal GTA within one-year time period. Such MoU / non-
disclosure agreement with sui companies may be provided.

ii.  Itis apprised that a meeting with PGPCL was held in OGRA on 02-07-2018 during which it
was decided that PGPCL being OGRA s licensed terminal operator will allocate regasification {GvminaSC
capacity. In view of above PGPCL’s letter dated 22-06-2018 stating therein that Trafigura
Pakistan Pvt Ltd or any of its affiliates holds all the spare capacity in PGPCL termmal is not
valid. A revised letter from PGCPL regardmgj]éﬁl(;catlon of regasification caplty may be
provided.

iii. ~ The agreement with Puma Energy being an aggregator is not a valid acceptable agreement.
However, the agreements between Trafigura and CNG stations for supply of RLNG are being

considered/accepted.

Yours sincerely,

REGISTRAR
CC:

(i) MD, SNGPL, Lahore
(ii) MD, SSGCL, Karachi
(iii) CEO, PGPCL, Associated House, Seven Egerton Road, Lahore
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Oil & Gas
Regulatory Authority

OVGRA'-6(1)-NG/201 8 July 20, 2018

Mr. Elias Chibani,

Chief Executive Officer,

Trafigura Pakistan (Private) Limited,
Behria Complex 3,

8" Floor M.T Khan Road,
KARACH]I

Subject: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF LICENCE FOR SALE OF NATURAL GAS /
————=—"_NATURAL GAS/

RLANG
Dear Sir, / ()é{//‘;f,lu J

Please refer to your letter No Nil dated 12-07-2018 on the above subject. In this
regard following information / clarification may please be provided for further processing of
your request: -

i) Sui companies enters into an MOy / non-disclosure agreement with
interested parties for pipeline capacity allocation, as per practice. On the
basis of same OGRA considers grant of a conditona/ license to such
applicants for execution of formal GTA within One-year time period. Such
Mol 7/ non-disclosure agreement with syj Companies may be provided,

i) It is apprised that g meeting with PGPCL was held in OGRA on 02-07-2018
during which it was decided that PGPCL being OGRA’s licensed terminal
operator will aflocate regasification terminaj capacity. In view of above
PGPCL’s letter dated 22-06-2018 stating therein that Trafigura Pakistan Pvt
Ltd or any of jts affiliates holds all the Spare capacity in PGPCL terminal is not
valid. A revised letter from PGcpL regarding specific allocation of

regasification capacity may be provided.

iff) The agreement with Puma Energy being an aggregator is not a valig
acceplable agreement However, the agreements between Trafigura and
CNG stations for supply of RLNG are being considered/accepted.

M@ -7
(Abdul Basit Q reshi)

Registrgr
(For & on behaff of the Authority)
C.C
Managing Director, SSGCL,
St-4-B, Block 14, Sir Shah Suleman Road,
Gulshan-e- Igbal, Karachi,

Managing Director, SNGPL,
21-Kashmir Road, Gas House,
Lahore.

Chief Executive Officer,
PGP Consortium Limited, Associated House,
Seven Egerton Road, Lahore.

92 51 9244090-98, Fax: +92 51 9244310

54-B, Fazlul Haq Road, Blue Area, Islamabad. PABX: + : 2
AlﬂTfM—lﬂ‘ LL".D)_I_‘_STI_LJ 4,.3_9_)‘5.:.."‘_]_443 54-B

+92 51 9244310: (uSid +92 51 9244090-98:055

www.ogra.org.
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. TRAFIGURA

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Dated: September 13{ 2017
TO

A
The Registrar
Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority — OGRA . 7 , \9
54-B, Fazal-e-Haq Road, Blue Area, \%
Islamabad, Pakistan o\

Tel: +92-51-9244090-98

Subject: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF LICENSE FOR SALE OF NATURAL GAS / RLNG %y
[
49 K
Y/

I am responding to your letter no. OGRA-6(1)-NG/2018 dated July 04, 2018 regarding the
application for grant of license for sale of natural gas / RLNG. You have asked us for
complementary information on MOUs / non-disclosure agreement (NDA) between Trafigura
Pakistan Pvt Ltd (the Applicant) and SSGCL and SNGPL and a revised letter from Licensed
Terminal Operators. The table below provides you with an overview of our detailed
answers.

Dear Sir,

S. No | The Counterparty The Applicant
i SSGCL & SNGPL As advised by the authority, SSGC & SNGPL
were approached to enter into MOU /NDA.

The executed NDA with SSGC is attached as an
Annexure — A.

However, SNGPL has reverted with another
letter # GMS:938(LNG) dated August 8, 2018
(attached as an Annexure- B) that they may
only be approached, once the TPA rules along
with Network Code come into force.

in view of the above, it is submitted to the
Authority to kindly issue license for the sale
and marketing of RLNG for the customers on
SSGC as well as on SNGPL network. However,
2\ the effectiveness of the same may be
considered subject to the provision of final
arrangements‘with the SUIs.

et e 18}
Siamanh : N .
e Kind considerations will also enable us to
serve those customers who already have such
arrangements with SNGPL.

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

WWW.TRAFIGURA.COM
UNIVERSAL 1D NUMBER: 0110562



TRAFIGURA 46l
- TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED
Further to the above, we are still approachinﬂ
SNGPL to initiate discussions on Gas
Transportation Agreements as soon as
possible and will keep authority updated on
any further progress on it.

Meanwhile, you are requested to please
proceed further with submitted NDA executed
between the applicant and S5GC.

ii. Licensed Terminal Operator | PGPCL’s letter is attached as an Annexure — C

Kindly let us know in case clarification is required on above.

In view of above, and in the spirit of enabling Trafigura to serve Pakistan as soon as possible,
it is requested that the grant of license to carry out sale and marketing of RLNG be issued on

a priority basis.

For and on behalf of
Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

WWW.TRAFIGURA.COM
UNIVERSAL ID NUMBER: 01 10562
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BETWEEN
SUI SOUTHERN GAS COMPANY LIMITED
AND

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Dated: 16" August, 2018

W
)



NON DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

THIS NON DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the "NDA") is
made and entered into on this 16" day of August, 2018 at Karachi

BETWEEN

SUI SOUTHERN GAS COMPANY LIMITED, a Public Limited Company, incorporated
under the Companies Ordinance. 1984 and having its Registered Head Office at ST-4/B,
Block 14, Sir Shah Suleman Road, Gulshan-e-Igbal,. Karachi (hereinafter referred
to as "SSGC/Company” which expression shall include its successors in interest,
nominees; legal representatives, administrators and assigns) of the first part,

AND

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED a company duly incorporated and
existing under the laws of Pakistan under company number 010562, having its registered
office at 8th Floor, Bahria Complex - III, M.T Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan (hereinafter
referred to as the "Trafigura / Consulting party” which expression shall. wherever the
context so permits mean and include its successors-in interest, €xecutors, nominees,
legal representatives and permitted assigns) of the second part;

Both the Company and the Consulting party may hereinafter collectively be referred.
to as the "Parties" and individually as a "Party™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS

A. The Parties are desirous of exchanging their Confidential. Information for the
purpose of entering into discussion for Gas Transportation Agreement for
re-gasified liquefied natural gas on SSGC network (hereinafier the
"Project").

B. The Parties have agreed to share/exchange their Confidential Information, for
the purposes set out in Recital A on the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

C. The Parties have agreed to protect the Confidential Information disclosed to
each other prior to or afier the execution of this Agreement and. otherwise
agree to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH, for good and valuable
consideration, it is hereby agreed between the Parties as under:

1. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

v\



1.1 "Confidential Information" Means any information disclosed by either

1.2

2.1

Party to the other party, either directly, indirectly or incidentally, in writing,
orally or by way of comment, advice, representation, perusal or by inspection of
tangible objects (including without limitation documents, manuals, software,
graphs, charts, processes, supplier lists, price lists, customer lists, product
information, market research information, correspondence, letters and papers of
every description including copies of and extracts from the same, concepts,
media statements, notes, reports, opinions, interpretations, forecasts, cost/benefit
analysis, records; prototypes; samples, plant and equipment), which is designated
or stated to be as "Confidential,". "Proprietary" or some similar designation or
where disclosed orally, is identified as Confidential at the time of such
disclosure. Confidential Information includes but is not limited to any
documentation, data, records, drawings, graphs, formulae, samples, electronic
data and any other means by which the Confidential Information may be stored

or reproduced.
Confidential Information shall not, however, include any information which;

@) was or becomes publicly known and made or to be made generally
available in the public domain, to the receiving party;

(i) becomes publicly known and made generally available after
disclosure by the disclosing party to the receiving party through no
action or inaction of the receiving party;

(iii) is already in the possession of the receiving party at the time of
disclosure by the disclosing party immediately prior to the time of
disclosure;

(iv) s obtained by the receiving party from a. third party provide that such
third party is not known to the receiving party to be bound by

obligations of confidentiality;

(V) is independently developed by the receiving party without use of or
reference to the disclosing party's Confidential Information, as shown
by documents and other competent evidence in the receiving party
possession,

Confidential Information shall be disclosed when it is required by
applicable law, regulation, legal process or stock exchange rules or
regulations (whether through oral question, interrogatories, requests for
information or documents, subpoena, civil investigative demand or other
similar process or through press release or other public disclosure); to be
disclosed by the receiving party, provided that the receiving party where
practicable gives the disclosing party prompt written notice of such
requirement prior to such disclosure and reasonable assistance in
obtaining an order protecting the information from public disclosure,

NON-USE AND NON-DISCLOSURE

Each Party agrees not to use any Confidential Information of the other
Party for any purpose except to .evaluate and engage in discussions
concerning a potential business relationship between the Parties



2.2  Each Party agrées not to disclose any Confidential Information of the other

3.

32

33

Party to third parties or to such party’s employees, except to those employees
of the Party who ate required to have the: information in arder 16 evaluate the
Project or engage in discussions conceémiing the, contemplated business
relationship. Neither Party shall reverse engineer, disassemble or decompile
any prototypes, software or other-tangible objects which embody the other
Party's Confidential Information and which are: provided to the. Party
héreunder:

MAINTENANCE OF CONFIDENTIALITY
Each Party agrees. that it shall make reasonable efforts io take bona fide measures. to

protect the sectecy of and avoid disclosure and unauthorized use of ‘the
Confidential Information of the other Party. Save as considered appropriate fo.the
purpose of Project evaluation, neither Party shall make any copies of the
Canfidential Information of the other Party or make or assist any person o make-any
unauthorized use of the 'saiie unless the.same- is previously approved in.-wrifing
by the. other Party. Each Paily shall reprodiice thé other Paity's propiietary rights
notices .on ahy such appraved ‘copies, in the same mariner in which such
notices were set forth in or on the -original,

The Parties agree to take reasonable measures so as not to permit uriauthorized perscns
to have access 10 places where the:other Party's Confidential Information is displayed,
reproduced or stored.

The Parties agree to cooperate and provide the ather Party with all. reasonable
assistance: in any.dction which the other Patty may taketo protect the confidentiality
of the Confidential Information against persons who are. subject to the confidentiality
obligations imposed by this Agreement or have executed confidentiafity -agreement.
further to orin connection with this Agreement.

NO OBLIGATION

Nothing herein shall -obligate either Party to proceed with any fransaction between
them, and. each reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate the
discussions contemplated by this- Agreenient at any time conceming. the business
‘opportunity by providing.a two (2) days: prior written notice. to this effect to the
other Party.

NO WARRANTY

All Confidential Infermatipn under this Agreement shall be provided as and when
‘available. Each Party makes no representations, warranties, express,. implied or
otherwise, regarding its accuracy, reliability, completeness or performance except that
such information has been disclosed in Bood: faith. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the
receiving party agrees that none of the disclosing: party or any. of its representatives,
shall have-any liability to the receiving party orany of-its representatives-unless the
disclosing party, or its representatives, knowingly pass information which is incorrect,
incomplete, misleading, erroriebus, or inaccurate, in any way, shape or form, in which
case the disclosing party and its representatives shall be fully liable towards the
receiving patty and its representatives-for.any direct and. consequential losses;

RETURN OF MATERIALS: N

Y1
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7.

9.
9.1

92

10.

10.1

10.2

All documents.and ail other tangible- objects containing or represeriting Confidential
Information which have been.disclosed by either Party o the other Paty, and all copies
thereof which are in the possession.of the other Party shall be and remain the property
of the disclosing party and shall be promptly: returned -within ten (10) days to the
disclosing party upon the disclosing party’s prior written request.

Documents ard records either Party is required fo keep in compliance with internal and
external audit requirements as well as Tor regulatory -and -reporting putposes are
specifically excluded from the general ob[i_gation to return the documenis-and other

tangible objects referred to in this paragraph.
NO LICENSE

Nothing in this Agreement: is: intended to grant, cither expressly or by implication,
-estoppels or otherwise, any rights or license to either Party under. any patent, trade
‘secret, invention, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right of the other
Party, nor shall this. Agreement grant any Party any rights in.or to the Confidential
Information of the other Party except ds expressly set forth herein.

TERM

Subject to the provisions of Clause 4 above, this Agreement is valid for one (1) year
from the date of its execution, after which jt may be renewed upon the same terms .and
conditions, subject 1o a fresh execution of the Agreement,

REMEDIES

The receiving party. acknowledges that disclosure or use 'of Confidential Information in
violation of this Agreement could cause ifreparable harm to the disclosing, party for
which monetary dariages may be difficult {to ascertain or be an inadequate remedy.
The receiving party, therefore, agrees that the-disclosing party shall have the right, in
addition to. its othér rights and remedies, to' seek and obtain injunctive relief for any
violation of this Agreement,

In the event of litigation relating to this. Agreement, if a- court of conipetent
Jutisdiction deterrnines in a final, non-appealable order that a Party has breachedthis
Agreement, then such Party shall be liable and pay to the rion-breaching party, the

reasonablé legal fees: that such non-breachirig party has incurred in connection. with
such litigation, including any appeal there from,

MEDIATION / ARBITRATION /DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Any and évery dispute, différence or question which .may arise bétween ‘the
Parties to. this Agreement shall be first settléd by the Parties by an attempt at
amicably settling the dispute through mutual negotiations.

In case the disputes, difference or questiors. cannot be so settled amicably or
satisfactorily by correspondence or by mutual discussion within thirty {30) days
after receipt by one Party of the Paity's. request for amicable settlement, it shall
be referred to mediation before a CEDR ‘accredited Mediator at the Karachi
Centre for Dispute Resolution (hereinafier referred to as the. "Centre™.
Mediation proceedings shall be held at Karachi and will be governed by the
mediation rules of the. Centre:

Vg



103 In case the Mediation fails, the dispute shall be referred to Arbitration in
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13.

accerdance with the Arbitration Act 1940 and any applicable rules made there

under for the time beéing in force, for the equitable decision of two joint.

arbitrators, one to be appointed by each of the Parties, and failing: agreenierit

between ‘the arbitrators, to the decision of the umpire, to. be appointed by-the

arbitrators before entering upon the reference. The award made by ‘such
arbitrafors or the umpite, as the case may be, shall be final and binding on_the
Parties. The veniue of the arbitration shall be Karachi and the arbitration
proceedings shall be conducted in English language.

GOVERNING LAW

Subject to Clause 10 above, this Agreement shall be governed by and ‘construed in
‘accordance ‘with the Iaws of Pakistan. In relation to. any legal action or proceedings.
arising out of or in connection with: this Agreement, each of the Parties irrevocably
submits to ¢ivil jurisdiction of the competent Courts of Karachi, Pakistan.-

MISCELLANEOQUS

This Agreement shall bind and' inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their
successors and assigns,

The Parties further acknowledge and agieé that:

a) any provision found to be invalid or unenforceable shall not-affect any other

provision in this Agreement;

b) this Agreemeént:must not be constrsed fo exclude the operation of any principle
of law or equity.once the Party undér consideration becomes aware of it (if not
aware already) which is intended to protect and preserve the confidentiality of
the shared Iriformation;

c¢) neither Party intends to_ ereate a partnership, agency or joint .yenture-under this_.
agreement and nothing herein shall be regarded or construed as creating gny of
thege relationships between the Partiés;

d) Subject; to the provision of this Agreement, both Parties agree to refrain from
taking any action_that would subject the other Party to liability ot penalty
under any and all laws, rules; regulations or decrees of any governmental
authority; '

) this Agreement shall be executed in two (2) tounterparts,.each. of which shall

be desmed to be an original;

f) this Agreement may oniy. be amended / modified in prior writing, and signed by
both Parties; and.

8) therecitals to this Agreement shall form an. integral part hereof.

THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

A pérson who is not 4 party o this Agreement has no right to enforce any term
of this Agreement.

4. WAIVER W



15.
15.1

15.2

16.

17.

18.

No waiver by either Party of any default by the other in the performance of any of
provisions of this Agreement shall be effective unless in prior writing duly executed by
an authorised representative of the Party and no such waiver shall operate or he
construed as a waiver of any .other or further whether of alike or of a different
character.

NOTICES

Any notice or other communication given under this Agreement must be in writing
and served on a Party at its address as specified in this Clause 15, (or any other address
it has notified to the other Party in accordance with this Clause 15) as follows: by
hand; by registered post; by courier; by fax which is automatically confirmed by the
sender’s fax machine to have been sent without error to the recipient's fax number; or
by other electronic method of communication agreed in writing from time to time
between the Parties.

Notices or communications sent by registered post will be deemed to have been
served on the date that such mail is delivered or delivery is attempted. Notices or
communications sent by fax will be deemed to have been served on the day of
transmission if transmitted before 4.00 pm in the time zone of receipt but otherwise
on the next day. In all other cases, notices and communications will be deemed to
have been served on the day when they are actually received.

Notices to the Company/SSGC will be sent to:

Attention: Managing Director,
Address: Head Office at ST-4/B, Block 14, Sir Shah Suleman
Road,. Gulshah-e-Igbai, Karachi Facsimile: 99231602-3

Notices to the Trafigura will be sent to:

Attention: CEO,
Address: Bahria Complex — 111,8® Floor, M.T Khan Road..
Karachi

ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement as well as any rights and obligations hereunder shall not be assigned
by any Party hereto, either in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the
other Party, and any attempt to do so without such consent shall be null and void and
of no effect, and shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Agreement.

SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or otherwise unenforceable,
the enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be impaired thereby. In
such case, the Parties shall, make every effort to replace the ineffective
provision with a new provision which has the same effect, or as approximate an
effect as possible as the said provision.

ENTIRETY

These terms and conditions constitute the entire agreement between the Parties
and supersede all prior communications, proposals, understandings and
agreements, written or oral between the Parties with respect.to the subject matter

of this Agreement:

b



IN WITNESS WHERE OF THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET
THEIR RESPECTIVE HANDS THE DAY AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE

WRITTEN

Sui Southern Gas Company Limited

By:  Amin Weftul” gl

Designation: Am)p ,%54¢
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SUI NORTHERN GAS PIPELINES LIMITED
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Ref: GMS: 938 (LNG) August 8, 2018

M Fadi Mitr,

Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd
2" Floor, Bahria Complex — 11,
M.T Khan Road,
KARACHI
MOU - SNGPL & TRAFIGURA PAK
Dear Sir,
Reference your letter dated 27.07.2018, regarding the subject cited above and further to our letter dated
29.06.2018 in this regard.

In this context, we wish to apprise that currently there is no available capacity on SNGPL’s network
since the capacity of 1200 MMCFD in RLNG II pipeline is already committed for transportation of
the same from the existing terminals.

It is pertinent to mention that Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division) has already allocated
around 4.2 BCFD pipeline capacities to different entities while indicating existing and upcoming
new pipelines with total carrying capacity of 3.6 BCFD. RLNG-1II pipeline of 1200 MMCFD
has been proposed to be laid by the Sui companies while another pipeline of 1200 MMCFD
capacity proposed to be laid on BOOT basis. Sui companies are evaluating commercial viability
of the proposed RLNG-III project and have also sought certain clarifications with respcct (o
capacity allocation from proposed 1200 MMCFD pipeline as well as firm commercial plan.
Response to which is still awaited.

Furthermore, as 2irlier communicated, Network Code, being an integral part of the TPA Rules, 2018
is yet to be approved by the Authority alongwith capacity allocation methodology.

In view of the above, SNGPL shall only be in a position to proceed further, once the TPA Rules along
with Network Code come into force and clarifications sought from the MoE are received.

Meanwhile, we assure you of our best corporation at all times.

Regards,
Yours faithfully,
SUI NORTHERN GAS PIPELINES LIMITED
oy ,.M//)W
QHAH!D MAQ
General Manage: (Sales)
Jor MANAGING DIRECTOR
Copy to:

e SPS te Secretary — MoE (Petroleam Division), Islamabad:
e Director Genera! (Gas) — MoE (Petroleum Division), Islamabad

—_—

Telephones Exch: {mmsfﬂm{ 042-99201055 Fax: 042-99201209 i www.sngpLcom,pk @ &




PGP Consortium Limited
Associated House, Seven Egerton Road, Lahore 54000
T: +92 42 3636.8844  F: +92 42 3636.8742 / Ihr@ag.com.pk

Our Ref. PGPC/OGRA/2018/1848
September 12, 2018

The Registrar,

Oil & Gas Regulatory Authori ty,
54-B, Fazal-e-Haq Road,
G-6/F-6, Blue Area,

Islamabad

Subject: Confirmation — Trafigura’s Capacity in PGPC Terminal

Dear Sir,

We hereby confirm that Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited (or any of its affiliates, including but
not necessarily limited to Trafigura Pte Ltd.) has been allocated 90 mmcfd capacity at our LNG
Terminal at Port Qasim, Karachi for the import of LNG and sale of RLNG in Pakistan.

Yours truly,
For PGP Consortium Limited,

A S TS

Fasih Ahmed
CEO

CC: CEO, Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd.
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TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Dated: September la 2017
TO oA
The Registrar
Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority — OGRA
54-B, Fazal-e-Haq Road, Blue Area,
Islamabad, Pakistan
Tel: +92-51-9244090-98

Subject: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF LICENSE FOR SALE OF NATURAL GAS / RLNG

Dear Sir,

I am responding to your letter no. OGRA-6(1)-NG/2018 dated July 04, 2018 regarding the
application for grant of license for sale of natural gas / RLNG. You have asked us for
complementary information on MOUs / non-disclosure agreement (NDA) between Trafigura
Pakistan Pvt Ltd (the Applicant) and SSGCL and SNGPL and a revised letter from Licensed
Terminal Operators. The table below provides you with an overview of our detailed
answers.

S.No | The Counterparty The Applicant
i SSGCL & SNGPL As advised by the authority, SSGC & SNGPL
were approached to enter into MOU /NDA.

The executed NDA with SSGC is attached as an
Annexure — A.

However, SNGPL has reverted with another
letter # GMS:938(LNG) dated August 8, 2018
(attached as an Annexure- B) that they may
only be approached, once the TPA rules along
with Network Code come into force.

In view of the above, it is submitted to the
Authority to kindly issue license for the sale
and marketing of RLNG for the customers on
S5GC as well as on SNGPL network. However,
the effectiveness of the same may be
considered subject to the provision of final
arrangements with the SUIs.

Kind considerations will also enable us to
serve those customers who already have such
arrangements with SNGPL.

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

WWW.TRARGURA.COM
UNIVERSAL 1D NUMBER: 0110562



Y
TRAFIGURA

'8 TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Further to the above, we are still approaching
SNGPL to initiate discussions on Gas
Transportation Agreements as soon as
possible and will keep authority updated on
any further progress on it.

Meanwhile, you are requested to please
proceed further with submitted NDA executed
between the applicant and SSGC.

ii. Licensed Terminal Operator | PGPCL’s letter is attached as an Annexure —C

Kindly let us know in case clarification is required on above.

In view of above, and in the spirit of enabling Trafigura to serve Pakistan as soon as possible,
it is requested that the grant of license to carry out sale and marketing of RLNG be issued on

a priority basis.

For and on behalf of
Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

T

Fadi
Chief Executive Officer

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

WWW.TRAFIGURA.COM
UNIVERSAL 1D NUMBER: 0110562
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BETWEEN
SUI SOUTHERN GAs COMPANY LIMITED
AND

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Dated: 16" August, 2018

W
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NON DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

THIS NON DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the "NDA") is
made and entered into on this 16™ day of August, 2018 at Karachi

BETWEEN

SUI SOUTHERN GAS COMPANY LIMITED, a Public Limited Company, incorporated
under the Companies Ordinance. 1984 and having its Registered Head Office at ST-4/B,
Block 14, Sir Shah Suleman Road, Gulshan-e-Igbal,. Karachi (hereinafter referred
to as "SSGC/Company” which expression shall include ijts successors in interest,
nominees; legal representatives, administrators and assigns) of the first part.

AND

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED a company duly incorporated and
existing under the laws of Pakistan under company number 010562, having its registered
office at 8th Floor, Bahria Complex - I, M.T Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan (hereinafter
referred to as the "Trafigura / Consulting party" which expression shall. wherever the
context so permits mean and include its successors-in interest, executors, nominees,
legal representatives and permitted assigns) of the second part;

Both the Company and the Consuiting party may hereinafier collectively be referred.
to as the "Parties” and individually as a "Party").

RECITALS
WHEREAS

A. The Parties are desirous of exchanging their Confidential. Information for the
purpose of entering into discussion for Gas Transportation Agreement for
re-gasified liquefied natural gas on SSGC network (hereinafter the
"Project”).

B. The Parties have agreed to share/exchange their Confidential Information. for
the purposes set out in Recital A on the terms and conditions of this
Agreement,

C. The Parties have agreed to protect the Confidential Information disclosed to
each other prior to or after the execution of this Agreement and. otherwise
agree to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement,

NOW, THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH, for good and valuable
consideration, it is hereby agreed between the Parties as under:

1. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
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1.2

2.1

"Confidential Information" Means any information disclosed by either
Party to the other party, either directly, indirectly or incidentally, in writing,
orally or by way of comment, advice, representation, perusal or by inspection of
tangible objects (including without limitation documents, manuals, software,
graphs, charts, processes, supplier lists, price lists, customer lists, product
information, market research information, correspondence, letters and papers of
every description including copies of and extracts from the same, concepts,
media statements, notes, reports, opinions, interpretations, forecasts, cost/benefit
analysis, records; prototypes; samples, plant and equipment), which is designated
or stated to be as "Confidential,". "Proprietary" or some similar designation or
where disclosed orally, is identified as Confidential at the time of such
disclosure. Confidential Information includes but is not limited to any
documentation, data, records, drawings, graphs, formulae, samples, electronic
data and any other means by which the Confidential Information may be stored
or reproduced.

Confidential Information shall not, however, include any information which:

0] was or becomes publicly known and made or to be made generally
available in the public domain, to the receiving party;

(ii) becomes publicly known and made generally available after
disclosure by the disclosing party to the receiving party through no
action or inaction of the receiving party;

(iii)  is already in the possession of the receiving party at thetime of
disclosure by the disclosing party immediately prior to the time of
disclosure;

(iv)  is obtained by the receiving party from a. third party provide that such
third party is not known to the receiving party to be bound by

obligations of confidentiality;

w) is independently developed by the receiving party without use of or
reference to the disclosing party's Confidential Information, as shown
by documents and other competent evidence in the receiving party
possession.

Confidential Information shall be disclosed when it is required by
applicable law, regulation, legal process or stock exchange rules or
regulations (whether through oral question, interrogatories, requests for
information or documents, subpoena, civil investigative demand or other
similar process or through press release or other public disclosure); to be
disclosed by the receiving party, provided that the receiving party where
practicable gives the disclosing party prompt written notice of such
requirement prior to such disclosure and reasonable assistance in
obtaining an order protecting the information from public disclosure.

NON-USE AND NON-DISCLOSURE

Each Party agrees not to use any Confidential Information of the other
Party for any purpose except to .evaluate and engage in discussions
concerning a potential business relationship between the Parties

w34



2.2 Each Party agrees not to disclose any Confidential Information of the other

3:"
31

32

3.3

Party to third parties or to such party's employees, except to those employees
of the Party who are réquired to have the: information, in arder 16 evaluate the
Project or engage in discussions concérning the, contemplated businéss
relationship. Neither Party shall reverse engineer, disassemble or decompile
any prototypes, software or other-tangible objects which embody ‘the other
Party's Confidential Information and which are: provided to the. Party
héreunder:

MAINTENANCE OF CONFIDENTIALITY
Each Party agrees that it shall make reasonable efforts to take bona fide measures. tg

protect the secrecy of and avoid disclosure and. unsuthorized use of ‘the
Confidential Information of the other Party, Save as considered appropriate for.the
purposé of Project evaluation, neither Party shall make any copies of the
Canfidential Infqrmati_on of the other Party or make or Aassist any person fo make-any
unauthorized use of the samie unless the same: is previously approved in.-wrifing
by the other Party. Each Paity shall reprodiice thé other Paity's propiietary rights
notices pn any 'such appraved copies, in the same mariner in which such
notices were set forth in or on the -original.

The Parties agree to take reaspnable measures so as not to permit urizuthorized persons
to have access 16 places whiere the:other Party's Confidential Information is displayed,
reproduced or stored.

The Parties dgree to cooperate and provide: the -other Party with all. reasonable
assistance: in.any.action which the cther Party may take-to protect the confidentiality
of the Confidential Information against persons who are. subject to the confidentiality
obligations imposed by this Agreement or have executed confidentiality -agreement
further to erin connection with this Agreement.

NO OBLIGATION

Nothing herein shall -obligate either Party to proceed. with any transaction between
them, and each reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to terminate the
discussions contemplated by this. Agreénient at any time conceming. the business
opportunity by providing a two {2) days; prior written notjce. to this effect to the
other Party.

NO WARRANTY

All Confidential Information under this Agreement shall be provided as arid when
-available. Each Party makes no representations, warranties, express,. implied or
otherwise, regarding ‘its accuracy, reliability, completeness or'performance exéept that
such information has been disclosed in good: faith. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the
receiving party agrees that none of the disclosing: party or any of its representatives,
shall have-any liability to the receiving party orany of its representatives-unless the
disclosing party, or its representatives, knowingly pass information which is incorrect,
incomplete, misleading, erroricous, or inaccurate, in any way, shape or form, in which
case the disclosing party and its representatives shall be fully liable towards the
receiving patty and its representatives: for.any direct and consequential losses.

RETURN OF MATERIALS W
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6.1

6.2

9.2

10,

10.1

10.2

All documents.and all other- tangible- objects containing of representing Confidential
Information which have been.disclosed by either Party o the other Paity, and all copies
thereof which are in the possession. of the other Party shall be and remain the property
of the disclosing party and shall be promptly: returned -within ten {10) days to the
disclosing party upon thé disclosing party's prior written request.

Documents and récords either Party is required fo keep in compliance with internal and
external audit requirements as well. as for regulatoty -and ‘reporting puipdses are
specifically exeluded from the general obligation to return the documents-and othet
tangible objects refefred to in this paragraph.

NO LICENSE

Nothing in this Agreement. is- intended to graft, gither expressly or by implication,
eStoppels or otherwisé, any rights or license to cither Party under any patent, trade
“seoret, invention, trademark, copyright, or athet intellectual property right of the other
Party, nor shall this. Agreement grant any Party any righis in.or to the Confidential
Information of the other Party except as expressly set forth herein.

TERM

Subject to the provisions of Clause 4 above, this Agreement is valid for one (1) year
from. the date of its execution, after which it may be renewed upon the same terms and
conditions, subject to a fresh execution of the Agreement,

REMEDIES

The receiving party acknowledges that disclosure or use of Confidential Information in
violation of this Agre€ment could cause ifreparable harm to the disclosing party for
which monetary dariiages may be difficult to ascertain. or be an inadequate remedy.
The receiving party, therefore, agrees that the disclosing, party shall have the right, in
addition to its othér rights and remedies, to-seek and obtain injunictive relief for any
violation of this Agreement.

In the event of litigation relating to this Agreement, ‘if a court of conipetent
Jurisdiction determines in a final, hon-appealable order that a Party has breachedthis
Agreement, then such Party shall be liable and pay to the rion-breaching party,  the
reasonable legal fees that such non-breachirig party has incurred in connection. with
‘sach litigation, including any appeal there from.

MEDIATION / ARBITRATION /DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Any énd every dispute, différence or question which may arise between ‘the
Parties to, this Agreement shall be first settléd by the Parties by an -attempt at
amicably settling the dispute through mutual negotiations.

In case the disputes, difference or questions: cannot be so settled amicably or
satisfactorily by corresponidence or by mutual discussion within thirty {(30) days
after receipt by one Party of the Paity's request for amicable settlement, it shall
be referred to mediation before a CEDR accredited Mediator at the Karachi
Centre for Dispute Resolution (hereinafier referred to as the. "Centre™).
Mediation proceedings shall be held at Karachi and will be governed by the
mediation rules of the.Centre: 4

“3b
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11.

a)

In case the Mediation fails, the dispute shall be referred to Arbitration in
accordance with the Arbitration Act 1940 and any applicable rules made thére
under for the timeé béing in force, for the equitable decision of two joint.
arbitratars, one-to be appointed by each of the Parties, and failing: agreemerit
between ‘the arbitrators, to the decision of the: umpire, to. be appointed by-the.
arbitrators before entering upon the reférence. The award made by ‘such
arbitrafors or the umpire, as the case may be, shall be final and binding on. the
Parties. The veriue of the arbitration shall be Karachi and the arbitration
proceedings shall be conducted in English language.

GOVERNING LAW
Subject to Clause 10 above, this Agreement shall be ‘governed by and construed in

‘accordance ‘with the Iaws of Pakistan. In relation to. any legal action or proceedings.

arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, each of the Parties irrevocably
submits to civil jutisdiction of the competent Courts of Karachi, Pakistan.-

MISCELLANEOQUS

This Agreement, shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their
successors and assigns.

The Parti¢s further acknowledge and agree that:

any: provision found to be.invalid or unenforceable shall not-affect any other
provision in this Agreenient;

b) this Agreemerit must not be constrited fo exclude the Qperation :of any principle

of Jaw or equity.once the Party under consideration becomes aware of it (if not
aware already) which is intended to protect and preserve the confidentiality of
the shared Iriformation;

¢) neither Party intends to_ereate a partnershi p..agency or joint .venture under this.

d)

e)

agreement and nothing herein shall be regarded or construed as creating any of
these relationships between the Partiés;

Suhject, to tHe provision of this Agreement, both Parties agree to refrain from
taking any action_ that would subject the other Party to liability or penalty
under any and all laws, rules; regulations or decrees of any governmental
authority: '

this Agreement shall be executed in two (2) vounterparts,.each. of which shall
be deemed to be an original;

f) this Agreement may only be amended / modified in prior writing, and signed by

both Parties; and.

8) the-recitals to this Agreement shall form an. integral part hereof.

13.

4.

THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

A pérson who is not & party fo this Agreement has no right fo enforce any term
of this Agreeiment.

WAIVER W



15.

15.1

15.2

16.

17,

18.

No waiver by either Party of any default by the other in the performance of any of
provisions of this Agreement shall be effective unless in prior writing duly executed by
an authorised representative of the Party and no such waiver shall operate or he
construed as a waiver of any .other or further whether of alike or of a different
character.

NOTICES

Any notice or other communication given under this Agreement must be in writing
and served on a Party at its address as specified in this Clause 15, (or any other address
it has notified to the other Party in accordance with this Clause 15) as follows: by
hand; by registered post; by courier; by fax which is automatically confirmed by the
sender’s fax machine to have been sent without error to the recipient's fax number; or
by other electronic method of communication agreed in writing from time to time
between the Parties.

Notices or communications sent by registered post will be deemed to have been
served on the date that such mail is delivered or delivery is attempted. Notices or
communications sent by fax will be deemed to have been served on the day of
transmission if transmitted before 4.00 pm in the time zone of receipt but otherwise
on the next day. In all other cases, notices and communications will be deemed to
have been served on the day when they are actually received.

Notices to the Company/SSGC will be sent to:

Attention: Managing Director,
Address: Head Office at ST-4/B, Block 14, Sir Shah Suleman
Road,. Gulshah-e-Igbai, Karachi Facsimile: 99231602-3

Notices to the Trafigura will be sent to:

Attention: CEO,
Address: Bahria Complex — 111,8™ Floor, M.T Khan Road..
Karachi

ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement as well as any rights and obligations hereunder shall not be assigned
by any Party hereto, either in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the
other Party, and any attempt to do so without such consent shall be null and void and
of no effect, and shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Agreement.

SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or otherwise unenforceable,
the enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be impaired thereby. In
such case, the Parties shall, make every effort to replace the ineffective
provision with a new provision which has the same effect, or as approximate an
effect as possible as the said provision.

ENTIRETY

These terms and conditions constitute the entire agreement between the Parties
and supersede all prior communications, proposals, understandings and
agreements, written or oral between the Parties with respect.to the subject matter

of this Agreement:

Wi
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IN WITNESS WHERE OF THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET
THEIR RESPECTIVE HANDS THE DAY AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE

WRITTEN

Sui Southern Gas Company Limited
By: Amin B )
Designation: Ap , $54¢

wumséw 7 WITNESSES
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Ref: GMS: 938 (LNG) August 8, 2018
M. Fadi Mitri,
Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd
8" Floor, Bahria Complex — IiI,
M.T Khan Road,
KARACHI
MOU - SNGPL & TRAFIGURA PAK
Dear Sir,
Reference your letter dated 27.07.2018, regarding the subject cited above and further to our letter dated
29.06.2018 in this regard.

In this context, we wish to apprise that currently there is no available capacity on SNGPL’s network
since the capacity of 1200 MMCFD in RLNG II pipeline is already committed for transportation of
the same from the existing terminals.

It is pertinent to mention that Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division) has already allocated
around 4.2 BCFD pipeline capacities to different entities while indicating existing and upcoming
new pipelines with total carrying capacity of 3.6 BCFD. RLNG-III pipeline of 1200 MMCFD
has been proposed to be laid by the Sui companies while another pipeline of 1200 MMCFD
capacity proposed to be laid on BOOT basis. Sui companies are evaluating commercial viability
of the proposed RLNG-III project and have also sought certain clarifications with respect o
capacity allocation from proposed 1200 MMCFED pipeline as well as firm commercial plan.
Response to which is still awaited.

Furthermore, as zarlier communicated, Network Code, being an integral part of the TPA Rules, 2018
is yet to be approved by the Authority alongwith capacity allocation methodology.

In view of the above, SNGPL shall only be in a position to proceed further, once the TPA Rules along
with Network Code come into force and clarifications sought from the MoE are recejved.

Meanwhile, we assure you of our best corporation at all times.

Regards,
Yours faithfully,
SUI NORTHERN GAS PIPELINES LIMITED
i nc'-fd/. A . 4
SHAHTD MAQSUD
General Manager (Sales)
Jor MANAGING DIRECTOR
Copy to:

e  SPS (o Secretary - MoE (Petroleum Division), Islamabad:
®  Director General (Gas) — MoE (Petroleum Division), Islamabad

-

Telephones Exch: {’mmm'lm{ 042-98201055 Fax: 042-99201209

ONSAS 19001 100 fevet
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PGP Consortium Limited
Associated House, Seven Egerton Road, Lahors 54000
T: +92 42 3636.8844 / F: +92 42 3636.8742 / Ihr@ag.com.pk

Our Ref. PGPC/OGRA/2018/1848
September 12, 2018

The Registrar,

Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority,
54-B, Fazal-e-Haq Road,
G-6/F-6, Blue Area,

Islamabad

Subject: Confirmation — Trafigura’s Capacity in PGPC Terminal
Dear Sir,

We hereby confirm that Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited (or any of its affiliates, including but
not necessarily limited to Trafigura Pte Ltd.) has been allocated 90 mmcfd capacity at our LNG
Terminal at Port Qasim, Karachi for the import of LNG and sale of RLNG in Pakistan.

Yours truly,
For PGP Consortium Limited,

£ LA TSI

Fasih Ahmed
CEO

CC: CEO, Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd.
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TRAFIGURA

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

Dated: September 13, 2017
TO A
The Registrar
Oil & Gas Regulatory Authority — OGRA
54-B, Fazal-e-Haq Road, Blue Area,
Islamabad, Pakistan -
Tel: +92-51-9244090-98

Subject: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF LICENSE FOR SALE OF NATURAL GAS / RLNG

Dear Sir,

I 'am responding to your letter no. OGRA-6(1)-NG/2018 dated July 04, 2018 regarding the
application for grant of license for sale of natural gas / RLNG. You have asked us for
complementary information on MOUs / non-disclosure agreement (NDA) between Trafigura
Pakistan Pvt Ltd (the Applicant) and SSGCL and SNGPL and a revised letter from Licensed
Terminal Operators. The table below provides you with an overview of our detailed
answers. .

S. No | The Counterparty The Applicant
i SSGCL & SNGPL As advised by the authority, SSGC & SNGPL
were approached to enter into MOU /NDA.

The executed NDA with SSGC is attached as an
Annexure — A.

However, SNGPL has reverted with another
letter # GMS:938(LNG) dated August 8, 2018 |
(attached as an Annexure- B) that they may '
only be approached, once the TPA rules along
with Network Code come into force.

In view of the above, it is submitted to the
Authority to kindly issue license for the sale
and markétjng of RLNG for the customers on
SSGC as well as on SNGPL network. However,
the effectiveness of the same may be
considered subject to the provision of final
arrange_rr_)‘ent}s with the SUls.

Kind considerations will also enable us to
serve those customers who already have such
arrangements with SNGPL.

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

WWW.TRAFIGURA.COM - -
UNIVERSAL JD NUMBER: 0110562



TRAFIGURA | vl

Ve TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED ,
( Further to the above, we are still approachidg
SNGPL to initiate discussions on Gas
Transportation Agreements as soon as
possible and will keep authority updated on
any further progress on it.

Meanwhile, you are requested to please
proceed further with submitted NDA executed
between the applicant and SSGC. '

ii. Licensed Terminal Operator | PGPCL's letter is—éttaéh‘ed'as:an Annexure —C

Kindly let us know in case clarification is required on above.

In view of above, and in the spirit of enabling Trafigura to serve Pakistan as soon as possible,
it is requested that the grant of license to carry out sale and marketing of RLNG be issued o
a priority basis. , |

For and on behalf of
Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

WWW.TRAFIGURA.COM
UNIVERSAL ID NUMBER: 0110562
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iz i a9 NON DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN
SUI SOUTHERN GAS COMPANY LIMITED
AND

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

' Dated: 16™ August, 2018




NON DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

THIS NON DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the “NDA") is
made and entered into on this 16™ day of August, 2018 at Karachi

BETWEEN

SUI SOUTHERN GAS COMPANY LIMITED, a Public Limited Company, incorporat:ji
under the Companies Ordinance. 1984 and having its Registered Head Office at ST-4/B,
Block 14, Sir Shah Suleman Road, Gulshan-e-Igbal,. Karachi (hereinafier refe‘rred
to as "SSGC/Company” which expression shall include its successors in interest,
nominees; legal representatives, administrators and assigns) of the first part. ' "

AND

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED a company duly incorporated and
existing under the laws of Pakistan under company number 010562, having its registered
office at 8th Floor, Bahria Complex - III, M.T Khan Road, Karachi, Pakistan (hereinafter
referred to as the "Trafigura / Consulting party" which expression shall. wherever the
context so permits mean and include its successors-in interest, executors, nominees,
legal representatives and permitted assigns) of the second part;

Both the Company and the Consulting party may hereinafter collectively be referred.
10 as the "Parties" and individually as a "Party™).

RECITALS
WHEREAS ‘ ' !

A. The Parties are desirous of exchanging their Confidential. Information for the
purpose of entering into discussion for Gas Transportation Agreement for

re-gasified liquefied natural gas on SSGC network (herecinafter the
"Project”).

B. The Parties have agreed to share/exchange their Confidential Information. for
the purposes set out in Recital A on the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. - M

C. The Parties have agreed to protect the .Conﬁdential_ Information disclosed to
each other prior to or after the execution of this Agreement and. otherwise
agree to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH, for good and valuable
consideration, it is hereby agreed between the Parties as u_r_1der:

L CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION



1.1

12

2.1

e

"Confidential Information" Means any information disclosed by either
Party to the other party, either directly, indirectly or incidentally, in writing,
orally or by way of comment, advice, representation, perusal or by inspection of
tangible objects (including without limitation documents, manuals, software,
graphs, charts, processes, supplier lists, price lists, customer lists, product
information, market research information, correspondence, letters and papers of
every description including copies of and extracts from the same, concepts,
media statements, notes, reports, opinions, interpretations, forecasts, cost/benefit
analysis, records; prototypes; samples, plant and equipment), which is designated
or stated to be as "Confidential,". "Proprietary" or some similar designation or
where disclosed orally, is identified as Confidential at the time of such
disclosure. Confidential Information includes but is’ not’ limited to ‘any
documentation, data, records, drawings, graphs, formulae, samples, electronic
data and any other means by which the Confidential Information may be stored
or reproduced. : ' S LT o

Confidential Information shall not, however, include any information which:

(i) was or becomes publicly known and made or to be made general{y
available in the public domain, to the receiving party; !

(i) becomes publicly known and made generally available after
disclosure by the disclosing party to the receiving party through no
action or inaction of the receiving party;

(ili) is already in the possession of the r'ecei\;ing party at thetime of
disclosure by the disclosing party immediately prior to the time of
disclosure;

(iv) s obtained by the receiving party from a. third'party provide that such
third party is not known to the receiving party to be bound by
obligations of confidentiality, ' "~ S B

(v)  is independently developed by the teqe'i\'r'ing party without use of or

. reference to the disclosing party's Confidential  Information, as shown
by documents and other competent evidence in,the receiving party
possession. '

Confidential Information shall be disclosed when it is required by
applicable law, regulation, legal process or stock exchange rules ior
regulations (whether through oral question, interrogatories, requests for
information or documents, subpoena, civil investigative demand or other
similar process or through press release or other public disclosure); to be
disclosed by the receiving party, provided that the receiving party where
practicable gives the disclosing party prompt written notice of such
requirement prior to such disclosure and reasonable assistance in
obtaining an order protecting the information fro;q: public disclosure.

NON-USE AND NON-DISCLOSURE

Each Party agrees not to use any Confidential Ip_formation of the other
Party for any purpose except to .evaluate and engage in discussions
concerning a potential business relationship between the Parties



2.2 Each Party agrées not to disclose any Confidential Information of the ofher

32

33

Party to third parties or to such party's employees, except to those el_:nplqye?s

of the Party who are required to have the: information in order t& evaluate the

v

Project or engage in discussions concémiing the, contemplated businéss

relationship. Neithei Party shadll reverse engineer, disassemble or decompile
any prototypes, software or other tangible objects which embody the other

Party's Confidential Information and which are provided to the. Party
héreunder:

MAINTENANCE OF CONFIDENTIALITY

Each Party agrees that it shall make reasonable efforts o take bona fide measures. to
protect thé secrecy of and avoid disclosure and. wmauthorized ‘use of ‘the
Confidential Information of the other Party. Save as considered appropriate fof.the
purposé of Project evaluation, neither Party shall make. any. copies of the
Canfidential Information of the other Party or make or assist ariy person fo make. any
unauthorized use of the 'same unless the.sanre: is previously .approved in wrifing
by the. other Party. Each Paity shall reprodiice thé other Paity's proptietary rights
notices on ahy 'such approved copies, in the same mariner in which such
notices were set forth in or on the original.

The Parties agree to take reaspnable measures so as not to permit unriauthorized perscns

to have access 16 places whiere the:other Party's Confidential Information is displayeF,.
reproduced or stored. |

The Parties agree to cooperate and provide the other Parly with all reasonable
assistance:in any.action which the other Paty may taketo protect the confidentiality

of the Confidential Information against persons wha are subject fo the confidentiality
obligations imposed by this Agreement.or have executed confidentiality -agreement

further to orin connection with this Agreement.
NO OBLIGATION

Nothing herein shall ‘obligate either Party to proéeed with any transaction between
them, and. each reserves the right, in'its sole discretion, to terminate the
discussions contemplated by this- Agreéiment &t any' time: concerning: the. ‘business
opportunity by providing.a two (2) days; prior written notjce. to this efféct to the
Othﬂl'paﬁy. - 5 el HE r nom

c b ' ol

NO WARRANTY

All' Confidential Information under this Agreement shall be proyided as and when
available. Each Party makes no representations, warrantics, express, implied or
otherwise, regarding ‘its accuracy, reliability, completeness or performance except that
such infoimation has beeh disclosed in good: faith. Notwithstanding the forgoing, tlhe-
receiving party agrees that none of the disclosing: party or any. of its representatives.
shall have-any liability to thé rectiving party or-any of its representatives-unless the
disclosing party, or its representatives, knowingly pass information which is incorrect,
incomplete, misleading, errorieous, or inaccurate, in any way, shape or form, in which
case the .disclosing party and its representatives shall be, fully liable towards the
receiving patty and its representatives-for.any direct and consequential losses.

RETURN OF MATERIALS- N
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9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

All documents.and ll other tangiblé- objects containing ot representing Confidential
Information which have been disolosed by either Party to the other Paity, and all copies
thereof which are in the possession.of the other Party shall be and remain the propeity
of the disclosing party and shall be promptly: returned -within ten (10) days to the
disclosing party upon the disclosing:party’s prior written request.

Doctiments and records eithet Party is required fo keep in compliance with internal and
external audit requirements as well as for regulatory -and -reporting putpdses a.

specifically excluded from the general obligation to. return the documenits-and othet
tangible objects refefred to in this paragraph. :

NO LICENSE

Nothing in this Agreement. is intended to granit, ither expressly or by implication,
estoppels or otherwise, any rights or license to either. Party under any patent, trade
‘secret, invention, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right of the other
Party, nor shill this. Agreement grant any Party any rights in or to the Confidential
Information of the other Party €xcept ds expressly set forth herein.

TERM

Subject to the provisions of Clause 4 above, this Agréement is valid for one (1) year
from the date of its execution, after which jt may be renewed upon the same terms and
conditions, subject to a fresh execution of the Agreement, ‘

REMEDIES

The receiving party acknowledges that disclosure or use 'of Confidential Informatien ii
violation of this Agrement could cause ifreparable harm te the disclosing party foE
which monetary dariiages may be difficult to ascertain. or be an inadequate remedy.
The receiving party, therefore, agrees that the-disclosing party shall have the right, in
addition 1o its otheér rights and remedies, to- seek and obtain injunctive relief for any
violation of this Agreement.

In the event of litigation relating to this Agreement, if a. court of comipetent
juiisdiction deterrnines in a final, non-appealableorder that a Party has breached this
Agreement, then such Party shall be liable and pay to the fon-breaching party,  the
reasoniablé degal fees that such non-breachirig party has incurred in connection with
such litigation, includihg any appeal there from, -~ ' -

MEDIATION / ARBITRATION /DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Any énd évery dispute, différence or question which may ‘arise bétween the
Parties to. this Agreement shall be first settled by the Parties by an attempt at
amicably settling the dispute through mutual negotiations.

In case the disputes, difference or questioris cannot be 5o settled amicably or
satisfactorily by corresporidence or by mutual discussion within thirty {30) days
after receipt by one Party of the Paity's request for amicable settlement, it shall
be teferred to mediation before a CEDR acéredited Mediator at the Karachi
Centre for Dispute Resolution (hereinafier ‘referred to as the "Centre").
Mediation proceedings shall be held at Karachi .and will be govemed by the
miediation rules of the Centre: i :
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12.

In case the Mediation fails, the dispute shall be referred to Arbitration in
accordance with the Arbitration Act 1940 and any applicable rules made there
under for the timé being in force, for the -equitable decision of two joint.
arbitratars, one te be appointed by each of the Parties, and failing: agreemeérit
between the arbitrators, to the decision of the umpire, to. be appointed by-the.
arbitrators before entermg upon the reférence. The award made by such
aibitrators 6r the umpite, as the case may be, shall be final and binding on. the
Parties. The venue of the arbitration shall be Karachi and the arbitration
proceedings shall be conducted in English language.

GOVERN]NG LAW

Subject to Clause 10 above, this Agreement-shall be govemed by and construed in
-accordance ‘with the Jaws of Pakistan. In relation to. any legal action or proceed' ngs.
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, cach of the Parties mvocabl{
submits to civil jurisdiction of the competent Courts of Karachi, Pakistan.- |

MISCELLANEQUS

This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their
successors and assigns. ,

]
The Parties further acknowledge and agree that: v

[y

a) any. prowsxon found to be.invalid or unenforceable shall not affect any other

provision in this Agreerient;

b) this Agreemeérit must not be constriled fo exclude the operatlon of any prmclple

of law or equity.once the Party undér consideration becomes aware of it (if not
aware already) which is intended to protect and preserve the confidentiality of
the shared Iriformation;

¢) neither Party intends to.create a partnership, agency or joint .venture-untler this.

agreement and nothing herein shall be regarded or censtrued as creating any of
these relationships between the Partiés; -

d) Subject; to the provision of this Agreement, both Parties agree to refrain from

‘taking any action_that would subject the other Party fo liability or penalty
urider any and all laws, rules; regulations or decrees of any governmental
authority;

-e) this Agreement shall be executed in two'(2) vounterpatts,.each. of which shall

be deemed to be an original;

f) this Agreement may only be amended / modified in prior writing, and signed by

both Parties; and,

g) therecitals to this. Agreement shall form an. integral part hereof.

13.

4.

THIRD PARTY RIGHTS | -

A pérson who is not a party o this Agreement has no right to enforce any term
of this Agreement.
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16.

17.

18.

|

No waiver by either Party of any default by the other in the performance of any of

provisions of this Agreement shall be effective unless in prior writing duly executed by
an authorised representative of the Party and no such waiver shall operate or he
construed as a waiver of any .other or further whether of alike or of a different
character.

NOTICES

Any notice or other communication given under this Agreement must be in writing
and served on a Party at its address as specified in this Clause 15, (or any other address
it has notified to the other Party in accordance with this Clause 15) as follows: by
hand; by registered post; by courier; by fax which is automatically confirmed by the
sender's fax machine to have been sent without error to the recipient's fax number; or
by other electronic method of communication agreed in writing from time to time
between the Parties.

Notices or communications sent by registered post will be deemed to have been
served on the date that such mail is delivered or delivery is attempted. Notices or
communications sent by fax will be deemed to have been served on the day of
transmission if transmitted before 4.00 pm in the time zone of receipt but otherwise |
on the next day. In all other cases, notices and communications will be deemed to
have been served on the day when they are actually received.

Notices to the Company/SSGC will be sent to:

Attention: Managing Director,
Address: Head Office at ST-4/B, Block 14, Sir Shah Suleman
Road,. Gulshah-e-lgbai, Karachi Facsimile: 99231602-3

Notices to the Trafigura will be sent to: | -

Attention: CEO, : g
Address: Bahria Complex — 11,8 Floor, M.T Khan Road..
Karachi . :

ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement as well as any rights and obligations hereunder shall not be assigned
by any Party hereto, either in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the
other Party, and any attempt to do so without such consent shall be null and void and
of no effect, and shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Agreement. ’

SEVERABILITY

If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or otherwise unenforceable,
the enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be impaired thereby. In
such case, the Parties shall, make every effort to replace the ineffective
provision with a new provision which has the same effect, or as approximate an
effect as possible as the said provision. : h

ENTIRETY
These terms and conditions constitute the entire agreement between the Parties

and supersede all prior communications, proposals, understandings and
agreements, written or oral between the Parties with rezpect.to the subject matter

of this' Agreement:
\@\

i



IN WITNESS WHERE OF THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET
THEIR RESPECTIVE HANDS THE DAY AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE

WRITTEN

Sui Southern Gas Company Limited

By:  pmin Kefful™ ;’M&;

Designation: Pmp ,%4(/

WlTNEISSmw

e

TUMAR A

--------------------------------
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SUI NORTHERN GAS PIPELINES LIMITED

Ref: GMS: 938 (LNG) Aungust 8, 2018

Mt Fadi Mitri,

Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt) Lid
8™ Floor, Bahria Complex - 111,
M.T Khan Road,

KARACHI i

MOU — SNGPL & TRAFIGURA PAK

Dear Sir,

Reference your letter dated 27.07.2018, regarding the subject cited above and further to our Ietter dated
29.06.2018 in this regard. -

In this context, we wish to apprise that currently there is no available capacity on SNGPL’s network
since the capacity of 1200 MMCFD in RLNG 11 pipeline is already committed for transportation of
the same from the existing terminals.

It is pertinent to mention that Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division) has already allocated
around 4.2 BCFD pipeline capacities to different entities while indicating existing and upcoming
new pipelines with total carrying capacity of 3.6 BCFD. RLNG-III pipeline of 1200 MMCFD
has been proposed to be laid by the Sui companies while another pipeline of 1200 MMCFD
capacity proposed to be laid on BOOT basis. Sui companies are evaluating commercial viability
of the proposed RLNG-III project and have also sought certain clarifications with respect to
capacity allocation from proposed 1200 MMCFD pipeline as well as firm commercial plan.
Response to which is still awaited.

Furthermore, as 2arlier communicated, Network Code, being an integral part of the TPA Rules, 20 l 3
is yet to be approved by the Authority alongwith capacity allocation methodology.

In view of the above, SNGPL shall only be in a position to proceed further, once the TPA Rules along
with Network Code come into force and clarifications sought from the MoE are received.

{
Meanwhile, we assure you of our best corporation at all times.

Regards, b o
. Yours faithfully, .
SUI NORTHERN GAS PIPELINES LIMITED
wutf / H"” e f
_ enAmD MAqsﬁD
General Manager (Sales)
for MANAGING DIRECTOR
Copy to} :

»  SPS to Secretary — MoE (Petroleum Division), Islamabad:
¢ Director General (Gas) — MoE (Petroleum Division), Islamabad

— e : —

Tolephones Exch: { :::::2::::::: 1Tnloplumn.:{ 042-99201055 Fax: 042-99201209 i www.sngpl.com.pk. @ y
i ! - o
L

OWSAR 19901 150 14801




PGP Consortium Limited
Associated House, Seven Egerton Road, Lahore 54000
T: +92 42 3636.8844 [ F: +92 42 3636.8742 / Ir@ag.com.pk

Our Ref. PGPC/OGRA/2018/1848
September 12, 2018

The Registrar, i |
0il & Gas Regulatory Authority, S |
54-B, Fazal-e-Haq Road,

G-6/F-6, Blue Area,

Islamabad

Subject: Confirmation — Trafigura’s Capacity in PGPC Terminal
Dear Sir,

We hereby confirm that Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt.) Liniité'd (or any of its affiliates, including but
not necessarily limited to Trafigura Pte Ltd.) has been allocated 90 mumcfd capacity at our LNG
Terminal at Port Qasim, Karachi for the import of LNG and sale of RLNG in Pakistan.

Yours truly,
For PGP Consortium Limited,
PR A e LY S e e

Fasih Ahmed '
CEO

CC: CEO, Trafigura Pakistan (Pvt.) Ltd.



Oil & Gas
Regulatory Authority

No. OGRA 9 (477)/2018
2" August 2018

CEO,
PGPCL,
Associated House, Seven Egerton Road,

LAHORE

Subject: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION

LICENSE
= -~
) - g <eS
Dear Sir, - f Se

o

Please refer to OGRA'’s letter of even No. dated 26-06-2018 (copy attached) on the

above subject and subsequent meeting held at OGRA on 02-07-2018. Your reply in the

matter is still awaited which may be expedited and revised application for grant of license
may accordingly be submitted.

2. Furthermore, it is advised to ensure that capacity allocation is to be done by PGPCL

being OGRA'’s licensed terminal operator, as decided in the above referred meeting please.

Yours faithfplly,

Q W\
C (Abdil Basit Qureghi)

Registrar
for and on behalf of the Authority

54-B, Fazlul Hag Road, Blue Ares, Islamabad. PABX: +92 51 9244090-98, Fax: +92 519244310

+92 51 9244310: puS3 +92 51 9244090-98:055 sLilpdMcal by lgraly 35 53>l Jind 54-B
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L
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Oil & Gas
Regulatory Authority

o

(Office of egistrar)

hkdkdkdk

October 23, 2018

INTER OFFICE MEMO
ED (Gas)qg

L)
JED (F-1) S S\

From: Registrar, OGRA

To:

Subject: TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN LIMITED - APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF
LICENCE FOR SALE OF RLNG

Please refer to the subject matter.

2. As proposed by Gas and Finance Deptts. and to discuss the deficiencies
indicated by the both Deptts, a meeting of the concerned Deptts. on the subject
matter is being convened today i.e. October 23, 2018 at 03:.00 p.m. in OGRA’s
Member (Gas) Office, in order to discuss/finalize the subject issue.

4. HoDs alongwith concerned officers are requested to attend the same, please.

g
(Abd Ba\itQ reshi)

For information only:

o W — ¢
DED to Chairperson ()«‘4\1\\?6\

z25-10-'8

ES to Member (Finance) -

ES to Member (Oil)_~ \
onw ')-5\\0\

7 exi O P
¢ S R

_ A/;\e/ﬁ{ e . 071'7&)6“30/%//3’
pt & a2
M(/J(LU; JJED (F>/’t€f0}k -
/é o - 71/\‘7 Y/ éuém/’
V2 tee N T
T gt sl y, =
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11/1/2048 Axigen WebMail - Print Emails

. ‘ ;,{s-%,_
“Urgent & Important got

Wed, 10/31/2018 03:01 PM

From: [Ameer Ali <Ameer.Ali@trafigura.com=>]
To: ["registrar@ogra.org.pk" <registrar@ogra.org.pk>]
Attachments: [OGRA 31102018-v1.pdf 665.9 KB]

Dear Sir,

As discussed on last Monday, attached please find the required additional info for your kind considerations.
You kind facilitation will be highly appreciated.

FYI: Original docs is already dispatched @ your office address.

¢

Ameer Ali

General Manager for LNG

Direct: +971 4 425 2122 (UAE)

Mobile: +92 3345171223 (PAKISTAN) \‘.\

Extn: 25601
E-mail: ameer.ali@trafigura.com

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN {PRIVATE) LIMITED
8th Fioor, Bahria Complex - Ill, M. T Khan Roa
P.0.Box 74400, Karachi, Pakistan

www.trafigura.com

Regards

Ameer Ali
Business Development — LNG Pakistan
Ext: 25601

This email and any attachments are confidential and access tc this email or attachment by anyone other than the addressee is unauthorised. If you
are not the intended recipient please notify the sender and permanently delete the email including any attachments, You must not copy, disclose or
distribute any of the contents to any other person. Personal views or opinions are solely those of the author and not of Trafigura Group Pte Ltd or its
affiliates (the “Group”). The Group does not guarantee that the integrity of this communication has been maintained nor that the communication is
free of viruses, interceptions or interference. By communicating with anyone at the Group by email, you consent to the monitoring or interception of
such email by the Group in accordance with its internal policies. Unless otherwise stated, any pricing information given in this message is indicative

only, is subject to change and does not constitute an offer to deal at any price quoted.

htne ' ilrmail Aare Arm Al lainvinring hen h=0n2hAd BEAhARA7OADDLEENLAADAACRTRrAn0nd WD mn milnlT=NDNA4 0 EAN=1 500 ACTI70297 414



Dated October 31 v203.7

. To 4
~ The Registrar

- Ol & Gas Regulatory Authority — OGRA
. _*54—8, Fazal-e—Haq Road Blue' Area,

refereﬁce to -meetmg . Kamiran Khan of Financ ; [ -
ls!amabad Ofﬁce regardmg tfhe eaﬂy g.- t I

o Thisis with
- ameer Ali, Traﬁgura held on 29~10—2018- -ln your

of the Sale and Marketing license of Natural Gas / RLNG.
As desired by Finance section, attached please find the following documents for your

:fu‘rth'er 'consider‘atidns:

i . Cash ﬂow, IRR and NPV calcuiatxon

i_,i_st qf Finance Professmna _____
Trafigur, 'P'”ksstan and ouf parent company) -

Forecasted Sale . Bee |
1 (further 10 our service Agr'eemer_\t executed between

authoritv to piease grant us li |
d please give us the puhtic hearing schedute an pnonty {'

ken consnderabie time..

SRR __hermore, it'is requested to the
- lout sale and marketing of RLNG, an
' basis as our application has already ta

for and on behalf of
, .'Traf‘ igura Paklstan (Pvt) Ltd

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED
PP TRAHGURA LOM
UravERsaL 10> MUMBER: 0110562




Opex Tax Net cash flows NPV
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11/1/2018 Axigen WebMail - Print Emails ,

cUrgent & Important

Wed, 10/31/2018 03:01 PM

From: [Ameer Ali <Ameer.Ali@trafigura.com>]
To: ["registrar@ogra.org.pk" <registrar@ogra.org.pk>]
Attachments: [OGRA 31102018-v1.pdf 665.9 KB])

Dear Sir,

As discussed on last Monday, attached please find the required additional info for your kind considerations.

You kind facilitation will be highly appreciated.

FY!: Original docs is already dispatched @ your office address. .

Regards

Ameer Ali

General Manager for LNG

Direct: +971 4 425 2122 (UAE)
Mobile: +92 3345171223 (PAKISTAN)

E-mail: ameer.ali@trafigura.com

Extn: 25601 \&%
_ &

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED W)}

8th Floor, Bahria Complex - lil, M. T Khan Road
P.0.Box 74400, Karachi, Pakistan

www.trafigura.com

Regards

Ameer Ali
Business Development — LNG Pakistan
Ext: 25601

- LI are not the intended recipient please notify the sender and permanently delete the email including any attachments. You must not copy, disclose or

only, is subject to change and does not constitute an offer to deal at any price quoted.

S

distribute any of the contents to any other person. Personal views or opinions are solely those of the author and not of Trafigura Group Pte Ltd or its
affiliates (the “Group”). The Group does not guarantee that the integrity of this communication has been maintained nor that the communication is
: free of viruses, interceptions or interference. By communicating with anyone at the Group by email, you consent to the monitoring or interception of
: such email by the Group in accordance with its internal policies. Unless otherwise stated, any pricing information given in this message is indicative

!
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Traﬁgura Pakistan Limited
Forcasted Sale in MTPA
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Trafigura Pakistan Limited
List of Local finance Resources

Gerald Araujo
Puja Maiji

Sarah McCracken
Meenal

Local financial Controller (to be engaged)




Trafigura Pakistan Limited
Forcasted Sale in MTPA

Year (June end) Total mtpa

2018-19
2019-20
2020-21
2021-22
2022-23
2023-24
2024-25
2025-26
2026-27
2027-28
2028-29
2029-30
2030-31
2031-32
2032-33

19



Trafigura Pakistan Limited
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Oil & Gas
Regulatory Authority

OGRA-6(1)-NG/2018 November12, 2018

Mr. Elias Chibani,

Chief Executive Officer,

Trafigura Pakistan (Private) Limited,
Behria Complex 3,

8" Floor M.T Khan Road,
KARACHI

Subject: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF LICENCE FOR SALE OF NATURAL
GAS / RLANG

/
Dear Sir,‘)ﬁ‘—"ﬁ;\j |
)

Please refer to your letter No Nil dated 31-10-2018 on the above subject.

2. It is to inform that the information/data provided vide subject letter still devoid of

the following information/data:

i) The Basis of calculations of cash flow and /R;R’,
il) Designations and experience of the Financial experts.

3. You are, therefore advised to submit the same in order to proceed further,
please.
Best Regards, /
it
(Abdul Basit Qureshi)
Registrar

(For & on behalf of the Authority)

54-B, Fazlul Haq Road, Blue Area, Islamabad. PABX: +92 51 9244090-98, Fax: +92 51 9244310
+92 51 9244310: LuSé +92 51 9244090-98:055 sUipdoal by pyloc by 39,551 nd 54-B

\




11/46/2018 Axigen WebMail - Print Emails 52}

Application for grant of License for sale of Natural Gas/
RLNG

Thu, 11/15/2018 05:18 PM

From: [Ameer Ali <Ameer.Ali@trafigura.com>]
To: ["registrar@ogra.org.pk" <registrar@ogra.org.pk>]
Attachments: [[Untitled].pdf}[799588]

Dear Sir,

As discussed yesterday, attached please find the additional docs required by your finance section. | would really
appreciate, if you could kind expedite our application and also give us s:.:;;lﬁ of public hearing on priority.

Your kind facilitation and support will be highly appreciated.

\! L
Regards W (l’w
g \ M@ \ \X

Ameer Ali

General Manager for LNG @/
Direct: +971 4 425 2122 (UAE) 0
Mobile: +92 3345171223 (PAKISTAN) Y,
Extn: 25601

E-mail: ameer.ali@trafigura.com

TRAFIGURA PAKISTAN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

8th Floor, Bahria Complex - lli, M. T Khan Road
P.0.Box 74400, Karachi, Pakistan

http://www.trafigura.com

This email and any attachments are confidential and access to this email or attachment by anyone other than the
addressee is unauthorised. If you are not the intended recipient please notify the sender and permanently delete
the email including any attachments. You must not copy, disclose or distribute any of the contents to any other
person. Personal views or opinions are solely those of the author and not of Trafigura Group Pte Ltd or its affiliates
(the “Group”). The Group does not guarantee that the integrity of this communication has been maintained nor that
the communication is free of viruses, interceptions or interference. By communicating with anyone at the Group by
email, you consent to the monitoring or interception of such email by the Group in accordance with its internal
policies. Unless otherwise stated, any pricing information given in this message is indicative only, is subject to
change and does not constitute an offer to deal at any price quoted.

httnc:limail Amea ara nllaiavinring hen? h=rad&077100fAf77N728297§1 dnqun'WmRm'Jf')fnxmnilen=')’zon'mﬁdn=1 3RA 1R77RKR]7 1M
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